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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and distribution
of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle business in 1992, and
expanded into instant food business and beverage business in 1996.
In March 2012, the Group further expanded its beverage business by
forming a strategic alliance with PepsiCo for the beverage business in
the PRC. The Company exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages,
distributes and sells PepsiCo soft drinks in the PRC. After years of hard
work and accumulation, “Master Kong” has become one of the best-
known brands among consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management system,
implements entire control over food safety and ensures product quality
and safety. We will constantly strive for product quality and food safety,
as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty and healthy food products.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 337 sales offices and 322
warehouses serving 76,528 wholesalers and 254,975 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2022. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2022 was
US$10 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and distribution business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the
PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant
Food & Beverage in the World”.
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Financial Summary

BZE12A3LALEE
For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ANREFT AREFT ARETIT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 = RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
e Revenue 78,717,420 74,082,292 67,617,835 61,978,158 60,685,645
B R AT A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 @ 5,808,643 6,531,912 5,411,596 3,979,334
g Taxation (1,072,970)  (1,424,976) (1,958,228) (1,693,374) (1,250,565)
REE A Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769
i el Profit attributable to:
AAFIRE Owners of the Company 2,632,312 | 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321
DY E Non-controlling interests 443,522 581,185 511,421 387,241 265,448
KNEEHF Profit for the year 3,075,834 = 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769
fig 8 Dividends 2,632,312 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321
AR ARES ARE7 ARES ARED
RMB cents = RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents
BFIEF Earnings per share
BN Basic 46.73 67.57 72.23 59.25 43.85
BE Diluted 46.71 67.51 72.15 59.20 43.77
* MEF2022 MK SR A K gk MA -
* Subject to approval by 2022 Annual General Meeting.
EemEER 03
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R12A31H
As at 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBTL AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REUEEHE Investment properties 1,832,200 1,807,100 1,771,700 1,771,500 1,119,000
MmE - BERR Property, plant and equipment 21259417 = 21,510,028 21,934,571 23,013,991 24,927,630
FHREEE Right-of-use assets 3,625,714 3,691,741 3,804,456 4,025,124 —
T L EE Prepaid lease payments — — — — 3,570,367
BN AR Interest in an associate 93,316 94,847 94,802 139,537 127,725
BELRER Interest in joint venture 614,316 625,163 627,031 889,065 698,743
B EE Intangible assets 162,480 155,970 165,668 183,409 186,458
EMERBDERE Other non-current assets 6,834,794 6,757,633 4,431,860 2,499,236 1,465,275
FnRE(8E)EE Net current (liabilities) assets (7,677,469)  (4,158,264) 1,629,302  (2,869,623)  (2,977,064)
EnRBaE Non-current liabilities (9,929,293) | (8,075,718)  (9,720,007)  (6,606,132)  (5,505,703)
FEE Net assets 16,815,475 | 22,408,500 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431

BT A Issued capital 235,741 235,633 235,422 235,401 235,204
[ Reserves 13,135,785 | 18424343 20,877,302 19,343,173 19,418,272

PHRFE R Non-controlling interests 3443949 = 3748524 3,626,659 3,467,533 3,958,955
B RS Total equity 16,815,475 = 22,408,500 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431

04 EHEZERERAT
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Sales Network

e
RN Zhengzhou
HZE Wuhan
TS Sap—
EE Chongging & Nanchang giAlianszton
£ Changsha
l /
.
1
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Production Centre Tianjin  Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongging Wuhan Xian  Other Centres  Total
HEmE . .
e W W W W W W W
P e > > >
s @ & & € &€ & &€ = ¢
Beverage Business
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2 e YE HE gqE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
& E T Sales Office 369 371 365 340 337
& & Warehouse 108 182 236 341 322
#Z 857 Wholesale 28,415 36,186 47,898 80,726 76,528
H%ZE£ Direct Retailer 140,779 185,789 210,366 256,567 254,975
BT AZ Employee 54,210 58,182 60,654 62,107 64,302
4 E4& Production Line 613 604 584 570 575
4 EE M Production Centre 103 88 86 78 78

06 EHEZERERAF
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Master Kong remains true to its original aspiration of “Promoting
Chinese Food & Beverage Culture”, takes “Serving Consumers” as
its purpose, and “Food Safety” as its cornerstone, and devotes itself
to creating a “Chinese National Brand” of comprehensive food and
beverages.

In 2022, Master Kong actively responded to the challenges, such as
COVID and fluctuations of raw material prices, and achieved steady
growth in performance.

Guided by the strategy to “Consolidate, Reform and Develop”, Master
Kong has been optimizing its product portfolio every step of the way to
offer more quality products to consumers. In pursuit of deliciousness,
Master Kong has also responded to the call of “Healthy China” and
launched a variety of sugar-reduced and oil-reduced products. In
addition, Master Kong has ensured proper production and shipment
as well as consumer services during the COVID control and lockdown
periods, with flexibility of supply chains, consumption behaviors tracking
and refined channel operation.

Master Kong pays its attention to sustainable development. In response
to the national guideline of “Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality”,
active measures have been taken to promote carbon inventory
investigation and energy conservation and emission reduction, launch
unlabeled products, and release the first standards of “Carbon Footprint
Accounting and Carbon Neutralization Evaluation” for tea beverages
in China. With a view to long-term development, constant efforts
have been made to drive digital transformation and build a team of
professional talents.

With the reopening from the adjustment of COVID measures, we are
confident to rise to the market challenges in 2023. The Board will
prompt the management team, on an ongoing basis, to operate in a
healthy manner and to serve consumers better. Here, | would like to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all the shareholders, fellow members
of the Board, management team, employees, partners and consumers
for their support over the years.

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
27 March, 2023
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Group Structure
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* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

In 2022, the macro-environment faced some challenges, but the long-
term fundamentals had remained favorable, with the GDP growth of
3% year-on-year and urbanization rate improved to 65.2%. During
the period, the rising price of bulk raw materials had mounted pressure
to the operation of the industry. The capricious COVID outbreaks also
limited the mobility of people and consumption occasions. However,
the middle class continued to grow, and the consumption potential
continued to be unleashed when penetrating to the new rural areas.
Household consumption habits lingered on, with growth in 020 and
community group purchase maintained. Consumers valued product
quality and healthy, while choosing more wisely and proactively looking
for cost-effective products. These trends brought opportunities for
industry development.

The Group pressed ahead by executing its established strategy to
“Consolidate, Reform and Develop” in 2022. It further dived into the
mass consumer markets, explored into the market targeting at the
middle class, and deployed efforts to tap into markets in the new rural
areas. As a national brand, the Group started from the operation safety
and corporate values to build its core competitiveness. It gave full
play to advantages of scale, continued to make brand investment and
product innovation, and promoted digital transformation to better serve
customers and consumers. According to the Kantar Brand Footprint
Report in 2022, Master Kong had been ranked among the Top Three
Brands as First Choice by Chinese Consumers for ten consecutive years.

In 2022, the Group's revenue increased by 6.26% year-on-year to reach
RMB78.717 billion. The revenue from instant noodles grew by 4.17%
year-on-year, while the revenue from beverages grew by 7.89% year-
on-year. The gross profit margin of the whole year had a decline of
1.30 percentage points year-on-year and dropped to 29.09%. The ratio
of distribution costs to revenue rose by 0.15 percentage points year-
on-year to 21.35%. EBITDA declined by 14.07% year-on-year to reach
RMB7.210 billion; Weighed down by the year-on-year decrease in
gross profit margin and the year-on-year increase in distribution costs,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company contracted by
30.77% year-on-year to RMB2.632 billion; Basic earnings per share
declined by RMB20.84 cents to RMB46.73 cents.



HEEEY

Q02F 2 FAER S EAEEREA
296 34 BARY - FILEKK4.17% 5%
B 42155 37.65% ° BN AR BHER +
RRMBEEL  FEHEAEMNERLL TR
041 EAEDEE23.95% ° HRNEFIERF
LLTREE  SHEESHE2022F2F
AR R R EAE @ T R EL T 31.42%
Z13.75BARE -

FREBEEKII0EF  BHEUAZER
wEOK ZREMETFREEENS
BRBL - REBEARFR  BERG6E
SimEm  IEENTERERS - BIRH
EEMREHETR  BEEFLHEEE
BER  BACLEES  REGHES
FLENRGER BRETERRER
FEEINRA - HETELEMRD
ES T EERR - RITHEEREE

Man o KEHBENGZ BZL - BRH
BITERRER  ATEARERRME

ERETwESN | Management Discussion and Analysis [ INNENGzGEG

Instant noodles Business

In 2022, the Group’s revenue from the instant noodle business was
RMB29.634 billion, with a year-on-year growth of 4.17%, accounting
for 37.65% of the Group’ s total revenue. During the period, the gross
margin of instant noodles decreased by 0.41 percentage points year-
on-year to 23.95%, due to the rise of raw material prices and shift in
product-mix. Due to the year-on-year decline in gross profit margin,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company in the instant
noodles segment declined by 31.42% to RMB1.375 billion in 2022.

Upon the 30th anniversary of the establishment of instant noodles
business, efforts had consistently concentrated on meeting the
demands of different consumers with a variety of offerings in price
bands, flavors and sizes in a multitude of occasions. In response to the
demand for consumption upgrading, active efforts had been made
for the offering of premium products. Efforts had been put in place to
grasp the opportunities of new retail channels, stay flexible for product
adaptation and marketing, build digital consumer management system,
refine private domain operation, and provide consumers with a greater
diversity of service experiences. The principle of “Quality is the First
Productivity” had been strictly followed. Efforts had never stopped to
improve the production layout, build digital production workshops, and
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the supply chains. It had
been all about taking the interests of consumers as the core, effectively
powering the sound development of the industry and contributing to
the sustainable development of the industry.
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High-priced Noodles

High-priced noodles continued to consolidate core products, promote
brand rejuvenation, and capitalize on the advantage of scale, thus
serving consumers with products of multiple flavors and sizes. In parallel,
given the occasions of staying up late watching sports events and other
occasions, marketing campaigns were rolled out for reinforcement
on such occasions. “Roasted Beef Noodles” deepened the bond with
young consumers through interactions and communication by working

with Lay Zhang as its brand ambassador and co-creating the song “Let’s

Move”, thus conveying positive brand values and promoting brand
preference. “Hot Beef Noodles” never ceased to gain popularity among
consumers. “Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” worked hand in hand with

the brand ambassador, Yang Zi, to have boosted the brand awareness

"o

rapidly. “Rattan Pepper Beef Noodles”, “Xiaomijiao Pickled Pepper Beef

Noodles”, “Old Mature Vinegar Sour & Spicy Beef Noodles” were highly
rated among the consumers, with their advantages of flavors. Innovative
and “Light Spicy Pickled

were launched onto the market,

flavors of “Golden Stock Beef Noodles”
Vegetables Beef Flavor Noodles”
where the product penetration rate had been boosted rapidly. “Master
Kong Dried Noodles” applied innovations to have designed water filters
“Master Kong BIG Bucket/Packet”
accomodated the needs of consumers for large portions.

for the convenience of consumers.

Premium Noodles/Super-premium Noodles

The offerings of premium products were enriched to meet the needs
“Soup Chef” kept
launched

of the middle class for upgraded consumption.
communicating on “Proficiency in Every Type of Soups”,
“Soup Chef-BIG CUP" as a new size, and cooperated with gourmet
IP to improve penetration rate and preference of the brand. “Yu-Pin
Banquet”, as a gift product for the 30th anniversary, focused on the
emerging white-collar workers and new middle-class population, and
leveraged Luo Yonghao to trigger the topic to go viral, thus leading the
upgrading of instant noodle products towards the premium end. “Dried
Noodles Collection” converged signature dried noodles from all over
the places, accessed the market niche of dried noodles, and launched
products in this niche of various flavors and noodle assortments, which
were highly praised by consumers. In addition, both “Yu-Pin Banquet”
and “Dried Noodles Collection” won the Outstanding Instant Food
Innovation Grand Award in the Year of 2021-2022. “RanHun Noodles”,
as fried-free dried noodles, catered for the needs of young consumers.
“Express Chef’s Noodles” delivered the quality noodles as if original
from the noodle shops, continuously improved the product strength,
where the bowl noodles/self-heating noodles offered multiple sizes to

meet the needs of consumers in different occasions for food.

B EER
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Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

The Mid-priced Noodles were tailor-made for consumers in township
and rural areas, accomodating the demands of both affordability and
tastes. Efforts were made to continuously strengthen brand building,
and meet consumers demands for cost-effective products with large-
portion offerings via the product of “Master Kong 50% Plus”, realizing
a sustained and rapid growth in sales volume. As Snack Noodles,
the “Flavored and Crunchy” focused on the leisure snack market for
students and a wider population, came with a new flavor of “Sizzling
Barbecue”, where a brand-new promotion campaign was rolled out, in
assocation with the world-class IP “Pokémon” to keep enhancing the

brand awareness and brand preference.

Beverage Business

In 2022, the overall revenue from beverage business was RMB48.336
billion, with a year-on-year growth of 7.89%, accounting for 61.40%
of the Group' s total revenue. During the period, the gross margin
of beverages decreased by 1.88 percentage points year-on-year to
31.95%, due to the rise of raw material prices and shift in product-mix.
Due to the year-on-year decline in gross margin, the profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company in the beverages segment declined by
25.00% to RMB1.378 billion in 2022.

The beverage business focused on core categories, adhered to the
orientation of consumer demands, kept launching and nurturing
new products, and met the multi-occasion and healthy demands of
consumers with a rich product matrix. Efforts were geared to actively
expand consumer purchase channels, and to streamline distribution
channels. The price rationalization strategy was pushed forward in an
organized manner, with solid steps underway in brand building and
commitments to healthy operation sound and sustainable development.
The capacity layout was optimized, whilst the digital transformation of
supply chain was actively promoted, the pilot of the integrated data
management platform was in place, and the supply chain effectiveness
was improved. In response to market demands, capital expenditure on
outdoor consumption was moderately increased.
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RTD Tea

RTD tea focused on core products, consolidated the consumption
market of the public, and met the consumption demands of the
younger group in different occasions with a variety of flavors and sizes
of products. “Master Kong Ice Tea” teamed up with the new brand
ambassadors, Wang Yibo and the Teens in Times, to keep working on
a young and fashionable brand image to meet the needs of indoor/
outdoor consumption occasions. “Tropical Flavor”, the fruity-flavored
tea, caught on among the ACGN lovers. “Sugar-free Ice Tea” deployed
its presence into the healthy consumer market, leading the development
of the industry. “Jasmine Series” teamed up with national idol Gong
Jun to shoot a microfilm “Jasmine Only for You”, rolled out online and
offline joint promotion, and were loved by young consumers. “Green
Tea" packaging was restaged to intensify the brand image for the
vitality of young touch. The packaging of “Master Kong Peach Oolong
Tea” and “"Oolong Tea” was fully upgraded to fit into the preferences of
the new generation for fruit tea. The fruit tea series had the new arrival
of “Green Grape Green Tea" hitting the shelf, expanding the lineup
of the fifth brand of teas. “Pure Sugar-free Tea Beverage” was newly
launched to meet the thirst quenching/palate refreshment demand of
young consumers.

Carbonated Soft Drinks

The bottled carbonated soft drink business forged ahead to drive
innovations in categories and flavors, and met the consumer demands
for different drinking occasions with full-suite of sizes, packaging
and sugar reduction options, which registered an overall growth of
carbonated soft drinks across the board. “Pepsi-Cola” created a brand-
new Pepsi virtual idol family for Team Pepsi, ushered in the Pepsi’s meta-
universe, and introduced the upgraded serving platform titled “Delicious
Pepsi”. Pepsi series kept on delivering the three options of Osmanthus
Flavor and White Pomelo Bamboo Flavor. “Pepsi No Sugar” collaborated
with the national Top One mobile game IP, “Honor of Kings”, to capture
young consumers and met the demand for sugar-free consumption.
“Mirinda” launched mixed fruit flavors of Passion Fruit & Pineapple/
Passion Fruit & Coconut, and juice bubble drink introduced orange
flavor/apple flavor, all of which were positioned towards premium juice
carbonated soft drinks. “7UP" capitalized on Moji7o Grapefruit Flavor
to engage in operation with product differentiation. “Bubly Sparkling
Water” launched new flavors of apple/strawberry, restaged with new
packaging, expanded offerings of mixed flavor packaging, and worked
with Xiao Zhan to launch micro films for brand series to enhance brand
awareness and brand preference.
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Juices

The advantages of the multiple options of sizes and flavors were put to
good use, and the fusion of the Chinese and Western styles staged the
culture of “Chinese Style Drinks with Meal”. The Chinese juice of “Rock
Candy Pear” strengthened the brand image of “Moistening the Throat
for Every Moment"”, created a drinking occasion for good voice by
moistening the throat, and a new flavor “Rock Candy Red Grapefruit”
hit the shelf. “The Traditional Drink Sweet-Sour Plum Juice” integrated
modern juice-making process into Chinese classic drink, and highlighted
the effects of quenching thirst and benefits of refreshing the palate to
go with cuisines. The Western-style juice “Master Kong Juices” resorted
to tasty fruits to build an optimistic and joyful brand image. “NutriLight
Fruits”, on top of its core flavor of honey and grapefruit, extended the
series with other flavored products, including “Mango Flavor Drink” and
“Peach Flavor Drink”, etc. “Tropicana 100% " succeeded in grasping
online exposures, and focused on supermarket/convenience store and
other channels in the offline channel, and seized marketshare in the
category of 100% juice (ambient). The “Tropicana” focused on mixed
fruit flavors and pushed up sales scale.

Bottled Water

The bottled water business continued to satisfy different consumer
needs with products of various sizes and price bands, stressed on the
offering of large and small packages, and tapped into the consumption
demand of household occasions. “Master Kong Bottled Drinking Water”
worked with the Olympic Champion Guo Jingjing, and constantly
presented a brand image of “The Best Choice for Reassurance and
Health”. The 5L super-large packaging was offered to expand the
drinking occasions for household and catering settings. “Drink boiled
water” communicated the product positioning of “mild, safe and sweet
water”, upheld a competitive strategy of boiled water differentiation,
and cooperated with Cai Xukun to serve young consumer community
and met the water uptake needs of different occasions with multiple
sizes. “Aquafina” cooperated with the players of China Women's
National Football Team, and offered in full-suite of sizes to meet the
outdoor and home drinking occasions for consumers. “Soda Bubble
Water” was launched as a new product, and maintained collaboration
with well-known catering/coffee brands to expand into diversified
occasions for sales, which witnessed steady growth of sales.
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Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics

“Starbucks Ready-to-Drink Coffee” had the Bottled Frappuccino
upgraded, and launched new products of Mini Bottled Frappuccino
and Oat Latte flavor Frappuccino, continued to strengthen the
comprehensive market coverage of Starbucks Select, and the overall
sales performance was outstanding. “Bernachon Coffee” launched
Benazon light and fresh series, with low sugar and low fat offerings to
meet the healthy needs of consumers. “Gatorade” cooperated with top
celebrities in sports at home and abroad and major sports associations
in China to cover a variety of sports occasions and maintained emphasis
on building the brand image of No.1 sports beverage. “Gatorade No
Sugar” took a proactive move to tap into the segmented market of
the light exercises and daily hydration. “Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics
Drink” focused on core flavors. “Xiao Lao Duo Duo”, the lactobacillus
beverage was repackaged to manifest its healthy image featuring fresh
and fat-free happiness.

The Group, with pursuit of a prudent cash strategy, has been
characterized with proficient control of capital expenditures and
effective promotion of asset activation, and is expected to generate
stable net cash inflows. During the year, the Group had a net cash
inflow of RMB4.475 billion from operating activities and a net cash
outflow of RMB3.380 billion from investing activities. During the period,
the Group promoted asset activation to yield in a net cash inflow of
RMB216 million.
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The Group continued to maintain a robust financial structure through
effective control on trade receivables, trade payables and inventories,
with sufficient cash holdings. As of December 31, 2022, the Group’s
bank deposits and cash amounted to RMB19.888 billion, with a
decrease of RMB2.073 billion over December 31, 2021. As of December
31, 2022, the Group's interest-bearing borrowings amounted to
RMB17.619 billion, with an increase of RMB3.957 billion over December
31, 2021. The net cash totaled RMB2.269 billion, down by RMB6.030
billion over December 31, 2021. At the end of the period, the ratio of
borrowings denominated in foreign currency to RMB was 31%:69%,
versus 96%:4% at the end of the previous year. The ratio of long-term
to short-term borrowings was 48%:52%, versus 46%:54% at the end
of the previous year.

The Group's total assets and total liabilities arrived at RMB58.449
billion and RMB41.634 billion, respectively as of December 31, 2022,
down by RMB1.860 billion and up by RMB3.733 billion respectively
over December 31, 2021; The debt ratio was 71.23%, up by 8.39
percentage points over December 31,2021; The gearing ratio increased
from -44.48% as of December 31, 2021 to -16.97% in the current
period.

Bt R Financial Ratio

2022 F 20214
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ELPK on [E 4 Turnover of Finished Goods 20.77 days,”H 18.35 days/H
FEN R SR A2 HR Turnover of Trade Receivables 8.93 days,” B 9.13 days,/ H
mEhtL & Current Ratio 0.76 Times,/1& 0.86 Times, /&
BELXR(BEE Debt ratio (Total liabilities to Total assets) 71.23% 62.84%

FEBEEEARLE(HEE Gearing ratio (Net borrowings to
RARE RS R ) shareholders’ equity) ' -16.97% -44.48%
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Long-term time deposits were also taken into account for the calculation
of the Group's gearing ratio, as management believed that this basis of
calculation reflected more accurately the Group's capital structure.
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The Group had 64,302 employees, as of December 31, 2022.

Investments in talents and comprehensive improvement in the
organizational efficiency had been maintained, based on the Group's
core competitiveness and strategy. Master Kong's unique executive
development model was built. The digital transformation of HR was
accelerated, and gradually established a scientific selection mechanism.
Furthermore, the group has leveraged the internal trainer development
and external resources with the focus on training operating leaders and
executives.

The group has established partnership with 45 higher education
institutions and 70 vocational schools nationwide. A variety of offline
campus recruitment campaigns were implemented and multiple online
formats including cloud tours, livestreaming headquarters visits and
short videos were utilized, providing thousands of job offers to the fresh
graduates. In terms of partnership on vocational education, efforts were
retained to deliver and promote the “Master Kong Ordered Class”, and
the resource sharing and collaborative approach to prepare talents was
furthered.

Partnerships were deepened with selected domestic and overseas top
universities. The first phase of MBA Integrative Practical Projects (IPP)
was jointly delivered with the School of Economics and Management,
Tsinghua University. Cooperation with Harvard Business School on co-
developing a business case was realized and sharing of Master Kong's
experiences in the Chinese market with more than 180 international
executives was accomplished. Employees were selected and enrolled
in Waseda University to study advanced production and operation
knowledge. The joint project of big data modeling on Master Kong's
consumers was successfully accomplished with partners such as the
Wharton School.
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China’s economy is expected to make steady growth in 2023. The
recovery of consumption scenario is accelerated, and the enterprise
operation is full of opportunities. The Group has always been
underpinned by operation safety and corporate values, and supported
by the pillars of scale, brand, innovation, system and talents, and will
strengthen its core competitiveness from a future-oriented perspective,
thus facilitating the robust operation to create values for consumers and
shareholders.

The Group will unswervingly advance its strategy to “Consolidate,
Reform and Develop”, so as to expand and strengthen its main
operating business. The instant noodle business will continue to meet
the diversified demands of consumers with products that come with
multiple price bands, multiple sizes and diversified flavors, and keep
galvanizing the expansion of the scale of the entire industry. The
beverage business will keep its focus on core categories and promote
product structure adaptations to accomodate the needs of consumers
for different occasions.

In the face of the trend of increasingly diversified channels, online
and offline deployment will be adopted in parallel. The traditional
e-commerce channels will be strengthened, the 020 and community
group buying, together with other channels will be extended, and the
product categories and sizes from online channels will be enriched. And
efforts will be kept up to penetrate into the offline pathways, streamline
distribution channels, and improve the terminal store coverage rate
and service capacity. At the same time, the young brand ambassador
and virtual IP images loved by consumers will be selected to leverage
the rejuvenation marketing approach to promote the brand building
towards younger population.

EamEEr 21

2022 Annual Report ¥



IRl =2 | Prospects

.

BB EREESN —EEETM -
AEBRZL BT AT R -
BBBEERE  TERIEBEEEY
B RAEXRBER BLEN -  SETE
BRMRZHEGEBAKELER - TERM®
LEER BEBRLRLXEREREE
7o BITERIGRRERIER - 2NHH
BEYHRGERNER -

KENUMMBPERRE IRED - AR
BHEEFLARRTRE URIRME
2INBRLOEL BERE/TE IHRRE
REBD - BREEXREN  fTE—ERER
L - BEBHEALC  HEEZLHE&E
BERMAEREmE] -

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

V EEEERERAT

Digital transformation comprises an important direction navigated by
the Group. With business as the core, a solid digital talent echelon
will be built, data asset management will be strengthened and an
integrated data management platform will be created, to boost business
growth and operation performance. The Group also attaches great
importance to food safety and the green and sustainable development.
It is imperative to guard the bottom line of food safety and never
cease to strengthen food safety management and quality control.
Constant efforts will be directed at the practice of the low-carbon and
environmentally-friendly development philosophy, so as to bolster up
consumers’ pursuit for a better life.

The Group will dedicate to its mission of “Promoting Chinese Food
and Beverage Culture”, regard serving the needs of consumers
as its supreme purpose and food safety as the cornerstone, and
follow the robust business philosophy of “Cash is King”. With its
professional expertise, the Group will build a “Chinese National
Brand” of comprehensive food and beverages that is trustworthy for
the government, gratifying for business partners, and assuaring for
consumers.
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This report aims to present the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (“Master Kong,” “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG"”) in 2022 for
readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as included in this
annual report.

Report Preparation Standards

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Report Scope

Organizational scope of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the
organizational scope of this report covers the main office areas
and regular operating plants of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. in China, including the headquarters of Master Kong, the
Instant Noodles Business, the Master Kong Beverages Business,
the Pepsi Beverages Business and the Bakery Business, covering
the Company’s major ESG management policies and performance,
with no significant changes from the previous year.

Time frame of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the time frame
of the report is 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Reporting Principles

This report focuses on the Company's ESG philosophy and
commitment, and reports on our specific practices and key
achievements in the ESG area. This report adheres to the following
reporting principles:

Materiality: This report has been prepared by identifying key
stakeholders and their ESG issues of concern and making targeted
disclosures in the section headed “Stakeholder Communication
and Key Issues Materiality Assessment” of this report based on the
relative level of importance of their issues of concern.
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| Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Quantitative: This report uses quantitative information to present
environmental and social Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The
measures, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools,
and sources of conversion factors used for the KPIs in this report
are described where applicable.

Balance: This report provides objective disclosure of both positive
and negative information to ensure that the content presents an
unbiased view of the Company’s ESG performance during the
reporting period.

Consistency: The information disclosed in this report follows
the same statistical methodology as previous years and individual
changes have been explained to ensure consistency.

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
ESG governance and disclosure. The Company has established
the Sustainable Development Committee to assist the Board in
guiding and monitoring the development and implementation
of the Group’s environmental, social and governance tasks. The
Sustainable Development Committee is chaired by the Chairman
and CEO of the Company, with members of the Operating
Committee as members.

The Company has been exploring and refining its performance
in the ESG area by the implementation and integration of ESG
management principles and strategies in the Company’s risk
management and daily operation system as well as extensive
and in-depth communication with various stakeholders through
various channels. In 2022, the Company complied with ESG-
related laws and regulations in its operations and integrated ESG
management into its strategic development and daily operations.
The Company has reviewed the results of its materiality
assessment of ESG key issues, and the Board and Sustainability
Development Committee are actively accessing and managing the
related risks, opportunities and situation of each ESG key issues.
The management practices and performance on key ESG issues
are highlighted in this report.
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achievement of the ESG targets.

1)  Master Kong Sustainable Development Concept

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food &
Beverage Culture” and the vision of “Being the Most
Respected Food & Beverage Company”, Master Kong
upholds the sustainable development concept of
“Keep Our Nature Green”, incorporates the concept of
“Healthy Management” into various aspects of company
management, such as product development, talent
management, production processes, upstream and
downstream development, community engagement and
environmental sustainability, and communicates closely with
stakeholders and actively fulfils its social responsibility. We
continue to explore and refine our performance in the areas
of ESG, and are committed to sharing our corporate values
with our stakeholders to enhance social well-being and
enjoy “LIFE + DELICACY" together with our stakeholders.
Master Kong believes that “sustainable development is
good development”. The year 2022 is crucial for the “14th
Five-Year Plan” as well as the first year for the “second

|u

centenary goal”. As a Chinese national brand, Master
Kong has always combined enterprise development with
national development, combined the Group’s development
with consumer interests, closely followed the development
trend of the industry under the background of the “Carbon
Peaking and Carbon Neutrality” goal strategy, transformed
the national strategic potential into its own development
efficiency and strategically cooperated with external
resources to continuously promote itself, as well as the food

industry, to develop in a green and low-carbon manner.
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BMTAEAREZHENERS We are constantly exploring the actual needs of society,
- T = ARk combining the fundamental demands of stakeholders with
HESEXEFRAREES & the characteristics of our own industry, making food safety,
RETEE EmET - BHEER product responsibility, energy saving and environmental
R BHEAFRHECEEBMEA protection, win-win partnership and corporate contribution
ESGR AZMLER - HEimEE as the five core tasks of ESG, actively leveraging our
EEED  TEHMAERA K industrial strengths and increasing our investment in order
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TEHBIFTERL - corporate sustainable development.
P \
MIBRRZES  ToEDL MR MMERE 0 BEERAE
RIETHEER WEMISEE
g e iy o =

faithful to the original corporate
values, looking forward to the
development of the industry

meeting the needs of market

/
ENERARE  BEEESE - FEIRRERE  BEKERE
SFHERKIEE ERET AR
Small actions ending up as a great Focusing on environmental
blessing, spreading love, holding protection management,
onto the national unity advocating green development,

benefiting today and tomorrow

BIFLUARA  EFUERE
o HAMEEE
Sticking to people-oriented belief,
growing hand in hand with partners,
creating social values together

BREDE ESG A RIZ LTS
Master Kong's Five Core Tasks of ESG

[
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ESG Governance Structure and Actions

The Sustainable Development Committee of Master Kong
is chaired by the Chairman and CEO of the Company, with
members of the Operating Committee as members, and
comprises four working groups: Beverage Resources, Instant
Noodle Resources, Product Research and Development,
and Communication. The Committee guides work
implementation and performance evaluation on the
basis of a clear corporate ESG strategy and development
direction, regularly deliberates and makes decisions on work
objectives, report disclosure and related material matters, and
reports on work progress to the Board of Directors. Each
working group continues to promote the implementation
of relevant projects in accordance with its annual work
plan and reports regularly to the Sustainable Development
Committee and the Company’s senior management on the
progress of its work.

° Beverage Resources Working Group: Focusing on
plastic reduction and packaging management, the
Working Group actively promotes special projects for
beverage PET bottle weight reduction, light weight
bottle caps and paper straw replacement.

° Instant Noodle Resource Working Group: Focusing
on water conservation, energy saving and emission
reduction management, the Working Group focuses
on promoting special projects such as oil boiler
waste gas recovery, boiler emission reduction and
water recycling to improve the Company’s energy
management.

° Product Research and Development Working
Group: Focusing on the development and expansion
of healthy and nutritious products, the Working
Group actively promotes special research projects
on salt reduction, sugar reduction, fat reduction and
nutritional fortification to meet consumers’ needs for
nutrition and health.
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° Communication Working Group: Focusing on
enhancing the Company’s sustainable development
impact, the Working Group works with various
working groups to introduce external resources
and to organize activities such as healthy diet
promotion and healthy research cooperation from
the perspective of food safety, healthy China and
sustainable development, and continues to promote
the Comprehensive Carbon Inventory Project.
Additionally, the Working Group promotes domestic
and international cross-industry communication and
cooperation in order to deepen its efforts and make a
greater impact in the field of sustainable development.

At the same time, Master Kong is further leveraging
the strengths of each business industry, enhancing the
relevance and practicability of ESG management, and
making continuous efforts to implement the sustainable
development concept of “Keep Our Nature Green”.
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Sustainable Development Actions and Performance

During the reporting period, we carried out the following
main actions and achieved the corresponding results:

Attendance at a UN high-end summit:

e In January 2023, Master Kong participated in the
side event of the United Nations Economic and Social
Council ("UN ECOSOC") Partnership Forum 2023
with the theme of “Accelerating Net Zero Transition
through Innovative Partnerships - SDG-driven Business
Solutions Across Sectors to Combat Ocean Plastic
Crisis”, which was hosted by the China Liaison Office
of the United Nations Global Compact (“UNGC")
and co-organized by the International Network for
Bamboo and Rattan (“INBAR”) and Yicai (5 —B14X),
sharing the experiences of national brand enterprises
in practicing the concept of sustainable development
and leading the green transformation of the industry.

FEEZ B EHAR 2R R2OERERNTEES
Master Kong was Invited to Attend the Side Event held by the UNGC
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UNGCEEMERFEE LRE The closing ceremony of the Accelerator Programs in
NEEAMEEN China of the UNGC held at Master Kong:
e 20234 2H ' UNGC[MH e In February 2023, the closing ceremony of the

A% B AR IR R R
O JRINRERTE B &R
BEAERAME LEEET
BRI o Bt BB EE 1
EREREE HeEERR
MM K RARKE
IR GE RS o RS
R TER A PR FE R BER
DL = AR B A R Y
iEDFE T RENMER A
BRRLER BREEEX
REZE —BARTRTH
BRPCR AT R R AT T
A

UNGC “Target Gender Equality (TGE)” and “Climate
Ambition (CAA)" Accelerator Programs was held in
Master Kong Shanghai operation center. Siddharth
Chatterjee, the United Nations Resident Coordinator
in China, and Meng Liu, the UNGC General
Representative in Asia Pacific, attended and delivered
a speech. Chen Yinjang, the Chief Executive Officer
of Master Kong, delivered a welcome speech and
attended a high-level fireside dialogue. He shared
Master Kong's experience in sustainable development,
and discussed the achievements of carbon reduction
and the new direction of sustainable development
with several business representatives.

EREM(E 2 N5 S B 2 IR AV BB EE IR 2ZTE B AR ER
Master Kong Attending the Closing Ceremony of the Accelerator Programs in China of the UNGC
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HE BB R ERE

Jointly launching the initiative to reduce plastic and
carbon emissions:

202F 1A EERE
FEEEREOEES
% B 1% £ A UNGC[GDI
for SDGI({EEEITERIR
BREZ  MERERAH
BEEREB)NEERE
BR-—[BBEFEHR
EHR G B EREEE
B MEREg s — B
12 R B A 510 42 1k 3
RERELR R 2R
WEKITENEE © BAT - &K
BENFE—ERNEBEES
KOEMD - RENVHEAER
fF— e - A A rPETR &
(&% ] BIE[PETZ I
Bl E ] it - B
HERMEE o

In November 2022, Master Kong, at the Fifth China
International Import Expo, as one of the initiators
of the first pilot project of UNGC “GDI for SDG”
("Global Development Initiative for Sustainable
Development Goals Acceleration”) —"Alleviate Marine
Plastic Pollution and Help Low-Carbon Economic
Transformation”, jointly launched a global carbon
reduction action initiative with 12 well-known
enterprises and organizations at home and abroad.
At present, the first pilot project of this initiative has
landed. Master Kong and its partners use rPET to make
“everything”, including “rPET multifunctional storage
box”, luggage case and recycled raw materials.

A B 2R LA GDI for SDGIIEE BB ER
The Launch Ceremony of “GDI for SDG " Project of the UNGC
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B A E AR B & ME PET Z ekl &
The Picture Shows the rPET Multi-Function Storage Box that was Launched in the First Pilot Project

EHBPR IR WIERK Launching “carbon neutral” tea beverage and two tea
Rl E AR ¢ beverage carbon related standards:
e 20224108 - FEENEH e In October 2022, Master Kong introduced the

HT B AR AR RO
(TR IRKE X
ST BEREMERIR
E (R & MR H B A
EE - [ RAEEE
REMBERPHIRE(CRE
g BEE XL
HELREEHEL TCR
SRR R R AT BRI AR
HOCH IR R EE SR AR A
AHE BT AR 86 ) IR B A
ER MBS k70 E e
PR AR MFHEIRZE -
EERRE R T RRH
R 24 m B HIEE
AR FAAETE -

first carbon-neutral tea beverage with regular
flavor “Pure Sugar-free”, and obtained the carbon
neutrality certificate issued by Guangdong Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction Standardization
Promotion Association. At the same time, Master
Kong, Guangdong Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Standardization Promotion Association,
scientific research institutions, upstream and
downstream enterprises, etc. jointly drafted and
launched two domestic first carbon footprint and
carbon neutrality evaluation standards based on tea
drinks, namely, the Technical Specification for Carbon
Footprint Evaluation of Tea Beverages ( {ZS3AZUEHiR
RIFRHERTIRE) ) and the Technical Specification
for Carbon Neutrality Evaluation of Tea Beverage
Products ( (ZERERKLE MR T BRITHRE) ),
which standardized the whole life cycle and detailed
calculation method of tea beverage carbon footprint
for the first time in the industry.
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SIEITEHREETNHER Leading the industry to jointly promote sustainable

R’ development:

o EAD(FH IS G B e Master Kong and Harvard Business School presented
# H 2 Il Master Kong: the case Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles
Growing the Instant Market in China to share Chinese experience with
Noodles Market in global corporate executives.

Chinal - MEHXREES
ENEFHELR -

{Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles Market in China)Z I X f5#;[E
Screenshot of the Document Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles Market in China
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Master Kong shared its experience of sustainable
development at the “Beijing Forum - International
Experience and China Practice” jointly organized by
Peking University and Korea SK Group.

BEMEAEREILRHESZAIHEERER

The Chief Human Resources Officer Sharing Experience on Sustainable Development at Beijing Forum

BERRE 2022 B> %
RIEERERTH2022
PEESGERE®WE ] L

B & 3 2 49 2L B B AR
BITHERMER)  EE
RABETSESEE =
5 B0 AT 5 PRAR € R AR O BX
Thisss - WEEPT A A
B RIEH]EZE

Master Kong and XINHUANET (¥72£48), at the “2022
Enterprise ESG Development Forum” held at the
2022 Boao Forum for Entrepreneurs, jointly released
the Green Action Case Collection ( (#7782l
Z M) ), which collected the successful experiences
on green carbon reduction of various businesses/
divisions under Master Kong in recent years to call on
all stakeholders to assist the “Carbon Peaking and
Carbon Neutrality” goal.

e

(RETBHRIEAR )RS

The Launch Conference of the Green Action Case Collection
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HERT Gaining social recognition:

rEIEER  EK) e At "2022 the First Ecosystem Brand Summit” jointly
M FREREEERS sponsored by Kantar, Caijing Magazine and Said
Prigt& =9 2022 Business School, University of Oxford, Master Kong
[ExREmBIEE ]| - &R became one of the first 12 brands to obtain ecosystem
B A E L ES £ brand certification, and was successfully selected into
MERENNRRREZ the case of “Ecosystem Brand Development Report
— - M AECERE R (2022)" and won the title of “Doer” in the “Ecosystem
R W& (2022)) R 6 - Brand List 2022";

WHE[2022 4 B8 M 2 3R 78

BEITESIETE IE
5%

FREDEEC2022 4 A8 R B AR B 15 B )b B[ B9 T8 TSR
Master Kong won the title of “Doer” in the Ecosystem Brand List 2022
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The 2022 Brand Footprint Report was officially issued
by Kantar Worldpanel and Master Kong ranked among
the top three most chosen brands by consumers in the
PRC for the tenth consecutive year.

RAEEEE T PEEBEE BRI = Mg
Master Kong Ranked among the Top Three Most Chosen Brands by
Consumers in the PRC for the Tenth Consecutive Year

FERADE A T IE1S2022 B
TR SF ILF =2 LRI
FENLERE] KB
H——RESZEENR
MR o

Master Kong successfully won the “2022 Influential
Enterprise of Practicing Lucid Waters and Lush
Mountains are Invaluable Assets (2022E174%/K & 1L
e LRILFZENPERE)", becoming the only
food and beverage enterprise to win this honor.

EREDERK T ES2022 BITHAKFWURESWRILEE N ERRE]
Master Kong Successfully Won the “2022 Influential Enterprise of Practicing Lucid Waters
and Lush Mountains are Invaluable Assets”
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Master Kong won Pepsi International’s “the Best
Bottler” for the Asia-Pacific region in 2021 and
2022, and successfully won the grand prize of Pepsi
International’s “the Best bottler” in 2021;

In November 2022, Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. was included in the Hang Seng Index, showing
its hard power and the investors’ recognition of
Master Kong;

In November 2022, with the advantages of product
innovation and rejuvenation, Master Kong's new
products “Dried Noodles Collection (¥#2%H€)" and
“Royal Feast (f1f & =E)" won the “2021-2022
Outstanding Innovative Products in Chinese Instant
Noodles Industry (2021-20224 EHhEHFER
mITEEFEIFER)" award at the “22nd China
Convenience Food Conference (E-+_—@F &
HERMAE)" hosted by the Chinese Institute of
Food Science and Technology, and the “Octagonal
Corrugated Box (J\AELIE#AE)" project won the
“Special Contribution Award for Environmental
Protection Packaging BRIRE SR B Bh15) .

E-_t_ETENERAAE

The 22nd China Convenience Food Conference
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e 2022[[BEFHE |BFE e On the Dingge Awards 2022 Digital Transformation
RIS EE |h  RANVER Pioneer List, Master Kong won the “2022 ‘New
FEAIOTE g2 AU &0 g2 /K 48 China Enterprise’ All-green Sustainable Development
HE @ RE2022FE[ 5 Enterprise - Annual Green Innovation Enterprise
BB E I 2EEAR Award QO22FE "FHAUFBEME " 2EE A FERRE
BRRME - —FEHBE TE-FEGZEAIFEES" with the AIOT intelligent
BIFT R4 . RR/RAS A energy-saving refrigerator project. We also won the
EEBYBLEEIER - “Operation Pioneer of the Year” by virtue of the
BEFEELEANME o intelligent transformation of accounting business

project.

[2022 o [ 2 |BhoP{L B R) SE 8245 | 520
“Dingge Awards 2022 Digital Transformation Pioneer List "

4. HNEHBHEENRRIEEEM 4.  Stakeholder Communication and Key Issues
R Materiality Assessment
REVEBREZERBEE N Through continuous communication with various
R FEER - BIRERRN stakeholders through various channels, Master Kong
H=HEBEFTHBEMOBENE actively understands the expectations and requirements
Ko NRELEREEBRER of our stakeholders and strives to meet their needs in a
BRIK - DEwmE NS practical manner while developing our business. In 2022,
Tk 020225 - HMEHER we reviewed the importance of each key ESG issue to our
THRIEESGHARZEBAHN AT business development and to our stakeholders.
KEBRRRNREEINEE
Moo
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Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

KHEE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

340
Suppliers

BN REEKE
Government
and Agencies

HERAR
Communities and
the Public

EREEHA#E
Universities
and Research
Institutions
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Descriptions of Stakeholders

HRAEETAERE  BFRENBEAIMIEA
Domestic and overseas legitimate equity and debt
investors to Master Kong

HLERADEZ T E RS EE A ) 5 F RS HO R AN (F 2
BHIAE

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who serve the
Company in a regular basis

BERERMEE TS REEROEE  HHE
R

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally distributing various branded products of
Master Kong

R ESEEEEEDE  BRERRAVARSE
B - EE Sk IERE R P

Companies, stores or individual businesses
that legally supplying production materials,
accessories and office supplies to Master Kong

A BFRPI R R - B BR R BEE
ZEEHE

Food, taxation, environmental protection, safety
and other authorities; local governments; the SFC
and other regulatory agencies

HEMERAESIFRERNRL - ERA - 8K
DR R H A AR R M

Newspapers, TV stations, Internet companies and
other media agencies that have established legal
partnerships with Master Kong

BEMMAARE  HEAR - EIFLETERE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

HIFR AT E S S ERIRARE -
i

Universities, colleges and research institutes
partnering with Master Kong

B HRAEH

M a5 HERE T KO BT SR Ol e

Communication Channels
and Responses

REAE®  0EFHR - EELE  BES
General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements, roadshows, etc.

BITES  BRE EIFI - 8TFM-
EABTIME

Staff activities, staff representative
congress, staff training, staff manuals,
corporate publications, etc.

EmRE - TERAW  BRAERAEEH
5%

Product exhibitions, industry surveys,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

PRABRESGE  BRESERXRH  JRED

&
=@

Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and
visits, etc.

ERERF - XWX - BERBT - FEERE
=

Field visits, official correspondences, policy
implementation, information disclosure,
etc.

ELEGH  XEEE  FEeEREHE
Business interviews, cultural promotion,
featured activities, etc.

HEES  ETEREES  RzE8 &
BEEIHE

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

GCERESHE  BTEE  HIe - B
MRS IR B &

Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects

Stakeholder Expectations and Responses

FRAR AR
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Internal assessment (impact on the business)
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= High

ESCBEBEMNEEMKF
Level of Importance of key ESG Issues

IV. FROM PEACE OF MIND TO NUTRITION AND HEALTH,
ENJOY “LIFE + DELICACY”

1.

Food Safety Control and Construction

Food safety is the foundation to build customers’ brand
trust. The Company places consumers at the center
of its operations and has developed five satisfaction
strategies: “consumers, society, partners, employees, and
shareholders.” Adhering to a “zero tolerance” approach
towards food safety risks, we continue to enhance our risk
management, improve the ethics and professionalism of
our staff and strengthen our product process management.
We believe that building a “Healthy China” requires a
high level of food safety assurance. In this connection,
we have been making continuous efforts in the following
areas to continuously improve Master Kong's food safety
management to the highest level.
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Increase investment in the area of food safety.
Master Kong has invested RMB500 million in the
establishment of the Innovation R&D Centre, which
has been accredited by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), with
over 1,500 food safety monitoring indicators and
over 3.5 million tests per year. At the same time, the
Company's food safety and quality control team has
over 1,700 staff, who monitor the process of the
industry chain through external inspection of raw
material suppliers, food safety assessment inspection,
incoming inspection of raw materials, process
inspection, factory inspection of finished products, and
market sampling of products.

Improve the internal food safety management
system. The Company actively introduced external
consultant resources to improve the authority
of laboratory data of Food Safety Research and
Management Center, strengthened the basic skills
construction of front-line monitoring personnel
and increased the monitoring frequency of product
quality indicators. During this year, we promoted the
review of Master Kong's own standard “K-GMP"
(Good Manufacturing Practices) to strengthen the
construction of food safety and quality management
system. Master Kong formulated the management
measures for retrospective withdrawal of products and
promptly recovered products with quality problems
to actively analyze the causes, thus formulating
improvement countermeasures to improve product
quality and trace various factors in the production
process. Each business treats the withdrawn products
as scrapped products according to the Company’s
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regulations and reports to the local market supervision
and management department. In addition, we
conduct simulated product withdrawal drills every year
and evaluate the results of the drills to strengthen
the construction of product retrospective withdrawal
management system. In 2022, we were not aware of
any products recycled for safety and health reasons.

Launch the food safety publicity month campaign.
Master Kong has held the food safety publicity month
theme campaign for 9 consecutive years, focusing on
the main theme of “safeguarding the bottom line of
safety, investigating potential hazards and ensuring
safety”, continuing to implement the “Five Entrances”
in food safety science popularization (“ A" EZEl
), building “Transparent” factories, raising food
safety awareness and strengthening food safety risk
investigation. The Company launched the “My Quality,
My Pride” campaign to collect exemplary deeds of
quality assurance posts, shoot theme videos and
promote food safety and salt science, and launched
“Food Safety Pictorial” and “Creative Food Safety”
themed parent-child activities for employees to actively
carry out food safety related publicity. During this
year, we promoted the construction of food safety
culture to upstream suppliers for the first time, and led
nearly 20 key raw material suppliers to carry out more
than 30 food safety theme activities.
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Launch the “Food Science Popularization into
Campus” campaign. Master Kong pays close
attention to the popular science work on food safety
for young children, and cooperates with partners to
launch the “2022 Master Kong Care for the Next
Generation Food Safety Guarding Action (20224 &
BT T —RELTEITE)". We have set up a
series of online and offline activities, such as “Public
Welfare Classrooms (RAzakrE)"”, “Food Science
Popularization into Campus (R % B iR E)" and
“Works Collection: | Make a Bow! of Noodles for Mom
and Dad (B ASHMEMIERESE)" to stimulate
young people’s interest in learning about food safety
and enhance their awareness of food safety.

Promote the digitalization of food safety. Master
Kong has continued to improve the construction
of the full traceability system, implementing
corresponding information system in manufacturing
plants, and through continuous system renovation
and technological refinement, the execution
effectiveness of the food safety traceability system has
been continuously enhanced to achieve transparent
management of the flow of raw materials and finished
products. Through cooperation with suppliers and
customers and under the guidance of professional
institutions, the Company has strengthened the
upstream and downstream traceability of products
and launched pilot applications. In order to secure
the effective implementation of protection for
food safety, Master Kong has successively planned
and launched digital information systems such as
Laboratory Information Management System (LIMS),
Product Lifecycle Management (PLM) and Business
Intelligence (BI), and monitored the entire factory area
and production process. In addition, Master Kong
collaborates with external professional organizations
to jointly develop and use “Near-Infrared Analysis
Technology” to detect oil in oil tanks, further
promoting digital construction.
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External cooperation to improve social food
safety governance. Based on Master Kong's
industry status and advanced food safety technology,
the Company was approved to set up Shanghai
Instant Food Engineering Technology Research
Center to undertake food safety testing, research
and development, scientific training and provide
authoritative and impartial third-party services to the
society. Relying on this platform, Master Kong makes
use of quality academic resources at home and abroad
to promote high-end research and development of
food safety technology and the transformation of
R&D results, and actively provides useful references for
the formulation and updating of national food safety
standards. The Company’s Innovation R&D Center was
recognized as a Foreign-funded R&D Center by the
Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce. Master
Kong Master Kong has been cooperating with external
professional institutions and universities to carry out
food safety, product application development, process
optimization and food safety risk research, helping to
improve the level of social food safety governance.
We continue to collaborate with external professional
sensory evaluation companies and laboratories
to establish Master Kong's key odor profiles for
tea beverages and water, and to provide sensory
evaluations and physicochemical proficiency testing
services for carbonated and non-carbonated products
at Pepsi’s beverage factories. We also cooperate with
external professional organizations on microbiology
projects, including microbial strain identification
for spoilage products, microbial identification in
natural mineral water plants, microbial proficiency
testing, and professional skills training for microbial
analysis personnel, to continuously improve our
microbiological testing and analytical capabilities. In
addition, we participate in and cooperate with various
standardization efforts led by industry associations,
government agencies, and other entities.
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7)  Emphasis on food safety talents training. We
select outstanding graduates from key universities
across the country with a major in Food Science and
Safety and focus on increasing the proportion for
complex industry talents. The Company recruits quality
control managers from factories across the country
and provide them with special training in areas such
as food safety standards and regulations, analysis and
testing, risk monitoring and assessment auditing, and
guide staff in the supply chain departments and quality
control departments of each business to implement
the “food safety first” concept in their work, so as to
achieve the goal of total food safety management.

BREVE Rz 2 e 0 E B

Master Kong Food Safety Research and Management Centre Team
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In 2022, all of Master Kong’s businesses continued to
improve their food safety management systems. All
normal operating plants' of the instant noodle business
were certified under the FSSC 22000 (Food Safety System
Certification) and maintained good operation of the system.
Over 90% of the factories in normal operation have been
audited by professional third party certification bodies, to
ensure the safety of the oil used in the processing of instant
noodles. The instant noodle business continued to improve
its TAIB+] internal audit terms based on the American
Institute of Baking (AIB) audit standard. Comprehensive

A factory in normal operation is one that has been in operation for at least
6 months during the year and is not in a state of suspension or lockout.
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food safety risk assessments and formal inspections were
conducted at AIB+ demonstration plants in Tianjin and
Hangzhou, using benchmarking management model to
drive all production bases to improve their food safety
management levels. In addition, Jiangmen plant of the
instant noodle business was certified the food safety system
under the Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point, HACCP.
All normal operating plants of Master Kong's beverage
business and Pepsi’s beverage business are certified under
ISO 22000 (Food Safety Certification System), FSSC 22000
(Food Safety Certification System) and Hazard Analysis
Critical Control Point (HACCP). Among them, 59 Master
Kong’'s bottled water manufacturing plants and 29
Aquafina plants have been annually certified by the National
Sanitation Foundation (NSF) and reviewed by IBWA, The
International Bottled Water Association. All of our Pepsi
beverage plants have participated in and successfully passed
the AIB annual food safety audit. In addition, the Hangzhou
Dingjin plant was certified as a CNAS microbiological
laboratory. The bakery business plant obtained ISO 9001
(Quality Management System) and I1SO 22000 (Food Safety
Management System) certifications and the system is
operating normally and passed the 2022 annual system
certificate renewal supervision audit.

Health and Nutrition Product Development and
Expansion

China highly values the health of the people and prioritizes
it in its development strategy and sets the visionary goal of
“building a healthy China” by 2035. As a leading company
in China’s food and beverage industry, Master Kong
understands the significance of improving the nutrition and
health of its products. We deeply recognize that with the
continuous upgrading of consumption, consumers are no
longer only concerned about the convenience and safety of
products, but are increasingly focusing on the nutrition and
health quality of products.
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The Company actively responded to various national
nutrition and health policies, including the National Nutrition
Plan (2017-2030), and incorporated nutrition and health
into various R&D activities such as product formula design,
product innovation and technical cooperation. During this
year, in terms of the R&D of instant noodles, Master Kong
supported the “Three Reductions and Three Kinds of Health
(=R =1%)" campaigns, promoting products to reduce
oil, salt and sugar without using preservatives through
technological innovation, and refining the formulas of more
than 100 product categories such as “Classic Series”. In
terms of beverage R&D, we have completed the R&D and
marketing of new sugar-free tea products such as “Master
Kong Pure Sugar-free - Yunwu Green Tea” and “Master
Kong Pure Sugar-free - Jasmine Tea”. Compared with
traditional tea products, we reduce the use of food additives
to further ensure the safety of consumers.

Master Kong is committed to developing “small but
beautiful” products to meet the needs of consumers in
pursuing a “healthy diet and exquisite life”. During this year,
we launched “Mini Bucket” instant noodles with a capacity
of 60% of the conventional capacity, as well as mini bottles
of “Master Kong Pure Zero Sugar - Yunwu Green Tea”
(350ml) and mini bottles of “Master Kong Pure Zero Sugar
- Jasmine Tea” (350ml), which are more portable and
exclusive, and more friendly to the environment, serving the
healthy eating needs of different groups.
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Products of Smaller Packs to Meet the Needs of Younger Consumers
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Spread Health Concept

Master Kong is committed to promoting Chinese Food &
Beverage Culture and continuing to provide consumers with
high-quality and diversified food and beverage products
to enjoy a healthy lifestyle and lead a better life. We fully
support and actively respond to the national nutrition and
health policy, and continue to conduct relevant research
together with various partners to meet the needs of
different groups of people for nutrition and health, actively
advocate the diet concept of reasonable diet and balanced
eating and moving, guide consumers to make suitable
food choices, and promote the nutrition and health of the
general consumer population together with the government
and industry partners.

During this year, based on the principle of “Life + Delicacy”,
Master Kong continued to assist the development of China’s
winter sports, and opened the “Champion Canteen Noodle
Restaurant” to provide nutritional and dietary support
services for winter workers and friends at home and abroad
who participated in winter sports. In addition, we promoted
Chinese food culture to the world through authoritative
media and actively promoted the concept of sports nutrition
diet to enhance brand image and influence, gaining more
than 560 million exposures.

== NP

HERE
Champion Canteen Noodle Restaurant
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Service to Consumers

We comply with the requirements of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests, the Personal Information Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
and focus on listening to the voices of our customers while
establishing and maintaining smooth communication
channels to understand their expectations and aspirations.
The Company has set up a customer service team to
facilitate the collection and feedback of suggestions,
enquiries and demands from consumers. Customer feedback
is collected through our 400 hotline, corporate website,
Sina Weibo, etc. The customer service team has established
standardized operating processes such as the Customer
Service Management Procedure to manage customer
feedback. By cooperating with the responsible departments
in problem solving, the customer service team is required
to respond to customer feedback within the stipulated
timeframe, continuously track and follow up until the case
is closed, and visit customers to understand their satisfaction
and ensure that the issues raised by customers are properly
resolved. The customer service team and relevant business
departments regularly sort out customer feedback, identify
and analyze common problems, and develop optimzed
solutions. During the year, Master Kong received 12,545
customer complaints, with a satisfactory resolution rate of
96%.
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We communicate with our customers and provide high
quality services while protecting their privacy. We implement
systematical and processed management of the information
, set an access limit to client’s information and strictly adhere
to the principle of confidentiality of customer information. In
terms of capturing and recording customer information, we
do not record or keep important and sensitive information
about our customers. In terms of information access, we
endeavour to ensure data security in our internal systems
and implement account login privilege settings to restrict the
access rights and conditions of use of consumer information
by our internal staff to ensure information security.

Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

Master Kong shapes its product image and continuously
enhances its brand influence through responsible advertising
and intellectual property management. We abide by laws
and regulations such as the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other national standards such as the GB 7718-
2011 Labelling of Pre-packaged Foods to standardize
the contents of advertisements and labels and protect
intellectual property rights.

We strictly control the legal performance of advertising
publishers and operators with cooperative relationships to
avoid exaggerated, false or misleading publicity. To ensure
that the promotional content is true and compliant, the
Company requires any external promotional materials and
label designs to be reviewed by various departments such
as legal affairs, research and development, and quality.
And the materials and label designs will be published after
departments have reviewed, so as to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of consumers. In the area of brand
promotion and product marketing, the Company continues
to improve its control mechanism, which requires its partners
and other advertising publishers and operators to perform in
good faith and compete fairly.
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Master Kong actively practices responsible marketing. We
have established the Product Promotion and Marketing
Manual to standardize product promotion activities and
maintain transparent communication with consumers. We
organize responsible marketing related training and regularly
organize special training on marketing strategies and other
activities to enhance employees’ awareness of compliance.
In addition, we regularly conduct audit review on marketing
work every year, conduct compliance self-inspection on
a monthly basis and identify risk points to continuously
improve the control and supervision mechanism.

In terms of intellectual property management, Master Kong
deeply understands the importance of protecting intellectual
property rights, thus comprehensively implementing its
intellectual property management measures and taking
action to defend its rights. In 2022, we actively grasped
the trends of intellectual property rights in the industry and
attached importance to the accumulation and application
of intellectual property rights, so as to better develop the
Company's intellectual property strategy. We collaborated
with a number of professional bodies to continuously
protect all aspects of intellectual property, including patents
and trademarks, and applied for registration and protection
of our core trademarks in many countries and regions
around the world. We improve the intellectual property
monitoring line by registering with the relevant authorities in
a timely manner, retrieving intellectual property information
before all kinds of new products go on the market and
conducting relevant analysis. We respect and protect the
intellectual property rights of others while protecting our
own intellectual property rights by severely cracking down
on infringement. We also regularly publicize and train
employees on intellectual property rights and enhance
their professionalism and awareness of intellectual property
protection to safeguard the Company’s brand reputation.
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Supplier ESG Management

We value the sustainability development of suppliers and
deeply understand the leading and driving role of our own
behaviour on our suppliers. The Company established
a comprehensive supplier management system that
monitors various aspects of the suppliers (including their
access qualification, production and operation and social
responsibility), which is continuously refining our supplier
management capabilities, and we are committed to working
together with corporates from upstream and downstream
of the value chain to bring high quality products to our
consumers.

In terms of supplier recruitment, Master Kong has
formulated supplier development and management methods
that cover all of the suppliers according to the types of
suppliers, clarified the supplier introduction process and
requirements. In the current year, the Raw Material Supplier
Development and Management Measures were revised to
refine the supplier introduction process and requirements.
We have established supplier basic information files and
evaluated their qualifications in accordance with the Supplier
Evaluation - Information Evaluation Form. On-site audits
of suppliers are carried out to examine and evaluate their
factory environment, plant and facilities, production and
quality management, waste discharge, and environmental
and occupational health and safety management levels. To
assess the level of food safety management of suppliers, we
conduct sampling inspections during the on-site inspection
phase, using both external inspections by third-party
testing organizations and Master Kong's own inspections
to conduct rigorous screening. Only those who pass all
the above assessments will be qualified as Master Kong's
suppliers.
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In terms of day-to-day supplier management, Master
Kong has been improving approaches to supplier appraisal
operations, which strengthens supplier supervision and
conduct assessment to each supplier’s supply quality,
delivery, service and cooperation. In 2022, we added new
review items such as supplier labor policy evaluations and
updated corresponding assessment scoring criteria. At
the same time, we conducted grading assessments of our
suppliers and developed coaching strategies, as well as
implemented reward and punishment measures based on
monthly and annual appraisal results. In terms of supplier
environmental and social risk management policies and
practices, we continue to promote our supplier partners’
awareness and understanding of the Master Kong’s Basic
Agreement with Supplier on Environmental and Social
Compliance. The acceptance and signing of this agreement
by suppliers is a prerequisite for establishing a supply
partnership with Master Kong. We require our suppliers to
meet relevant environmental and social laws and regulations
where they operate, and to commit to the “nine mandatory
requirements” for environmental and social compliance,
including minimum age of employment, forced and bonded
labour, business ethics, serious environmental pollution,
serious health or safety hazards, working hours, wages,
employee injury insurance and food safety. In addition, we
have signed the Anti-Commercial Bribery Pledge with our
suppliers and are committed to creating transparent and
clean supplier partnerships. During the reporting period,
we had signed the Master Kong’s Basic Agreement with
Supplier on Environmental and Social Compliance with all
of the suppliers to manage their environmental and social
risks as well as conduct continuous supervision on their
performance of the agreement.
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Master Kong applied digitalization to improve corporate
comprehensive competence. We applied digital methods
to establish an intelligent supply management system,
which covered parts including upstream and downstream
procurement, transportation and production. Through the
implementation of the Supplier Relationship Management
(SRM) system, the supplier data sharing center can manage
the supplier data in a unified way, reducing duplication
of data in the system, and all divisions can share qualified
supplier resources through the SRM system. The system
can realize digital management covering the entire bidding
process, including issuing biddings, introducing suppliers,
signing and approving the reserve price, purchasing bidding,
and approving the winning bid, so as to achieve paperless
operation, reduce supplier management cost, strengthen
the entire process of suppliers’ coordination and integration,
and enhance the transparency and agility of the value
chain. We carry out SRM system training for suppliers and
related personnel of Master Kong to enhance trainees’
understanding of system functions and continuously
improve the utilization efficiency of the system. In addition,
we continue to promote the implementation of Material
Requirement Planning (MRP), which automatically calculates
the raw material requirements, reduces the labor cost of
manually calculating the raw material requirement planning
and improves the accuracy. We purchase according to the
plan and arrange the production line operation reasonably,
so as to realize stable production, avoid overload or idle
operation of the production line, increase the flexibility of
production scheduling, improve production efficiency and
service quality.

Number of suppliers by region

HERHE

Numbe of

Supplier location suppliers
Mainland China 948
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 4
Foreign regions 5
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Anti-corruption Management and Ethics

Master Kong focuses on enhancing its compliance
management, endeavoring to create a workplace
environment with integrity, honesty and transparency. The
Company strictly complies with the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations, and has formulated anti-corruption-
related management systems such as the Management
Measures on Employees’ Integrity and Self-discipline
Behaviour, and the Management Measures on Contract
Inspection and Review, and continuously improves the anti-
corruption management system, avoiding any direct or
indirect illegal commercial acts including corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, etc.

Master Kong prohibits directors and all employees from
engaging in or profiting from any illegal or unethical
economic behaviours and advocates all of our employees
to abide by professional ethics and moral principles. We
demand our employees and suppliers to sign the Anti-
Commercial Bribery Commitment Letter, which clearly
states that they will not offer or accept bribes and maintain
a good working environment. We enhance our ability
to deal with the relevant issues, constantly improve our
employees’ awareness of anti-corruption, and continue to
build and promote a culture of corporate integrity. In 2022,
we trained all employees on the online learning platform
based on the Measures for the Management Measures on
Employees’ Integrity and Self-discipline Behaviour which
was included in the training for new employees, with more
than 58,000 participants. In addition, we conducted on-site
integrity training for employees, and all the employees who
participated in the training signed the Honesty, Integrity and
Self-discipline Assurance Statement after the training. We
also published articles and shared anti-fraud cases on the
enterprise WeChat platform and online learning platform,
and sent the Audit Fraud Investigation Report to the senior
management, constantly strengthening the directors’
and employees’ awareness of integrity and compliance to
enhance their awareness of business ethics.
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In response to commercial bribery, fraud and other illegal
acts, Master Kong has established a special reporting
channel to encourage internal and external personnel to
monitor each other, and participate in the construction
of the Company’s business ethics and compliance culture
to resist malpractices. In response to external extortion,
fraud and other incidents, the Company has formulated
a special emergency plan and handling mechanism to
improve its ability to deal with related problems. We set up
a Corporate Security Team under the Audit Department,
which is fully responsible for the analysis, investigation and
handling of whistleblowing cases. We have formulated
the Whistleblowing Operation Procedures to regulate
the process of handling reports, the principles of reward
and the relevant requirements for the protection of
whistleblowers, and strictly prohibit any form of retaliation
against whistleblowers to ensure the effective transmission
of whistleblowing information. The relevant employees
of the Audit Department are also required to sign the
Code of Professional Ethics and Disciplinary Guidelines
for Audit Office Personnel and promise to keep the
informer’s information confidential. During this year, the
Corporate Security Team completed the investigation of
44 fraud reporting cases, and conducted the evaluation
and inspection of business ethics and professional ethics
for special audit operations such as internal control and
risk management, supplier and quality management, and
procurement management.

In 2022, the Company discovered 1 case of fraud and illegal
possession by employees of its subsidiaries, which was
transferred to the public security organ for handling. The
case was tried by the judicial authorities, and the employee
involved was sentenced to fixed-term imprisonment and
fined, and ordered to return and compensate for the
Company's losses.
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Brand Breakthrough
A Mellow and Eternal National Classic Flavor

Master Kong Braised Beef Noodles adheres to the brand
image of the Chinese nation with its classic rich delicacy and
fiery Chinese red, and unremittingly promotes social justice to
inspire young people in the new era to achieve themselves.
In 2022, Master Kong and Lay Zhang collaborated on a
new single Move Up to upgrade its brand proposition to
“Move up, we need this flavor”, and combined music and
dance with products to show the positive youthful vitality of
contemporary young people with a youthful atmosphere.

ALREARPAE] B2 - B A (EK ]

Roasted Beef Noodles “Move up, we need this flavor”

TR BT AR
& HRETEE

FE B0 8 R RO B Wk B 1T
Ao B TIEMERTAMX
[BRLZEZ IHER] [30 AFH
mERMEEXFEERTAY ]
#wiaoE | BRI BREE
— R ML HEE - BEE
BHXERE  RERIIKED
M2 B 5 R
[E R E R

Understanding fans’ interests thoroughly, staying
close to hot topics and stimulating independent
communication

With a deep insight into fans’ interests and behaviors,
Master Kong held a series of brand marketing activities such
as "Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” x “National Actress” Andy
Yang (#5£8), "New Product Royal Feast 30th Anniversary”
x “Hot Topic Character, Yonghao Luo (Z&7k’%) and “Soup
Chef x Cat’s Kitchen (HE&#&2)", which stimulates social
interaction in the circle and attracts a large number of fans
to participate, promoting brand goodwill and preference of

Master Kong.
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“Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” x “National Actress” Andy Yang
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Master Kong pays attention to the development of
the sports industry all year round, and actively turns its
attention into practical support for the competition, fully
demonstrating its brand responsibility. During the 2022
World Cup, Master Kong launched scene marketing, closely
followed the fans’ consumption link, and jointly created
content with leading social media platform, forming a
hot topic: “Watch the ball with a bowl of Master Kong
tonight”, which became one of the “out of the circle”
advertisements during the World Cup. At the same time,
Master Kong's instant noodles are convenient, fast and
hearty, which perfectly matches the tension and excitement
when watching the ball late at night, making “#How cool it
is to watch the ball and eat instant noodles late at night#"
quickly become a hot topic during the World Cup, causing
emotional resonance among consumers.
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Launching low carbon products and exploring new
ideas of sustainable development

Master Kong actively mitigates environmental impact and
introduces low-carbon concepts into its product concepts
based on its own development, which demonstrates Master
Kong's determination to make nature evergreen and
practice sustainable development. In 2022, Master Kong
held the “Tea Beverage Carbon Neutrality Path Practice
Achievement Sharing Meeting ” in Shanghai, releasing the
first carbon-neutral tea drink “Master Kong Pure Sugar-
free” and the specific path to realize carbon neutrality of
this tea beverage. We, together with professional scientific
research institutions, jointly launched two domestic first
carbon footprint and carbon neutrality evaluation standards
based on tea drinks, namely, Technical Specification for
Carbon Footprint Evaluation of Tea Beverages and Technical
Specification for Carbon Neutrality Evaluation of Tea
Beverage Products to provide innovative reduction for the
food and beverage industry.

2022 FRBRBENBCEBRES T8
2022 Tea Beverage Carbon Neutrality Path Practice Achievement Sharing Meeting
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At the 2022 Carbon Reduction and Environmentally
Sustainable Development Forum and Launch of Master
Kong's Label-Free Products, Master Kong launched a
“label-free” beverage that practiced the concept of low
carbon. The packaging design of this product complies
with GB7718-2011 National Food Safety Standards — Pre-
packaged Food Labeling General Provisions. This product is
sold with the whole box as the minimum sales unit, and its
production batch number, label and product information
are printed on the outside of the box, and the product
name and shelf-life information are marked on the label-
free beverage bottle by laser printing technology, which is
convenient for consumers to drink in a single bottle after
purchasing the whole box and reduce carbon from raw
materials. The introduction of “label-free” products not only
reduces the use of PVC labels avoids the problem of ink
printing pollution, but also spreads the concept of carbon
reduction to the public to create a new fashion of green
consumption with consumers.
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As a leading company in China’s food and beverage industry,
Master Kong actively takes responsibility for environmental
protection, identifies and complies with the requirements of
national environmental protection-related laws and regulations,
establishes management policies systems and management
framework in the areas of environmental target setting, energy
and water conservation, emission and carbon reduction, plastic
reduction and packaging management, digital production, climate
change response and sustainable raw material procurement,
implements various project practices to reduce its negative
impact on the environment, and continuously contributes to the
realization of “Keep Our Nature Green”.

1.  Setting Environmental Management Targets?

Guided by the Company’s sustainable development
philosophy, we have set our environmental development
targets based on the actual situation of our production and
operation, combined with analysis of past environmental
data and planning for future corporate development,
including:

Energy and water consumption:

e Using 2017 as the base year, the combined energy
consumption per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
RMB'million) will decrease by 12% in 2025.

Target process in 2022: The combined energy
consumption per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
RMB'million) decreased by 11.6% compared with
2017.

e Using 2017 as the base year, water abstraction per
RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/RMB'million) will
decrease by 8% in 2025.

Progress on the target for 2022: Water abstraction
per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/RMB’million)
decreased by 15.6% compared to 2017, and the
target has been achieved ahead of schedule. We have
updated our target : using 2017 as the base year,
water abstraction per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
RMB'million) will decrease by 20% in 2025.

2 The environmental key performance indicators, including greenhouse gas
emissions, were formally disclosed by Master Kong in 2017, so 2017 was
chosen as the base year for setting environmental management targets.
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Waste:

*  The recycling rate (actual sales volume/theoretical
production) of the main production-based raw
material waste is not less than 97%.

Target process in 2022: The target has been
achieved. In 2023, the Company will still set this as the
target and conduct waste management accordingly.

Emission:

e Using 2017 as the base year, greenhouse gas (Scope
1 and Scope 2) emissions per RMB'million of revenue
(tonnes/RMB’million) will decrease by 18% in 2025.

Target process in 2022: Greenhouse gas (Scope 1
and Scope 2) emissions per RMB'million of revenue
(tonnes/RMB'million) decreased by 16.4% compared
with 2017.

e  Emission concentrations of major air pollutants
(nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides, soot and dust) from
all plants meet or exceed national standards.

Target process in 2022: The target has been
achieved. In 2023, the Company will still set this as
the target and conduct air pollutant management
accordingly.

° Wastewater (COD) discharge concentrations meet or
exceed national standards.

Target process in 2022: The target has been
achieved. In 2023, the Company will still set this as
the target and conduct wastewater management
accordingly.

Master Kong will maintain continuous monitoring of the
progress of achieving the above-mentioned environmental
targets, and regularly review and report on the achievement
of the environmental targets.

Energy and Water Conservation Management

According to the planning arrangements made by the
Sustainable Development Committee and its working groups
at the beginning of the year, the Supply Chain Centre of
each business of Master Kong implemented energy and
water conservation projects at each production base, and
set up full-time management personnel at each production
base.
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3,500 8 35 million kWh ‘

Master Kong has formulated the Energy Management
Code, the Energy Unit Consumption Assessment and
Evaluation Method, the Energy Management Team
System and the Energy Management Performance Penalty
System as the basis for the management process, the
reference for work implementation and the guidance for
energy saving performance assessment of energy saving
work. We also clarify the responsibilities of relevant units,
improve unreasonable processes and control measures,
promote key energy-saving projects, and reduce energy
consumption. Performance management indicators for
energy consumption management have been set up in
each business and production base to better assess the
implementation of energy conservation, and the effect
of energy saving and consumption reduction has been
incorporated into the performance appraisal indicators of
relevant posts and combined with incentives to enhance
the importance of energy saving work by staff in relevant
posts. We track daily production energy consumption and
investigate the causes of any abnormalities in the indicators,
and make improvements accordingly. We review and analyze
the production energy consumption indicators against the
corresponding period and budget indicators every month,
so as to optimize and adjust them in time. We organize
relevant training and share energy saving experiences to
achieve continuous improvement of the Company’s energy
saving management level.

20 plants of Master Kong's beverage business and 13 plants
of Pepsi’s beverage business were honoured as “Excellent
Energy-saving Enterprise” by the China Beverage Industry
Association for their respective outstanding energy saving
management achievements.

68 A 60,000 m? ’

Pepsi’s plants in Chongging recycle heat energy
from the high energy consumption machines,

The Instant Noodles Business has modified the
existing steamer recovery system to save 97%
steam by recovering clean steam from the residual
heat of frying. The technique has now been
applied by 61 production lines in factories across
the nation, saving a total of 200,000 tonnes of
steam per year.

Master Kong Beverage Business promotes EMS
energy management system in the factory,
focusing on the electricity saving project of high
pressure air compressors. Through measures
such as optimizing equipment start-up, setting
reasonable blowing pressure and adjusting
equipment loading rate, the factory achieved
a reduction in power consumption per unit of
product, saving a total of approximately 35 million
kWh of electricity in the year.

reducing steam consumption in the thermos
bottle machines and saving approximately
60,000 m? of natural gas annually.
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In terms of water conservation management, the Company
has formulated the Water Conservation Management
System as a reference and basis for carrying out water
conservation work and requires production staff to operate
in strict compliance with the system. We put water saving
and consumption reduction into the performance evaluation
index of key supervisors of factory directors in order to
implement effective water saving. During this year, Master
Kong's factories regularly carried out a “water balance tests”
to understand the current situation of water consumption in
the water supply network and each unit, and based on the
measured water quantity data, we judge the reasonable level
of water consumption and take corresponding measures.
We identified production processes and equipment with high
water consumption, strengthened detailed control, actively
promoted key water conservation projects, such as the
utilization of reclaimed water after sewage treatment, and
promoted them nationwide. At the same time, we actively
promote awareness and ways to conserve water resources,
continue to carry out exchanges and experience sharing
among factories across the country, and strive to integrate
the concept of “Cherishing, Conserving and Protecting
Water” into all aspects of our daily production work, so as to
promote the common improvement of internal management
level.

The 17 plants of the Master Kong Beverages Business and
13 plants of the Pepsi Beverages Business were once again
awarded the title of “Excellent Water-saving Enterprise” by
the China Beverage Industry Association for their excellent
management practices.

79,000 79,000 tonnes ‘
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The noodle-producing plant of the Instant Noodles
Business achieved the cooling and circulating use
of water, reducing operating cost and soft water
consumption by 79,000 tonnes.

18, 900"@ 18,900 tonnes ‘

ok -

Master Kong Beverage Business’ Xi‘an plant
refined the cooling water recovery process of the
separator, which starts the recovery pump when
the cooling water reaches a certain water level,
and returns the cooling water to the recovery
water tank, which can save about 18,900 tonnes
of RO water per year.
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The Pepsi factory in Guangzhou recycled
concentrated water from reverse osmosis
system to increase the water utilization rate and
reduce wastewater discharge, reducing water
consumption by approximately 20,000 tonnes.
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Emission and Carbon Reduction Management

For the management of exhaust gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and waste emissions, we comply with the
relevant laws and regulations of the country and the place
of operation, including the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
the Comprehensive Emission Standards for Air Pollutants,
the Technical Guidelines for Self-Monitoring of Emission
Units, the Emission Standards for Boiler Air Pollutants, the
Emission Standards for Odour Pollutants, the Emission
Control Standards for Volatile Organic Compounds from
Industrial Enterprises, etc. The internal management system
for exhaust gas, greenhouse gas, waste water and waste
emissions of Master Kong has been formulated as the
basis for management and control. We clearly defined
the management responsibilities of relevant positions,
continuously used advanced management tools, optimized
production processes, introduced advanced environmental
protection facilities and technologies, and carried out various
specialized environmental protection projects to mitigate the

rE JEE In- depth treatment ’
: BHET

Under the premise that the exhaust gas is
discharged up to standard, Instant Noodles

Business plant realizes the deep disposal of
exhaust gas by setting up processes such as
exhaust gas cooling and dehumidification.
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{8 &R DuiTFﬁHIWDTﬂﬁEFA H

Tqﬁ’ff‘;ﬁ i

22EE ‘(Fﬁﬁ%ézréiix
BER RPERNA 1,100 W8 ©

Master Kong collects and disposes of the exhaust
gas from the process of producing the blowing
and preform for the Master Kong Beverages
Business to be environment-friendly and comply
with the law and regulation. By the end of 2022,
we have installed 90 sets of disposal equipment
on an aggregated basis, reducing the emission of
approximately 1,100 tonnes of exhaust gas per
year.

4.3MWf 4.3 tonnes ’

KA 4.3 MF o

The Pepsi factory in Guangzhou has installed
exhaust gas disposal system for wastewater
treatment and the blowing and preform
processing processes, respectively, reducing the
emission of approximately 0.4 ton of NH,, 0.02
ton of H,S and 4.3 tonnes of total non-methane
hydrocarbons per year.
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impact of production and operation on the environment. We
commission qualified units to conduct regular environmental
monitoring to ensure that all pollutants are discharged in
accordance with standards. For hazardous waste generated,
we have commissioned qualified professional units to
conduct disposal in compliance. For non-hazardous waste,
we strived to reduce waste generation at the source and
promote the recycling and utilization of resources. At the
same time, we upgrade the skills of relevant personnel and
implement maintenance work for treatment equipment to
achieve stable operation of the wastewater and waste gas
treatment systems.

At the “2022 Enterprise ESG Development Forum " held
at 2022 Boao Forum for Entrepreneurs, Master Kong
and Xinhuanet jointly released the Green Action Case
Collection (hereinafter referred to as the “Collection "),
which collected the successful experiences on green carbon
reduction of various divisions under Master Kong in recent
years. Through five major chapters of the Collection, Master
Kong's green and low-carbon emission reduction cases in
the whole life cycle of products such as source planting,
factory operation, production, product design, logistics
operation, and after-sales recycling are sorted out and
carefully introduced, as a beneficial reference to the green
development of the industry.

AN ECR EITB RIS ) B M ER

The Release Ceremony of the Green Action Case Collection of Master Kong
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Plastic Reduction and Packaging Management

Master Kong actively responds to the national plastic
reduction policy and requirement, supports corresponding
environmental protection policies, and refines packaging
management at all stages of the product production cycle,
reducing the use of plastics and packaging materials while
securing the satisfaction for product safety and quality
requirements, promoting the realisation of lightweight,
recyclable, degradable and renewable packaging material,
in order to reduce negative impact on the environment and
implement the concept of sustainable development.

At the product production stage, the Company has
developed internal management systems such as the Raw
Material Overconsumption Standard, actively conducted
relevant research and exploration from various components
of product packaging, continuously implementing a series of
improvement programs to reduce plastic usage and weight,
utilizing more environmentally friendly packaging materials,
and reducing the use of packaging materials and generation
of waste from the source.

In the product transportation stage, we analysed the
product cargo transfer process and changed some products
from bagging to tanker transport to reduce the unnecessary
use of packaging in the transportation process.

In terms of waste recycling and disposal, we have developed
systems such as the Factory Waste Management Measures
as a basis for management, sorting, organizing and storing
waste packaging on different materials and types, and
handing over waste packaging to qualified waste disposal
units for recycling, secondary processing and harmless
treatment.
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AEEHMMRABERBER

Foci of our work on plastic reduction and packaging

YEIREI TIERE management during the year include:
FEmEE
INSTANT NOODLES BUSINESS
M BMARMERES #TEEEN RO BREMERE  AZRHDLRRHEMNREMEEE
REMKEEHZ - B E  Reduce packaging materials waste by  SRFAMELR - B BRREHRE
Y FE A recycling cartons Reducing the use of cassava

Change flour, starch raw
materials’ packaging from
bagging to tanker transport
of raw materials, reducing the
consumption of packaging

materials

FEEERmER

starch and salt raw material
packaging bags by switching
to tonne bags for raw materials
packaging

MASTER KONG BEVERAGE BUSINESS

MEERPVCHE B RS ERE
PETGME - BIERRPE - BF
B PYCHARE A %) 3,126 MR
Optimization of bottle labels from
PVC to easily degradable PETG
material, reducing environmental
impact and reducing the use of
PVC bottle labels by approximately
3,126 tonnes per year

330ml % 500m| % 16 52 18 & 8 o
MERERREI(E  BIFAEF
AR PET #1249 3,400 1
Reducing the weight of 330ml
and 500ml beverage bottles is
expected to reduce the use of PET
material by approximately 3,400
tonnes per year

BERMEX
PEPSI BEVERAGE BUSINESS

BREMMER R D
0.15g /@ - REEERAER
EFL02RE BFERD
JR K PEFEM K9 340 12
Reducing cap weight of sterile
products by 0.15g per cap,
and carbonated products by
0.2g per cap, reducing raw
material PE consumption by
approximately 340 tonnes per
year

MO IWPETMEREHR25%
FEZE235%  §FRIPETH
FHEE R 4) 413 R

Reducing PET cap weight from
2.5g to 2.3g in some factories,
reducing PET material use by
approximately 413 tonnes per
year

PET 500m| B EEME =Ml 23.2
mEEE21% - FRDPETH
FHsE 4 219 1R

Reducing PET 500ml Pepsi sugar-
free empty bottles from 23.2g
to 21g, reducing the use of PET
material by approximately 219
tonnes per year

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

N BT ERARA R
Q

FEAKPET 1LZHRER 35 2R
E3BRMAATE

Complete testing of PET 1L
empty bottles from 35g to

339
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With a high emphasis on product innovation and R&D,
we have launched the initiative “Octagonal corrugated
boxes” for product packaging, which can reduce packaging
materials consumption by changing external packaging
boxes structure. In 2022, we have upgraded boxes of
certain products into octagonal corrugated boxes, saving
approximately 42 tonnes of base paper for instant noodle
business and approximately 249.3 tonnes of boxes for
beverage business.

NBEFERHEEE

Octagonal Corrugated Boxes Packaging

BMFEEEYLIUF R - &=
AERHEERIFEPETERF
RIS I 1E © 2022 FF + FERIE
BRGh B X 41,100 ME PET B2
RETMIERE  ZKIERM
HPETHR - @4 LA R PETE T
THR- B E=RmEEBREPET
MXBERBHBEEENE
TR - AERBERK
Gk THR - BEBRER
REBERR - HEFREL 19.501
BEEIBRINEE °

We are working with partners on packaging material
recycling and PET recycling research. In 2022, the Master
Kong Beverages Business processed about 1,100 tons of PET
waste, which was turned into non-food grade PET bottles,
fibers, and rPET employee uniforms. Pepsi Beverage Business
handed over waste PET bottles to units with plastic recycling
qualifications for recycling into recycled polyester fabric,
workwear, packaging plastic and other environmentally
friendly recycled goods, reducing the production of 19.5
tonnes of waste plastic in total.

EREMEERA rPET MR EME T IRIREIRIE - AR - ¥ B RSREBEMNARE
Master Kong uses rPET Materials to make Environmentally-friendly Baseball Caps,
Windproof Clothing, Backpacks and other Recycled peripherals
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Digital Production Management

We adhere to the corporate culture of science, harmony,
win-win cooperation and performance, and build a
digitalized supply chain system that fits the culture of
Master Kong. By applying scientific tools and management
methods, we are gradually advancing digital production
management, improving enterprise performance, and
achieving efficient collaboration and harmonious win-win
situations between upstream and downstream partners.

In 2022, Master Kong completed equipment renovation
and digitalization of daily business processes in its digital
pilot factories, realizing real-time monitoring, management,
and maintenance of equipment status, as well as real-time
data collection and automatic analysis of energy usage.
In the production process, we used intelligent equipment
for weighing and feeding, which reduces manpower and
realizes the product traceability in the deployment process,
improving the accuracy and visualization of the production
process. In the product quality management process, we
have already implemented electronic inspection forms for
some products and plan to update inspection equipment to
achieve automatic data collection. In the future, the digital
factory will establish a full production process from material
input to shipment, collect all quality-related data, build a
quality database, and realize the full life-cycle traceability of
product quality.
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Master Kong applies intelligent logistics Transportation
Management System (TMS) to centrally dispatch and
manage factories, carriers, and drivers in the logistics
process, and establishes an information-based, automatic
and intelligent logistics management and control system
with functions such as automatic order acceptance, vehicle
appointment, pre-stocking in the warehouse, intelligent
on-route monitoring, transport route optimization and
performance management, which effectively improves
the management level in logistics transportation costs,
efficiency, cost and service, and promotes the development
of green transportation.

We apply image recognition technology in our warehouse
system, using cameras to recognize the EAN (European
Article Number) codes and spray codes of product boxes,
and matching them with production order numbers to
achieve automatic warehousing, which effectively improves
the accuracy of warehousing. In 2022, we will upgrade TMS
to monitor the on-route trajectory and key logistics nodes of
distribution vehicles in real time and with precision. We will
also connect TMS with the existing system, arrange loading
and unloading work reasonably, and allow distributors to
query the logistics nodes of their orders in real-time, while
ensuring service quality and greatly enhancing the user
experience.

Responding to Climate Change

Climate change is a common challenge facing the world,
and acting on climate is urgent. Master Kong takes active
measures to identify and evaluate the risks and opportunities
brought by climate change, establish risk response
mechanisms, and seize opportunities to promote sustainable
corporate development, driving positive impacts throughout
the value chain with upstream and downstream partners.
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We identify and analyze the physical risks brought by

climate changes, including the impact of extreme weather

such as floods, droughts, typhoons, heavy rains and

snowstorms on material procurement, production, storage

and transportation, and personnel safety, and establish risk

response measures.

Table 1. Identification and response measures for physical

risks

22, B 4 3

Risks description

BHRRER R D E N ER
BEPE - RELEEE
REREE TR  RMAER
R - RO AN LR o

The adverse weather conditions
may lead to delayed or
interrupted supply of raw
materials, affecting production
schedules;

The reduction in agricultural
production may result in higher
prices of raw materials, which in
turn results in rising production
costs.

2 Bz P

Measures to risks

FER—-RE - RARKES
FeaRttEBRERPEIER
% BRHERRYEHER
REREZM - RN A E
PR
FRERDEERITE T &
FIRRRTERARM KA
B HARHHEERELARE
B RREARREFHET
e EmET A RRIRATHE
TEERS - PRI RN -
We maintain long-term
partnerships with a number
of qualified suppliers for the
same raw materials at the same
time to ensure a wide range of
suppliers’ raw material supply,
thereby mitigating the risk of
interruptions in raw material
supply;
We conduct price analysis of
raw materials to identify the
types of raw materials that are
significantly affected by weather
and keep an eye on weather
factors that may have an impact
on their prices;
We lock in prices in advance
when entering into contracts
with suppliers to control
production costs.
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Impact area Risks description Measures to risks
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Production Cold weather causes frost In response to unexpected

damage to products and raw
materials in factories and during
transportation, increasing
operation costs;

Drought climate reduces
groundwater, affecting the
supply of groundwater to natural
water factories. Heavy rains and
flooding cause groundwater
pollution and turbidity, ultimately
affecting production water
supply;

Typhoons frequently attack
factories in coastal areas, such
as roof damage in factories,
water leakage in workshops
and warehouses of finished
products and raw material and
factory area flooding, resulting
in direct losses of factory assets
and materials, as well as indirect
losses such as production
stoppages;

Extreme weather causes energy
interruptions, affecting factory
production schedules and
delivery timelines.

energy interruptions in special
situations, we maintain regular
communication with our
suppliers, develop monthly and
weekly energy consumption
plans, and arrange production
reasonably, while carrying out
daily maintenance according to
plan;

Based on weather conditions, we
require factories to make early
preparations for raw material
stocking to meet production
demands;

In conjunction with early
warning information issued
by meteorological authorities,
we conduct comprehensive
inspections of the factory in
advance and rectify any potential
hazards.

EgmEER 73

2022 Annual Report ¥



IRl =5 e MEVAIRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

AR EEE JeBL B 4 ot B B P
Impact area Risks description Measures to risks

BERRER

Storage and
transportation

1R RSB 45 38 B IR 80 75 R &
MERERE R - ZINT &
BREHRA
:EEEZQ;Q%ZQ35‘ZKEE‘ AE

RRABEBEZEEMmNMRDE
Liﬁ'u CERERE RE o

Cold weather causes frost
damage to products and
raw materials during the
transportation process,
increasing the investment in
quality assurance;

Severe weather such as heavy
rains and flooding, heavy fog,
heavy snow, etc., seriously affects
the transportation of products
and raw materials, causing
stockouts and interruption.

RABMIREBE FEE
M- ABEIRSBREREIRM
&~ BEKMOKEBHHEREE
iﬂi%f’ﬁﬁiﬂ B ANEEIR R
RS ERBUTEE
IE ;
J%W?Zi,ﬂé’/&%é nEE8F )
AT E M P T/E - AR
EEDDD ,g\
We keep an eye on the weather
and stock up in advance, pay
attention to the emergency
situation of energy supply,
drainage and hydropower from
high-voltage power houses, and
develop response measures. If
any abnormality is found, timely
report it to the higher-level
government units for handling;
Strictly follow the Company’s
Product Quality Manual to
improve product protection, thus
ensuring product quality.
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MERD -
Personnel safety e  Extreme weather and climate e  Perform comprehensive analysis
disasters pose a threat to of the likelihood of various
personnel safety. natural disasters based on the

geographical and environmental
characteristics, and formulate
the Special Emergency Plan for
Natural Disasters to identify the
types and degree of danger
posed by natural disasters that
threaten the normal production
and operation of the business;

e  Conduct training and regular
drills for employees in accordance
with the requirements of the
emergency plan, so that in the
event of a major natural disaster,
we can promptly carry out rescue
operations according to the
predetermined plan, effectively
control the disaster in a short
time, and ensure the safety
of employees and company

property.
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We assess the transition risks and opportunities brought
about by climate change. In terms of transition risks,
against the backdrop of the Carbon Peaking and Carbon
Neutrality targets proposed by the country, regulatory
and policy requirements for low-carbon development will
become increasingly stringent. Master Kong complies with
and responds to the national policies and requirements
for reducing carbon emissions, keeps an eye on the
corresponding changes in policy and regulatory, predicts
future policy trends, and makes long-term planning for
its own low-carbon development path, so as to better
adapt to the low-carbon trend. In terms of transition
opportunities, with the development of the low-carbon
economy, consumers may be more inclined to choose
products with green and environmental attributes in the
future, which will affect the Company’s product layout. We
launched “carbon neutrality” and “label-free” products,
incorporating the concept of sustainable development into
the product design process. In the future, we will continue
to establish and improve climate change-related policies,
explore opportunities for green and environmental attribute
products, and contribute to the low-carbon development of
the industry.

In 2022, the Company continued to carry out carbon
inventory work, covering the upstream and downstream of
Master Kong's value chain, calculating Scope 1 and Scope
2 carbon emissions data, and estimating the main Scope 3
carbon footprint in upstream and downstream of the value
chain. In this inventory, we reviewed the carbon reduction
results in the past two years, prompting all units of the
Company to further understand their own emissions to carry
out targeted carbon reduction work and actively explore
carbon reduction opportunities. At the same time, during
the carbon inventory process, the Company promoted the
concept of carbon emissions and carbon reduction to all
units to enhance their awareness of carbon reduction.
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In 2022, Master Kong, as an outstanding industry
representative, attended the “Enterprise Carbon Reduction
Practice Sharing” Roundtable Forum ("2 E B 5D
Z"[El=18) at the Fifth China International Import Expo
to discuss views and experiences on corporate carbon
reduction and green development with representatives from
various industries, assisting policy formulation and industry
development for low-carbon development. We shared
our green and low-carbon practices, including the three-
level sustainable development strategy of implementing
management structure, production and operation, and
stakeholders, the three-step carbon reduction roadmap
of “Conducting Carbon Inventory”, “Setting Emission
Reduction Targets” and “Designing Emission Reduction
Measures”, and carbon reduction cases in production and
research and development, providing new ideas for carbon
reduction in the industry.

EELEELETREFEORSSPERAREREY = [ARRE
Master Kong attended the “Enterprise Carbon Reduction Practice Sharing” Roundtable Forum
at the Fifth China International Import Expo
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Sustainable Sourcing of Raw Materials

When selecting suppliers, we pay attention to the
environmental benefits of their products and services. We
hope to reduce the negative impact on natural resources,
the environment, and society in the production process
of raw materials through sustainable and responsible
procurement. We encourage suppliers to strengthen
traceability and certification of raw materials. We are
committed to reducing the negative impact of packaging
and palm oil procurement on forests. 100% of paper
suppliers such as cartons purchased by Master Kong have
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) certification, 43.8% of
palm oil suppliers in the Instant Noodles Business have
obtained Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO)
certification. In terms of exercising responsible white sugar
purchase, several white sugar suppliers in the Master Kong
Beverages Business and Pepsi Beverages Business have

Palm Oil, RSPO)#R#E ° FEEETT
BEAMOREKBA®E - R
ERBERAERMBENTD
EEEERES T REL R
(Bonsucro) R & - AL ER
R EELEA30% °

obtained Bonsucro certification, and the supply proportion
of such suppliers is 30%.

2022 % - RAVERIFHEBARESIEFIT In 2022, Master Kong'’s environmental Key Performance Indicators
T BRBITHA - BIREER OGS are listed below. Unless otherwise stated, the statistics scope of
ERE LBRMBEREREEXEETRE environmental data® covers the Master Kong building in Shanghai
QEPIFEANR AL - RIMHEREERKRE and all domestic factories directly managed? by each business, while
NERBREERTEHE - KRG RBEER overseas offices are not included in the scope of statistics for the time
BB - being due to their small scale, and will be disclosed in due course
according to the actual situation.
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REREHENAEC (BE 1 REEE2)Y (EBNE)
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions® (Scope 1 & Scope 2)* (10,000 tonnes)

HE1AEREHEMN=(ER)
Scope 1 Greenhouse Gas Emissions (10,000 tonnes)

HE2RERBHNE(ENE)
Scope 2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions (10,000 tonnes)

BETAREKGZBEREHNE (M BB TARBEKR)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions per RMB'million of sales (tonnes/RMB'million of sales)

e R EREEY (JKRE)
Total comprehensive energy consumption® (MWh)

BETARBRGHRAEREEECELRER BB TARERZE)
Comprehensive energy consumption per RMB'million of sales
(MWh/RMB'million of sales)

B KEER)
Electricity (MWh)

BBTARBKREE NERECKRE, BB T ARE RS

Electricity consumption per RMB'million of sales (MWh/RMB'million of sales)

YRR AL H (K ELE )
Petrol and diesel (MWh)

RARAMEE &K (JEELEF)
Natural gas and coal (MWh)

Bt amR K ER)
Liquefied petroleum gas (MWh)

INE R (JRFLR)
Purchased steam (MWh)

FKEE® (ZT7K)

Total water use® (m?)

BETARBKGEAKE (LK BETARERS)

Water consumption per RMB'million of sales (m3/RMB’million of sales)

EmBEMBEREE? (HE)

Total product packaging materials used  (tonnes)

ABETARBKGRERBEMHEMAE® (M BETAREKR)

Product packaging material used per RMB'million of sales® (tonnes/RMB’ million of sales)

L2 =45 (CHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND * COD)BEM 48 & © ()
Total chemical oxygen demand (COD) emissions® (tonnes)

227.55

17.72

209.82

28.91

5,259,884.85

66.82

1,699,915.45

21.60

12,288.98

885,509.36

649.37

2,661,521.68

53,854,325.09

684.15

1,271,573.98

16.15

132.11
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BERBREMREOMNE)
Total hazardous waste"? (tonnes)

BETARBKGEEEEMHHREB O BETAREKES)

1,204.13

0.02

Hazardous waste emissions per RMB'million of sales"® (tonnes/RMB'million of sales)

mEEEYRE ()
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)

BETARKKaEZEZYENRE (B BB TAREKS)

205,715.99

2.61

Non-hazardous waste emissions per RMB'million of sales (tonnes/RMB’million of sales)
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Based on the nature of Master Kong's business, the main gas emissions
in 2022 are greenhouse gases, mainly from the use of electricity and
fuels converted from fossil fuels. Compared with 2021, Master Kong has
further reduced the use of fossil fuels such as natural gas and coal, along
with continued reductions in sulphur dioxide (SO,) and oxynitride (NO,)
emissions, the impact of which is minimal and therefore not disclosed as a
major gas emission in the current year.

The domestic plants under the direct management of each of Master
Kong's businesses include all plants of the Instant Noodles Business,
Master Kong Beverage Business and Bakery Business located inside the
country, as well as all domestic plants of the Pepsi Business except for the
plants in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenyang, Tianjin, Jinan,
Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi'an and Kunming. Among which,
Pepsi’s business is managed directly by Pepsi International except for 4
factories in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing and Hangzhou. Pepsi's plants in
Shenyang, Tianjin, Jinan, Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi‘an and
Kunming are not included in the scope of statistics as they are no longer in
operation.

The scope of greenhouse gas accounting for Master Kong mainly covers
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. The greenhouse gas emission
data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and calculated in
accordance with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
2006 Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas List (Revised in 2019).

Scope 1: covers greenhouse gas emissions directly generated by the
Company'’s operations; Scope 2: greenhouse gas emissions from “indirect
energy” resulting from the Company’s internal consumption (purchased or
acquired) of electricity and purchased steam.

The comprehensive energy consumption is calculated through direct and
indirect energy consumption, based on the conversion factors of the
National Standard of the People’s Republic of China General Rules for
Calculating Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020).

Water consumption is for production and employee office use within the
scope of the statistics. We have no problem in finding the applicable water
sources.
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The amount of product packaging materials used is the total amount of
major packaging materials used for all items of products in each of Master
Kong's businesses.

This year, we have conducted a statistical analysis of the product
packaging material used per RMB'million of sales.

The total COD emissions are the sum of the COD produced by all the
plants within the statistical scope and the final emissions after treatment
by municipal sewage treatment plants.

This year, the Company has centralized the treatment of hazardous
waste, resulting in significant changes in the total hazardous waste and
hazardous waste emissions per RMB'million of sales.

1. Deeply Develop Human Resources and Create an
Excellent Workplace

Master Kong strictly abides by the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of the Rights and
Interests of Women, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Persons with
Disabilities, the Regulations on the Employment of Persons
with Disabilities, the Regulations on the Prohibition of Child
Labour and other applicable laws and regulations, and has
accordingly formulated the Measures for Recruitment of
Staff, the Management Measures for Labour Contract, the
Procedures for Appointment of Staff, the Management
Measures of Staff Promotion, the Management Measures
of Staff Resignation, Probationary Appraisal Measures for
Colleagues, the Management Measures of Staff Rewards
and Punishments, as well as other systems and measures.
Each business has also formulated applicable systems and
measures according to its own situation to regulate the
signing and termination of labour contracts, so as to ensure
that all employment work is regulated and based on rules
and regulations, and to effectively protect the legitimate
rights and interests of employees.
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Equal Employment

The Company insists on the principle of equal employment,
eliminating all forms of employment discrimination,
establishing a recruitment, development and promotion
system that is non-discriminatory in terms of ethnicity, race,
gender and religion. We actively take on social responsibility
continuously recruit a certain percentage of disabled
employees and provide fair employment opportunities and
salary and benefits guarantee. 317 disabled employees were
employed this year, with 43 new employees. We oppose
all forms of forced labour and child labour and explicitly
prohibit such situations in relevant human resources policies.
We strictly examine original and photocopies of identity
cards when recruiting and regularly export the employee
attendance sheet from the Company system to verify
working hours. If forced labour or child labour is found,
we will strictly follow the requirements of the local labour
bureau and immediately stop their work. Each business also
regularly verifies the working hours of its employees through
its internal system. The Company’s internal control and
auditing departments conduct reviews on recruitment and
employment from time to time to avoid forced labour.

Vacation

Master Kong explicitly indicates the working hours
and holidays of its employees in the labour contract in
accordance with the requirements of the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China. Employees are entitled to
annual leave with pay, personal leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave,
breastfeeding leave, parental leave and home leave. The
Company encourages employees to arrange their vacation
plans based on their needs while actively implementing
relevant government policies, and will amend its internal rules
and regulations in accordance with new local regulations to
effectively protect the rights and interests of employees to
take rest.
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Remuneration and Benefits

Master Kong has established salary management measures
for employees, such as salary, performance and year-end
bonus, and pays “five insurance and one fund” in full for
employees in accordance with the requirements of the Socia/
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing Provident
Fund and other national laws and regulations, while
adjusting the insurance and provident fund contribution
ratios, upper and lower limits and minimum wage standards
in a timely manner every year in accordance with policy
requirements. Depending on their own situation, each
business has developed salary management methods,
performance bonuses, year-end bonuses, and employee
welfare management methods while adopting different
levels of incentives such as monthly, quarterly and annual
awards so as to stimulate employee enthusiasm. At the
same time, we provide additional subsidies for staff such as
high temperature/high cold, heating, and rental subsidy. We
also provide soft benefits such as travel, corporate cultural
activities, birthday gifts, and health check-ups for our
employees.

BABIERERE - AFEEERE TIEER & - E—FE(L
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Master Kong is implementing digital transformation of HR across each business, aiming to simplify work processes.
This year, based on the existing work, we have further optimized our electronic personnel file system and
promoted our Human Resources Bl data dashboard project. By implementing an online one-stop operation, we
aim to reduce manual work and strengthen the linkage of business data.
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Promote Staff Healthy Growth and Development,
Create a Smart Workplace

Master Kong has always valued the training and
development of staff. In order to better shape the all-round
talents with “Diligence, Integrity and Competence” and
to enhance the cohesiveness of the team, the Company
established the Management Training Center (MTC) and
conducts customized and functionally diverse courses
for employees at different levels, and each business also
formulates the corresponding training management
system in accordance with its own situation. The Company
conducts quarterly Strategic Talent Review (STR) meetings to
promote the development of key talent in critical positions,
improve talent development platforms at all levels, and
implement development and cultivation plans for individuals
and teams in the reserve pool for entry-level, middle and
high-level management. We provide training opportunities
for employees in various categories, such as general
corporate culture training, professional knowledge and skills
enhancement training and management skills enhancement
training, depending on their job level, career development
stage and functional position. The Company maintains a
long-term collaboration with external professional training
institutions. We work together to create enhancement
training programmes that are tailored to the actual needs
of Master Kong, bringing forward-looking and scientific
knowledge and skills to our employees. We conduct post-
training tracking to evaluate the effectiveness of our training
programs and form a closed-loop management system for
training. We are also committed to cultivating an internal
team of trainers to better cultivate and pass on the wisdom
and culture of Master Kong.
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We adopt case-based teaching for training and offer a
variety of training courses and programs. During this year,
the total training time reached 6.924 million hours and
the per capita training time was 116.0 hours. In 2022, the
Company actively expanded online training, introduced
live broadcasting of courses and continuously updated
mobile learning resources. Employees can strengthen their
management and general skills through the corporate
WeChat classroom and official website learning platform
of the Company. The Company also provides M-series
management training courses to enhance the management
abilities of cadres. In addition, we cooperate with Talent First
(—%%), Match Pro (BEE) and Carnegie (RfifZ) to hold
the “Headquarters Career Development System Classroom”
to improve the efficiency of inter-departmental cooperation
and daily communication and expression skills of employees,
providing employees with comprehensive and diversified
learning opportunities.

B3 RIE IR 5
Technical Exchange Training Site
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Safeguard Employee Health and Safety to Create a
Secure Workplace

Master Kong strictly complies with national laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Work Safety, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Fire Services Law of the People’s Republic of China.
We have accordingly issued a series of internal management
measures and emergency plans, such as Plant Environment
Health and Safety Management Procedures, Plant
Environment Health and Safety Policy and Principles, Hazard
Identification and Risk Assessment Criteria and Method
Standards and Work-Related Injuries Handling Procedures,
to form an institutional guarantee for the implementation of
work safety and prevention of occupational diseases.

The Company highly values the health and safety of
employees and continues to increase investment in
employee health and safety. The Company provides
employees in front-line jobs with occupational disease risks
or high safety risks with a full range of protective gears,
such as eye protection, chemical protective gloves, ear plugs
and safety uniforms, to effectively reduce the health impact
on employees due to special workplaces and environments.
To ensure safe production and operation, the employees
of special jobs require relevant licenses. In addition, we
organize annual health checks for our staff and actively
organize fire safety drills to enhance their awareness of
fire safety and their ability to protect themselves. All new
employees are required to receive safety training before they
are allowed to work in production operations. Meanwhile,
Master Kong strictly implements the safety responsibility
system, establishes complete operating specifications and
emergency handling mechanisms to ensure the proper
handling of sudden safety incidents.
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The Company attaches great importance to promoting
and training employees in health and safety, enhancing
their awareness of safety precautions. All production bases
of Master Kong conscientiously implement the relevant
requirements and deployment of Environment, Health
and Safety (EHS) of the Company. We continuously and
thoroughly carry out EHS management activities and strictly
conduct annual EHS audits. We set up EHS specialists to
continuously carry out safety education, and regularly
organize EHS skills training and competitions to continuously
raise the awareness of our staff on production safety.

Build a Corporate Culture and Create a Better Workplace

2022 marks the 30th anniversary of Master Kong and the
fourth year of the Company’s “steady progress” strategy.
The Company's strong culture has provided key spiritual
support for its development, which is one of the keys to
Master Kong's competitiveness. The Company has correctly
grasped its corporate values while emphasizing internal
collaboration and external cooperation for mutual benefit to
cope with the changing market environment. The Company
has established a culture-building committee that promotes
team collaboration and is headed by Chairman Wei Hong-
Ming and Chairman Wei Hong-Cheng, and has nine core
senior managers as members. This year, the Company
established a culture-building review committee to review
and standardize the Company'’s culture-building efforts and
assist in their implementation.
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The Company is creating a learning system for Master
Kong's corporate culture that is being implemented across
all levels of the Company. In 2022, the Management
Training Center will continue to provide value-based training
for 2,245 supervisors and reserve talents, laying a solid
ideological foundation for talent development. Training
for corporate culture construction is also an important part
of new employee training, ensuring that new employees
truly understand the mission that the Company shoulders
and master the basic behavioral standards. This year, we
have updated and completed the training materials, and
completed 413 culture-building training sessions, helping
3,354 new employees successfully integrate into the Master
Kong family.

Higher corporate culture recognition brings more dedicated
professional employees, higher performance level for the
Company and promotes the healthy development of the
enterprise. In 2022, the Company collaborated with the
well-known polling company Gallup to conduct a cultural
identity and job engagement survey with a participation
rate of 98%. The purpose of the survey was to understand
employees’ level of engagement with their work and their
level of identification with Corporate Culture. The survey
results showed that Master Kong employees had a higher
level of job engagement compared to more than 67% of
corporates in the global database, indicating a relatively
good level of engagement. The foundation of Master
Kong’s high level of employee engagement lies in meeting
their needs and creating a harmonious team atmosphere
with a win-win team concept. Master Kong truly considers
the development of the Company from the perspective
of employees, values their feedback and opinions, and
implements action plans into daily management behaviors.
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In 2022, the Company carried out various distinctive
activities to enrich the lives of employees. The instant noodle
business encouraged frontline workers with the slogan “LIFE
+ DELICACY”, with nearly 10,000 employees participating,
integrating the concept into their daily work and life.
The Pepsi beverage business has published the interna
newsletter “Sales Pioneer Collection” for three consecutive
years, using influential platforms such as the WeChat
Official Account and WeCom to promote outstanding
employee stories and showcase their hard work. The Master
Kong beverage, instant noodle, and the Pepsi beverage
businesses combined to conduct food safety activities
during Food Safety Month, collaborating with the quality
control department to carry out the My Quality, My Pride -
Extraordinary Ordinary Posts themed activity to instill food
safety awareness in employees. To enable employees to feel
the spirit of rising to challenges, taking responsibility, and
being honest and self-disciplined, the Company has held
five consecutive annual “Master Kong Culture Role Model”
behavior collection and recognition events, which have
received recognition and support from all.

AEEBRITUEARBITRABERREEHEE

Promotion of the Collection and Recognition of Exemplary Cultural Behaviors in this Year
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Outstanding Employees Who Practice Culture Selected by Various Industries in 2022
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In the future, the Company will follow the lead of excellent
global businesses and make highly valued employee
development a norm. We will continue to make good use of
tools for evaluating dedication, enhance the organization’s
cultural identity and dedication, shape a highly resilient
workforce, and stimulate employees’ inner drive. We aim
to become a respected and great company in the ever-
changing and highly competitive market environment.

b RIS
Cultural Development Training
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EREEEE Employment Category Indicators
B 6
Indicators Data
ETRAHO 64,302

Total number of employees @

BUBIBSET AR ES 42,066
Number of employees by gender Male
L8 22,236
Female
BEREINETAH Fh 30 (TEIAT 20,985
Number of employees by age Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)
FER30EZES50m(E) 42,377

Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

Fie 50 (TEIAL 940
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)
RERERESINETAH PBET 64,302
Number of employees by type of employment Full-time employee
RBET 0
Part-time employee
RUBESMNETAR EitwRET 14,768
Number of employees by region Employee in North China
Rit@E T 6,697

Employee in Northeast China

pidtm B T 6,527
Employee in Northwest China

ERMES T 13,378
Employee in East China

FEhEE T 5,164
Employee in Central China

EPEE T 10,433
Employee in South China

e e T 7,331
Employee in Southwest China

Bl = 8 T 4
Employee in foreign regions
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B B
Indicators Data
ETHERKE® 20.8%
Total employees turnover rate @
BUBESME T RALR E= 22.9%
Employee turnover rate by gender Male
z 16.9%
Female
RERESME I RALE FERI0(TEIAT 34.4%
Employee turnover rate by age Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)
FE30RES0m(E) 13.7%

Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

FES0m(TE)ALE 35.8%
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)

RUEEITHWETRALR Eig 23.2%
Employee turnover rate by region North China

bt 16.6%
Northeast China

[ipis:iA 23.7%
Northwest China

B M & 17.0%
East China

Hh i & 19.0%
Central China

ERH[R 22.8%
South China
Gidfeapau] 22.6%

Southwest China

BlSMb [ 0.0%

Foreign regions

(1) BIBABNRTHERRMEZRNE (1) The total number of employees is the total number of employees of
MEBARIMNEZEEE T AL - Master Kong and its subsidiaries.

) BIRAXR-—ERFEHHIIEELL(S (2)  Employee turnover rate = number of employees who left their jobs

FEIBER  RIK - BIR  THOMETIA (including voluntary departure, retirement, dismissal and death) in the
B TERFEE THEAZ X 100% © reporting year/total number of employees in the reporting year x 100%.
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2022 f 2021 % 2020 F
EE Indicators 2022 2021 2020
TITTHAH® Number of work-related deaths ® 0 0 0
TTHER® Work-related death rate @ 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%

(B) ITCBEERIRBE=FRRZEZEESFK (3)  Work-related death statistics are for the past three years for employees
B TTHIER who died as a result of safety incidents.

(4) RAITHEER=REITHAZ ZFHK (4)  Work-related death rate = number of work-related deaths/total number of
BETHEAE X100% ° employees at the end of the year x 100%.

NREERIEEKRKBEANTEEEH A This year, the number of working days lost due to work-related injuries

7,712k ° is 7,712 days.
21 6) (6 i
Indicators ®and® Data
REIMRESNZIEI L 2 99.3%
Percentage of employees trained by gender Male
z 99.7%
Female
REIEREINZIEIL EREREXIBESL 100.0%

Percentage of employees trained by employee level Percentage of senior management trained

TREBERIBDL 100.0%
Percentage of middle management trained

H B TXIADL 99.5%
Percentage of other employees trained

RUERI B 2 AT Z I REE(/NEE) ES 113.5
Number of hours of training per capita by Male
gender (hours)
z 120.7
Female
RETERNE S HNALZIRE(NE) BREBEXINRE 117.0
Hours of training per person by Number of hours of training for
employee category (hours) senior management
PREIEEX IR 132.9

Number of hours of training for
middle management

Hih 8 TX/NFE 115.6
Number of hours of training for
other employees
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BRENEE
2022 FHERESEE !

Community investment in 2022:

NSoooo
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

V EGEAEREARAT

= _
= WAR®19,0208T
Approx RMB 190.2 million

Percentage trained by employee category = number of employees trained
in a category/total number of employees in a category x 100%.

Hours of training per person by employee category = Total hours of
training for a category of employees/Total number of employees in a
category.

Key Performance Indicators

Q022 ETXEERHRR ¢
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2022:

#) 7,000 /)N
Approx 7,000 hours

As part of its journey to realizing its vision, Master Kong always
remembers to give back to the society, pay attention to community
needs, take the initiative to assume social responsibilities, and
integrate community investment and public welfare practices
with its own business in order to fulfill its corporate citizenship
obligations. In 2022, Master Kong continued to leverage its
industry advantages, actively participate in community investment
and various public welfare activities, conduct food safety and
water education public welfare activities, support the development
of sports, focus on social care, assist in rural revitalization, deepen
school-enterprise cooperation, and create sustainable value by
serving the society in a tangible way, all while sharing “LIFE +
DELICACY" with partners from all walks of life.

1. Food Safety Science Popularization

Raising public scientific literacy and popularizing food safety
knowledge is an effective way to counteract food safety
rumours. Over the years, Master Kong has been actively
responding to the national food safety strategy, pooling
the efforts of all parties, and continuously exploring ways
to educate the public about food safety, and is committed
to passing on food safety knowledge and concepts to
the society through food safety science popularization to
promote social governance of food safety.
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As a long-term partner of China's aerospace industry,
Master Kong is committed to building a comprehensive
knowledge system, education system and application system
that integrates “aerospace + food safety” to enhance the
knowledge of aerospace and food safety literacy of all
people, especially the youth. In recent years, the Company
has been conducting science popularization activities
relating to “Aerospace + Food Safety” and has held nearly
100 aerospace expert speeches, which have introduced
the quality of space products to over 500,000 primary and
middle school students.

In 2022, Master Kong cooperated with China Youth
Daily, China Space Foundation and the learning platform
“Learning Power” to organize a “Our Space” painting
and photography collection activity to popularize space
knowledge and contribute to building China’s strength in
aerospace. The event invited famous figures such as the
Chief Scientist of the Chinese Lunar Exploration Program
and renowned hosts to support the activity. We received
more than 120,000 paintings and photographs from primary
and secondary school students and photography enthusiasts
from all over the country. We also released the documentary
“China Aerospace x Master Kong”, which became another
successful practice of Master Kong'’s support for China’s
aerospace industry.

R4 | Environmental, Social and Governance Report [ INENENENG

[HRMHARZE @ ERLIERBEEE (EMEZE—RRARKIZEER
“Our Space” Painting and Photography Collection Activity Child’s Drawing:
Facing the Stars Together Towards the Future
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Animation of Food Safety Science Popularization
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The State Administration of Market Regulation and four
other ministries and commissions jointly released the Schoo/
Food Safety Guardian Action Plan (2020-2022), which calls
for strengthening food safety and nutrition education in
primary and middle schools. In response to the national
policy and to help promote food safety science popularization
education in schools, in 2022, Master Kong, together with
its partners, launched the “Master Kong Care for the Next
Generation Food Safety Guarding Action”. Through a series
of online and offline activities such as setting up “Public
Welfare Classrooms”, “Food Science Popularization into
Campus”, and “Works Collection: | Make a Bow! of Noodles
for Mom and Dad”, we aim to stimulate young people’s
interest in learning about food safety and raise their
awareness of food safety. By the end of the year, offline
activities had covered about 40,000 primary school students
from 20 schools, while online activities had covered about
300,000 primary school students from nearly 200 schools.

ATRERE
Class of Food Safety Science Popularization

Education on Water

The “Education on Water” project is a long-term public
welfare activity initiated by the China Beverage Industry
Association, aiming to cultivate good drinking and using
water habits among primary school students and making
them to be active practitioners and disseminators of
“knowing, loving and saving water”. This is the eighth
year that Master Kong has been working on “Education on
Water” and has successfully extended the “Education on
Water” campaign to more than 10 cities, 30 schools and
nearly 10,000 students across China.
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In 2022, offline activities continued to be limited, so we
actively adjusted our strategies and flexibly shifted the main
platform of “Education on Water” to online. We focused
on the “Education on Water” video platform and released a
total of 17 videos throughout the year, with nearly 70,000
plays and nearly 3,000 interactions on the platform. The
“Education on Water” Video Accounts launched two major
series of videos, “Famous Stories About Water (B2#7K %0
#8)" and “Wonderful Knowledge About Water (7% 7K40
#8)", which aim to help teenagers establish vivid images
and perceptions closely related to water, based on the
historical and cultural stories related to water resources and
water environment in China’s long-standing history, as well
as the rich water use scenarios in modern life. This helps
cultivate good water use habits while enhancing national
confidence and achieving the goal of promoting “Education
on Water” from childhood. Our cartoon IP image, “Kang
Kang Senior (FEFZE )", has also become the spokesperson
of "Education on Water” as it becomes deeply rooted in
people’s minds.

[k B EREEE)

“Education on Water” in School

Sports Charity Events

China attaches great importance to the important role of
sports activities in enhancing people’s physical fitness and
health, and in 2016, the State Council issued the Outline of
“Healthy China 2030 Plan, making clear plans to develop
mass sports activities, promote a new fashion of fitness for
all and advance the construction of a healthy China. As a
national brand enterprise, Master Kong is committed to
helping the country move towards “Healthy China” and
inspiring public enthusiasm for fitness.

B EER
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Master Kong has been the “Marathon Nutrition and Diet
Partner” for five consecutive years. We advocate a scientific
dietary concept and focus on serving runners, providing
them with sufficient energy supply before and after the
race. "A Bowl of Noodles after the Race” has become a
must-have in the hearts of many marathon runners. During
this year, we support marathon events with a new brand
proposition of “Having More Fun with Noodles”, upgrading
from a single sports energy supplement to encouraging
consumers to pursue sports fun and physical and mental
health.

TN B RRTEIRIG

Hangzhou Marathon

In 2022, we also supported badminton events in Tianjin,
Pearl River Delta and other places, as well as basketball
events and street dance challenges in Guangzhou. In the
future, Master Kong will continue to use safe and reliable
sports support services to promote the development of
sports events in China, help athletes realize their dreams
on the field, and continue to promote national sports in a
sustainable, healthy and orderly manner.

BITEMERRIES

Bicycle League in Fuguan Railway Station

Dragon Boat Race in Diejiao, Foshan
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Focus on Social Care

Master Kong attaches great importance to corporate social
responsibility, actively participates in community building,
and strives to benefit the people by using its own resources
to spread warmth and help others. In 2022, Master Kong
continued to focus on the needs and challenges of various
industries in society, extending a helping hand wherever
possible. We continued to conduct outreach activities to
nursing homes, kindergartens, schools, hospitals, police
stations, troops and remote areas across the country. We
invested resources in rescue and disaster relief and exam
assistance, sending love to hardworking urban workers such
as medical staff, traffic police and sanitation workers in
many places, passing on positive energy. In just the first half
of 2022, Master Kong provided over 1.34 million packages
of instant noodles, drinking water, cakes, and other supplies
to Shanghai, Hong Kong, Liaoning, and other regions. We
are also concerned about the growth of children and have
been sending warmth and support to children through
activities such as charity schooling for children, caring for
autistic children and children with disabilities.

EEEM & HLZ 1B G

Master Kong's Donation for the Fight Against the Pandemic
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As an outstanding national enterprise, Master Kong has
established and formed a rapid response mechanism for
disaster relief after years of practice. In 2022, Hunan, Jiangxi,
Sichuan, Chongging and other regions were affected by
floods, high temperatures, earthquakes, and other disasters.
We utilized our marketing network to send love and relief
supplies to rescue workers, helping to solve the food and
shelter problems of the affected people. In Xiangxi, Hunan
and Ganzhou, Jiangxi, where flooding was severe, the
Company delivered instant noodles, drinking water and
other supplies to affected residents and resettlement centers
in a timely manner. In scorching Chongqging, the Company
organized volunteers to deliver refreshing drinks to nearby
supply depots, allowing frontline workers to feel the care
and support from society and enterprises. The Company sent
hot instant noodles and drinking water to affected residents
and rescue workers in earthquake-hit Luding County, Ganzi,
Sichuan Province, offering the warmest care.

In previous disaster relief efforts, Master Kong summarized
its experience of water and electricity supply interruptions
caused by disasters and independently developed and
modified a self-provided “emergency rescue vehicle” with
“water and electricity” to overcome the restrictions on water
and electricity consumption caused by the environment.
The “emergency rescue vehicle” has played an active role
in rescue work, sending “warm assistance” to rescue the
catastrophic floods in Henan in 2021 and to help areas
affected by floods, earthquakes and other disasters in 2022.

Master Kong actively participates in responding to the
Rural Vitalization Strategy and helps to consolidate and
expand the achievements of poverty alleviation. During the
2022 Spring Festival, we integrated into the construction
of the Hainan Free Trade Port and cooperated with the
local government to carry out Spring Festival love and visit
activities in Shezhenpuzai Village, Lingao County, Hainan,
donating food and beverages to support rural revitalization.
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FEEFIEBHRK - FRED As students are the future of the country, Master Kong
ERHEFE IS HENLERE continues to pay attention to the social needs during the
k- RERSZEBFRHENM Gaokao, and provide help to the students to the best
BEMMER 68 BRMPIL of its ability. In June, we launched the “With You All
RE AR 2O N EERE the Way” public welfare activities to escort the college
TIEMEERREY  BE entrance examination in Beijing, jointly with a professional
HEHITHE  BRLEBLOX transportation organization, to provide mineral water to
EEWMHWEERERERK I the students on the “Love Express” vehicles, and set up
FERMOMENZ B - A assistance stations at the school gates, preparing cooling
EZELEEHEBRITARER tools and examination stationery for the candidates, to
XE  2HFUTESETFESZS comprehensively support the students in achieving their
= dreams of taking the college entrance examination.

BREM{E 2 BT AR EE M K KR
Master Kong's Donation Against the Flood in Ganzhou, Jiangxi

FREDE [ 2 BB S | B E F R [RONE BRRETTIEMSERRED
Master Kong's “Emergency Rescue Vehicle” Supporting Luding “With You All the Way"” Public Welfare Activities to Escort the
Earthquake College Entrance Examination
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Benefiting the “Agriculture, Rural Areas and Farmers”

As a leading enterprise in deep processing of agricultural
products, Master Kong has actively promoted the strategy of
serving rural revitalisation, increased its support to diversified
rural business entities and supported farmers to increase
their income and property, so as to exercise the objective
of “Sustainable Operation, Contribution to Society”. We
purchased millions of tonnes of bulk agricultural products
every year, and helped farmers to increase their income and
prosperity through agricultural products procurement and
other forms, directly benefiting over 40 million farmers in
China.

Taking advantage of its own technology and scale, Master
Kong has been working with universities for years to
conduct research on “active crop protection system” and
explore new models to benefit the “agriculture, rural areas
and farmers”, which enabled the creation of an upgraded
industrial chain model featuring, “Enterprise plus base plus
farmers”. We have established an "“Environmentally Friendly
Vegetable Base” in the Kangba Nuo'er area of Kangbao
County, Hebei province, which is pure and pollution-free
and has excellent natural conditions. We have sent technical
staff to study the local natural environment to promote an
upgrade to agricultural techniques and to help local farmers
build a new ecological agriculture through counselling
farmers on planting, strict quality control at the production
end and testing and supervision. Master Kong's Food
Safety Research and Management Centre conducts strict
tests on soil, pesticide residues, heavy metals and many
other indicators every year to ensure the safety and health
of agricultural products. The base has helped establish a
total of 200,000 mu of vegetable bases in and around the
Kangba Nuo’er grassland, acquiring about 500,000 tonnes
of agricultural products and driving the employment of
about 150,000 farmers.
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School-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kong pays great attention to talent development in
society and develops school-enterprise cooperation, insisted
on the concept of “deep ploughing in China, facing the
world” to develop talents, established and deepened school-
enterprise cooperation with 45 universities and 70 vocational
schools nationwide. We are committed to the goal of
“Healthy China, Strengthening Education” and developing
talent training, providing the society with composite talents
with both professional and practical abilities.

In the face of a challenging economic environment and
job market, Master Kong responded to the national call
for policies and provided thousands of job opportunities
for graduates throughout the year. We collaborated
with domestic universities to conduct research on food
safety, production processes and technology, application
development, and supported the commercialization of
core technologies and innovative achievements. In terms of
vocational education, we earnestly implemented the spirit
of school-enterprise cooperation, continued to improve the
education system, promoted the “Ordered Class of Master
Kong" training model, explored new ideas and methods for
student training and employment from both the perspective
of the school and the enterprise, and created a new
educational model of in-depth cooperation between schools
and enterprises.
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Meeting Site of IPP in Tsinghua University
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In 2022, Master Kong continued to deepen its partnerships
with top domestic and international universities, establishing
collaborative projects in various areas such as internships,
talent exchange, enterprise case studies, scientific
research projects, and scholarship programs to promote
communication and learning and expand the Company’s
influence. We launched the first phase of “Integrated
Practical Projects” (IPP) in collaboration with the School
of Economics and Management at Tsinghua University,
aiming to jointly create industry analysis and business
recommendations based on “DTC Trend on China’s Fast
Consumable Product” allowing students to better integrate
and apply their knowledge of economic management and
understand the real needs of enterprises. We also signed
a letter of intent with Waseda University for the “New 10-
year Strategic Partnership” and sent the first group of three
supply chain management personnel to Waseda University in
September for further study, deepening their understanding
of international advanced production and management
concepts. In November, the Company was invited to
participate in the Beijing Forum organized by the Peking
University Education Foundation, sharing Master Kong's
sustainable development case with experts and scholars
from China and South Korea. In addition, Master Kong also
participated in the case writing for the Harvard Business
School’s Agribusiness Seminar and successfully completed
the big data co-construction project with the University of
Pennsylvania’s Wharton School and other partners, achieving
complementary advantages between schools and enterprises
and providing strong support for industry development and
talent cultivation.

NAFTERBEAY
Trainees of “Helping with Talent Development”
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Fsgl: 2022 EFEHER T REEFR
APPENDIX 1: SOCIAL RECOGNITION AND AWARDS IN 2022
FoR RIEZHE

Serial No.  Awards

1 20229 B HBEEREERm B mE PEUEEE H& [f=miE
Top 3 of “Most Chosen Brands in CRP” under Brand Footprint 2022 issued by Kantar Worldpanel
2 [BRAFEERAR 2021 CERETR(AIKELETEE) K

2021 Corporate Best Practices for Achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (Sustainable Production and
Consumption)

3 2022 FAREMEREBEITE ]
“Doer" under the Ecosystem Brand Evaluation 2022

4 NECEREMIEERRE (2022))EH)
Selected into the case of Ecosystem Brand Development Report (2022)

5 2022 BITAROK B LR 2 ILRILZ B ¥ MR
2022 Influential Enterprise of Practicing Lucid Waters and Lush Mountains are Invaluable Assets

6 2022 [RERIBFCBUAEE | FEGERAFERE

Annual Green Innovation Enterprise Award under “Dingge Award 2022 Digital Transformation Pioneer List”

7 [2022 - [RE R BB TEE |FEELEIAE

Annual Model of Operational Transformation under “Dingge Award 2022 Digital Transformation Pioneer List”

8 [2021-2022 FEH BT ERMITEBFENER K
"Qutstanding Instant Food Innovation Grand Award in the Year of 2021-2022"

9 [N\ARPEE ERRBERFHRERE]

"Octagonal corrugated boxes” won the “Special Contribution Award for Environmental Protection Packaging”

10 [BETNEARZEREOE - ARE D mEE ]

“The 19th People’s Choice Ingenuity Awards for Ingenious Brand”

11 [ARM2022 B RBEEIFTEN —2022 IR BEE « 2 1miE]
“People’s Daily Online 2022 National Consumption Innovation Case Study - 2022 National Consumption
Influential Brand”

12 [P ERR3EaTem — 2022 i » SR ER E R
“Harvard Business Review - 2022 Ram Charan Management Practice Award”

13 2022 PR @ B BRI HEERR 1

Asia Pacific PepsiCo’s international “The Best Bottler of the Year 2022" award

14 2021 FH BRI REERR &

PepsiCo’s international “The Best Bottler of the Year 2021” award

EmEER 105
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The Company has always been maintaining and improving the
governance standard of the Company, so as to enhance the Group's
accountability and transparency and increase long-term return for
shareholders. We have, throughout the year ended 31 December
2022, complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code which became effective in the year (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviations from code provisions B.2.2 and B.2.4. The reasons for
these deviations are explained below.

According to code provision B.2.2, each director (including those
with a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. According to the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the chairman of the Board is
not subject to retirement by rotation. He is not included in the number
of directors who are required to retire each year. The Board believes
that the continuity of the leadership of the chairman of the Board is
critical to the stability of the Group’s development and the planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and business
plans. Accordingly, the Board considers that although the provisions
of the above rules deviate from Code Provision B.2.2, it is in the best
interests of the Company.
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According to Code Provision B.2.4, if all independent non-executive
directors have served more than nine years on the board of directors of
an issuer, the issuer should appoint a new independent non-executive
director at the forthcoming AGM (and the appointment shall take effect
in the financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2023). All the
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company have served
on the Board for more than nine years. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun has served
on the Board for 22 years, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock has served on the Board
for 18 years and Mr. Hiromu Fukada has served on the Board for 11
years. The Board considers that these three independent non-executive
Directors have a thorough understanding of the Company’s business
operation, and have expressed objective views and given independent
guidance to the Company in the past. The Board is also of the view that
these three independent non-executive Directors are firmly committed
to their responsibilities and ongoing role, and that the long service of
these three independent non-executive Directors will not affect their
independent judgments. The Board considers these three independent
non-executive Directors to remain independent under the Listing Rules
despite the fact that they have served the Company for more than
nine years. The Board is satisfied that they have the necessary integrity,
honesty and experience to continue in their role as independent non-
executive Directors. The Board believes that the continued tenure of
these three independent non-executive Directors will bring stability to
the Board and the Board will benefit greatly from the experience of
these three independent non-executive Directors, who have over time
gained valuable insight into the Group. Therefore, the Company has no
current arrangement on appointing a new independent non-executive
Director at the forthcoming AGM, which, despite deviation from Code
Provision B.2.4. will not be detrimental to the Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

B EER
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Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

®  Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

*  Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

e Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
e Supervise the management of the Company;
e Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees.

The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for the overall strategy
and direction for the Group, while the management is delegated to
manage the daily businesses of the Group. To ensure the Board of
Directors is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner,
the management’s principle functions include (i) implementing the
Company'’s corporation strategy and business schemes; (ii) providing
monthly management accounts and updates to the Board of Directors
for the management report, providing detailed data of the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, so as to ensure that the directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information and may take independent professional
advice if necessary; (iii) daily management of the Group.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose biographical
details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 137 to 140 of
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors and at least one independent non-executive director with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive directors.

As each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers them to be independent.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relative
relationships among the members of the Board, except as disclosed in
the “Directors’ profiles” on pages 137 to 140.

The Board’s mechanism of obtaining independent advice

There are three independent non-executive directors on the Board of
Directors of the Company, who have many years of experience in the
fields of financial market operation, corporate finance and financial
planning, and corporate audit, respectively. The Company’s independent
non-executive Directors are in a position to provide independent,
appropriate advice to the Board of Directors, to ensure that the Board of
Directors may obtain the independent views it needs when performing
its duties and making material resolutions. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company’s independent non-executive Directors
routinely attend Board meetings and actively engage in the Board's
decision-making process, providing independent views and advice while
performing their own duties at the Board of Directors. In addition, all
Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice regarding
their duties at the Company’s expenses. Based on the above, the Board
of Directors has reviewed its mechanism of obtaining independent
advice and considered that it has been fully implemented and continues
to be effective.
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During the year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Group is
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group is Mr.
Chen Yinjang.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. As of 31 December
2022 and till the release date of this report, the proportion of female
members on the Board of Directors is approximately 11%, and the
Company has satisfied the requirements of gender diversity of the Board
of Directors members. The Board hopes that the proportion of female
members will remain at least at the current level and will continue to
seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female members in the
future if suitable candidates are available.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has been delegated
with the responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis. During the year, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee reviewed the below measurable objectives and the progress
in achieving these objectives:

ERBEENEE
The Progress of Achieving the Targets

BiE— EFEeR A A TAUNNES e  HZE2022F12A318 ' ARFEEE
HE—%ButEE - AREDEX
Objective 1 There shall be at least one Director of a e As of 31 December 2022, there is one
different gender on the Board of Directors female Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company in total, and the objective
has been achieved
BE= REZAL(BRERES B KBRREDT o« 2022FE2EK UHFHEVEST
DNEBREREFSFTENBHT)PEERER It - GEABUKBZERES
EENREARNENEEENZ T AH
P—EAEEEE
Objective 2 Considering candidates for appointment as e The objective has been achieved in 2022,

110 E@WEERERLE

Directors from a wide pool of talents taking
into account the background, skills, experience
and perspectives that would complement the
existing Board, and adding Board diversity as
one of the priority considerations

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

and will continue to identify diverse,
appropriate candidates to propose
directors for appointment
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AFEEE EREENEE
Measurable Objectives The Progress of Achieving the Targets
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Objective 3 Assessing the composition, the structure and e
diversity of the Board of Directors on an annual
basis

SReut B —ERAER R ZTTERBREESE .
EAEE

Obijective 4 Developing a pipeline of potential successors e
to the Board of Directors to achieve gender
diversity

022 EREK  IZBIERREES
ZHbE A TEMEREFENE
FXFIEE R

The objective has been achieved in
2022, and the assessment process
includes the evaluation of Board diversity
and considering the composition and
performance of the Board of Directors
objectively

2022 F SR ER - SRR EE - &
AARNZEREEREENZ T B8
FEETBERRESSNEREE HESE
MRIZTEnE  EERESENEER
BA UL ERZEARN  EF8
TR SRR BN IEK /LAl -
RAGIGEEERER SR E TR
EUEMZIT - BRAKEBE LMD
EANENEBHEFHEIAN - ARFWE
BR2ZRENHEUKRER R E &
EERER  REUNZTENEE T
fiy

The objective has been achieved in 2022,
and the Company has taken steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to the Board
of Directors and management levels.
With regards to gender diversity on the
Board of Directors, in selecting suitable
candidates for directorships and proposing
recommendations for selection, the
Board of Directors takes the opportunity
to increase the proportion of female
members as time goes by. The Company
will continue to promote gender diversity
when recruiting staff at middle to senior
level, so as to reserve a number of female
senior management staff and potential
director successors for the future.
The Company aims to keep a proper
balance of gender diversity by referring
to the expectations of shareholders and
international and local best practices.
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The Group’s male and female staff account for approximately 65% and
35% of the total number of staff, respectively. In the past year, the
proportion of female staff in the Group was substantially the same as
that in the previous year.

The Board of Directors conducts an annual review on the gender
diversity policy of all employees. During the year, the Board of Directors

NERK IS BIZRAEE has reviewed the programme below and the progress in achieving these
objectives:

B ERBERNEE

Programme The Progress of Achieving the Targets

BiF RRBEEREZBFERGRURNZT W o 20226EEENK - REREEABRMKS
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Obijective

opportunities and gender diversity, monitoring
and measuring its performance in equal
opportunities and gender diversity °

EFEgETBAESENETREEER
e ERRIFEEERHNRA - WAYE
/_IJ:\%E. DE\EE

(@) ®HIE R ARR DR
B

KERBRR R

(b) BEREREZENSR
Bl R EE R

EEABN

(0 BERERARREETEENE
ERRETHEABR R ER

(d HIE - ﬁﬁ&&ﬁﬁéﬁi$mﬁ
STEARERFMA0E)

(e) WMFARFETENR
BHIER

SFAME X 3%

112 EWEERERLE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Company encourages and advocates equal

TLABEHIE

o BHEEINRAL B -
el
The objective has been achieved in 2022,

EEMEH T EN

providing diversity and inclusion training
for senior management staff
Continuing to reinforce the diversity
and inclusion of talent recruitment,
management and promotion

The Board applies good corporate governance principles and is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its
written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(©)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the year under review, the Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and ensured compliance with the CG
Code (especially the principles of good corporate governance) and the
requirements disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting. Board
meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to each
Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial year ended
31 December 2022 six Board meetings were held. The attendance of
individual director to the Board meetings in year 2022 is summarised
below:

g BT
EESSERY
Number of
Board Meetings
Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 6/6
Mr. Junichiro Ida 6/6
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 6/6
Mr. Koji Shinohara 6/6
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 6/6
Ms. Tseng Chien 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 6/6
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 6/6
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 6/6

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group's strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group's financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 162 to 169.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and
reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where
appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice on their responsibilities, expenses
paid by the company. To ensure that the directors have deepened their
understanding of the Group, senior management of the Company has
conducted a continuing professional development plan for the directors
during the year.
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Summary for 2022 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@ learn about China's various regional channels operating
conditions; and

(b)  understand the production and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

In accordance with Code Provision C.1.4, all Directors are required to
provide their respective training records to the Company. A summary of
the training received by each Director during the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 is set out below:

SMESHFE
EXRRETE  BEAE
EHRAIREMEREE
ERNBRHBERERE

Participate in the
Directors’ continuing
professional development
programme and read
materials on the latest
developments in relation
to the Listing Rules

and other applicable

=23 Directors regulatory regulations
HITEE Executive Directors

BERALE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming v
FHEG—EE Mr. Junichiro Ida v
MARRFEE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen v
S e Mr. Koji Shinohara v
mfEBEESLE Mr. Yuko Takahashi v
Ex+t Ms. Tseng Chien ‘\;
HUIFHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors v
RIEREL Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun v
FRERE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock v
R RS A Mr. Hiromu Fukada v
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems and
their effectiveness, as well as maintaining good corporate governance
standards and practices. It also acts as an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the
group audit. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and will meet regularly with management, internal
auditors and external auditors, as well as review their reports. During
this financial year, the work conducted by the Audit Committee include:
review of financial statements, annual and interim report and result
announcements of the Group, regular meeting with management,
internal auditors and external auditors, as well as review of their reports.
Four meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December
2022. Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as

follows:

HEBITEBRRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/4
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 4/4
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 4/4

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. The Committee now comprises four directors, namely,
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong
Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and executive Director, Mr. Wei Hong Ming.
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee.

One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 December
2022. Details of the attendance of the remuneration and nomination
committee meeting are as follows:

HEBITEBERE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 1/1
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 11
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11

The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles. With regard to the policy on the
nomination of Directors, the Committee will take into account the
experience, knowledge and professionalism of the nominees in order
to enable them to bring efficiency and effectiveness to the Board
and to promoting diversity in board membership (including gender
diversity). During this financial year, the Committee implemented works
including: review the structure, size and composition of the Board;
assess the performance of the Executive Directors; review diversity
status of existing members of the Board and give advice; evaluate the
biography of the Director candidates and advise the Board in respect of
the re-appointment of the Directors; advise the Board in respect of the
remuneration of senior management.
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RRARIEFBBERNT - The Company’s remuneration policies are as follows:

(a) BRERESFEANFINBE LT HRE (@)  Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should

ZRAFRERBBEFERE  Fa) be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
HEFK requirements;

(b) FTEEZEMEHBKERZUARS & (b)  The remuneration of directors should be set at a lever sufficient

REBEFEN QAR EEMXPEHE to attract and retain them to manage the Company’s operations

NBZNEe  W2RBRARYER without excessive payment, while taking into account the

TREMFEBNER & Company's requirements for the time required to perform their
duties; and

() FHENE2EGIFEHEAZB - (0 A director must not be involved in the making of his personal

remuneration.

AEEEEkREEEERZE2022412AH Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
31 BFENMESFHNGRE VB RENT Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 10 to
10 ° the consolidated financial statements.

REE2022F 12 A3 BFEXMoMS The emoluments paid to the nine senior management individuals during

FEREEBATZBESERMT the year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:
EE A
SRESMSA5R Emoluments band Number of individuals
3,018,543 AR % 3,449,763 ARKE RMB3,018,543 to RMB3,449,763
(3,500,001 87T £ 4,000,000787T) (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000) 1
4,312,204 AR¥EZE 4,743,424 AR RMB4,312,204 to RMB4,743,424
(5,000,001 7% 5,500,000/87T) (HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000) 1
4,743,425 ANR¥Z= 5,174,644 AR RMB4,743,425 to RMB5, 174,644
(5,500,001 8L E 6,000,000 7T) (HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000) 1
5,605,865 A R# = 6,037,085 A R RMB5,605,865 to RMB6,037,085
(6,500,001 87L& 7,000,000/ 7T ) (HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000) 1
6,037,086 AR E 6,468,305 AR RMB6,037,086 to RMB6,468,305
(7,000,001 7L% 7,500,000/87T) (HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000) 1
7,330,747 AR¥ % 7,761,966 AR RMB7,330,747 to RMB7,761,966
(8,500,001 8L E 9,000,000787T) (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000) 1
7,761,967 AR¥ZE 8,193,187 ARKE RMB7,761,967 to RMBS, 193,187
(9,000,001 87L& 9,500,00078 7T ) (HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000) 1
8,624,408 AR¥ 29,055,627 AR¥E RMB8,624,408 to RMB9,055,627
(10,000,001 % 7L% 10,500,000/ L) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2
9
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The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure, i.e. control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.
The goal of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group
within acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s
long- term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of
defining the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.

Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2022, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control where a prudent and effective self-inspection system
has been established to achieve full coverage of external and internal
inspection on each aspect thought the management circle. Meanwhile,
more efforts have been put in supervision over subsidiaries where
management regulations have been formulated with a priority to
processes of higher risk. In addition, the Group has been promoting the
monitoring work in respect of laws and regulations anti-fraud and the
construction of internal control culture.

The Board conducts review for the Group’s risk management and
internal control system at least once annually. The Board recognizes
it has overall responsibility of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group's business objectives and the Board can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. For the financial year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems. According to the internal audit of the internal
inspection department, we have not identified any material deficiency
in risk management and internal control. Therefore, the Board and the
Audit Committee believe that the Group’s risk management and internal
control system are effective.
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The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is

set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
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with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to-long term vision and
strategic objective.

In response to the ever-changing market trends, the Group has been
learning from international benchmark enterprises and improving the
operation of three lines of defense for risk management. Meanwhile,
in accordance with the three-line framework newly promulgated by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA) of the U.S., the Group formulated its
risk management strategy for the next three to five years. Under the
instruction and guidance of the Board and the Operation Committee,
the Group focused on management of five major risks in three
categories, namely environment, social and governance in 2022 with
specific countermeasures and strategies as detailed below:

1.1. ENVIRONMENTAL POLLUTION RISKS
1.1.1 Definitions:

o Improper management of raw materials and
energy consumption in the production and
processing process leads to the risk of resource
waste and excessive emissions.

o Improper disposal of hazardous wastes in the
waste disposal process leads to environmental
pollution risks.
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1.1.2 Coping strategies:

Adhering to the guidance of the sustainable
development concept of “Keep Our Nature Green”,
the Group focused on resource conservation and
accurately accounts for energy consumption and
resource input in the production design process. For
recyclable resources, resource wastage is reduced and
input of redundant materials are managed from the
source through efficient reuse in the production loop.

The Group promoted environmentally-friendly
packaging through innovative products, and reduced
the consumption of plastic packaging and the
circulation of plastic products in society through
effective management.

Combined with the actual situation during the daily
production process, the Group fully supervised and
counseled the production process to ensure that the
efficient production process was put into operation
effectively. The yield rate was improved in the
production process and wasted material and spoilage
was reduced.

The Group ensured that hardware and software
personnel were in place during the waste disposal
process, optimized the waste management process
and closely monitored the discharge treatment
process to ensure that it met or exceeded the national
standards.
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2.1 FOOD SAFETY RISKS:

2.1.1 Definitions:

o There are many kinds of raw materials and
items, and the management level of suppliers
is uneven, which threatens the risk of
contamination of raw materials.

o The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is
complicated, and some links may be risky due to
poor monitoring.

At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation

2.1.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks. Continuously improve the testing
capabilities of local factories and laboratories to ensure
the quality and safety of products from raw material
procurement to sales in retail outlets.

Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system
of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, optimize
and implement regular unannounced inspection and
unqualified supplier delisting mechanism, and pay
attention to process traceability management and
inspection.



HHEBEBONRRFEE
ORI - HBER
R MU BB #B P E #IRR
o BRINBEEEIRE
BEIEWEER  TERLH
L M e F R ER
PIRE%S SOP ©

SERER :

2.2.1 FFEHH -

LIS VA S/ R VA | = =
g BB EERR
SAREERESE
& - AT BEIEAK 8 A
THRRB M ER
TEERY - 1T
ERITAKRE %X
BEEMmAERBE
BF ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
BERIRETRA
o IETRER
FBEZERTES
En - ANV
FLISBEERR -

s XEBRIESREOR
= B M HEE
- HEAEER
ZHH - ERE R
ESRERETR
E’]H"{uu o

. m%ﬁ&%f%ﬁ
RUERFERE
= HNERIRIR %u %IJ
EHEERTEHNE
[%%J—Uz ’ HKLW
EEAEBTIERERE
TITH B s E
B EKRKKXBE
B [DARERERL 155
BRERBSR -

EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report [N N

o Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

2.2 CORRUPTION RISKS
2.2.1 Definitions:

o Personal behavior norms or professional ethics
may deviate and administrative behavior is
out of control because of selfish desires, self-
interest and other ideological and moral errors,
or family affection and other circumstances, or
to instruct others to violate professional ethics,
resulting in unjust and unfair results of work
behavior, damage to the interests of work
targets or improper gains, which constitutes
serious consequences such as “abuse of power
for personal gain”.

o There is a lack of effective supervision and
internal control mechanism for mutual
interaction and balances in all aspects of
business process, resulting in the risk that
managers are prone to fraud.

o It may cause incorrectly performing
administrative duties or inaction by on-the-job
personnel, constituting serious consequences
such as dereliction of duty, malpractice and
“abuse of power for personal gain” due to
the particularity of post responsibilities and
the practical risks in terms of ideology and
morality, external environment and institutional
mechanisms.
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2.2.2 Coping strategies:

The Group has established and continuously
improved its anti-corruption mechanisms, focusing on
prevention, implementing punishment and prevention
in parallel and clarifying the key links and key areas
of anti-fraud to standardize the whistleblowing,
investigation, handling, reporting and remedial
procedures for fraud cases.

The Group has promulgated at least 20 management
policies and systems related to anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, covering the directors and all employees
of the Group, as well as cooperative suppliers,
customers and distributors, in order to continuously
strengthen its construction of anti-fraud system.
The Group has clarified the professional integrity of
employees, strictly prohibited job fraud, implemented
fraud reporting and supervision and review, and
stipulated corresponding punishment measures.

The Group continuously promoted integrity culture
building and conducted anti-fraud publicity for
employees to reinforce the awareness of business
conduct, and create a healthy culture and clean
atmosphere through various training forms such
as new employee training, corporate micro-signal
publicity and online learning platform, ensuring that
all directors and employees were covered by anti-
corruption and anti-fraud business ethics training.

The Group took advantage of informatization
measures to strengthen the internal control system
measures to business systems, enhanced the coverage
of business control, so as to identify and collect fraud
clues in a timely manner, and set up preventive,
identifiable and corrective internal control measures in
business systems and applications. The Group regularly
reviewed and supervised the business conduct and
professional integrity of business departments.
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3.1 EfER: 3.1 INFORMATION RISK
3.1.1 A - 3.1.1 Definitions:

s EBHEHZzEE- e Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
BEE-BEXE IT safety, operation and back-up system, such
?_Er aiERE 2R as prevention and handling of system disorder,

0 R & RS R system crash, safety protection or computer
= *r,% 72 #E virus.
B mSTEN EE
BE -

o BHEHKZERE ¢ Information management and control rights,
BB R network threats, data center physical security
2.5 ﬂ s /DWJIE risks, such as malicious rights, network intrusion,
ZEEK NEE data center power, access control security or
e - E%)\& . unauthorized access to the information system
& ¥ ':P DHEH as a whole.
2R 22 5 HUBR Bl R 4%

XREEATE RN
BAEGERER
R o

. B %/ﬁ » & ®  Risk of out-of-control information systems
B BEFER K caused by external threats such as theft of
,%‘I?TX%E’\H?HX SN equipment/data, computer fraud, unauthorized
REEBIZEEINAN access, and vandalism.

BZ sl &R
R RERER

e REBENERHMEER e Failure to effectively integrate business
B R R RE B R information among IT systems.

& o

o HNEHEBEFAEZEIEE *  The regulations related to information security
ERABEBRE - B are becoming more strict, while employee
THRENRES awareness of information protection is weak,
BBl FEAR there is the risk of information leakage.

SN A E R o
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Improve the operation and management regime
for information system based on PDCA to maintain
an effective support of information system to
organizational development and business continuation
and ensure its stable and effective operation,
thereby avoiding company losses and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests.

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected system operation
controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on control
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Reinforce the information security management
system of the Company according to adopted
ISO27001 information security management standard.

Achieve an upgrade of management system through

enhancing systems in aspects such as organizational strategy,

staff awareness, user access, information assets safety,

emergency management, system operation, outsourcing

management and legal compliance management.

Achieve self-improvement of information security

management system through online and offline publicization

and implementation, theorical penetration by departmental

safety liaison officer, periodic tour inspection and audit

under the guidance of external certification institutions and

ongoing follow-up on corrections.
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Through the aforesaid, the Group is able to further expand
the coverage and management dept of the information
security management system and continuously and
effectively reduce the risk in leakage of information relating
to its core strategy, technology, operation, financial reports
and human resource, etc.

e Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration. Deeply tap the value of information, build
an effective inter-system connection of information
and construct a commercial intelligence platform for
cross-system information analysis, thereby improving
the digital-based operation capability.

3.2 SUPPLY CHAIN RISK
3.2.1 Definition

e In the context of a fluctuating raw material
price, enterprises may be unable to avoid risk
of fluctuations in market prices as they fail to
make reasonable procurement prediction due to
inaccurate judgement on market trend or failure
to adopting diversified procurement strategy
and tools.

® Due to much reliance on a single supplier,
enterprises may be unable to develop or
switch a new supplier in a timely manner in
case of supplier exit or occurrence of quality
problem, thereby impacting the operation of the
enterprise.

e There are still room for improvement in the
EHS management in production process: the
tightening standard in emission cut and energy
conservation, enhancing staff awareness on
health and certain safety control and monitoring
still to be improved, which may pose challenges
on the Company.
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3.2.2 Coping strategies:

The Group has established a diversified
procurement strategy with two procurement
approaches which are centralized procurement
by the headquarter and separate procurement
by local operations. Through centralized
procurement, the Group will have more
bargaining power and standardized procurement
process, while through making good use of
local procurement, the Group could fully utilize
the advantage of local resources, which could
be an effective complement to centralized
procurement.

Establish the operational mechanism for daily
development and emergency switch to the
alternate supplier of key materials. Based on
the important levels of raw materials, the top-
level material shall have at least one principal
supplier as well as three to four (and more)
alternate suppliers to ensure prompt availability
of the material at any time of emergency. In
the context of the global pandemic, the Group
has formulated risk control plan for imported
materials and supplies to ensure a safe supply.

Establish and improve the supply chain EHS
management system and actively push forward
the certification of 1ISO45001/14001 dual
systems. Main while, improve the relevant
warrants obtaining efficiency through internal
management and optimize the design side
to effectively manage risk and conduct daily
safety inspection to reinforce the effective
implementation at the execution side.
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To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through evaluation and support
from external professional independent consultant, adhering to the
operating idea and corporate culture spirit of the Group, the 2023
guidance of optimization of risk management and internal control
system is specified and formulated.

Point 1: Keep optimizing the significant risk management system
of the Group in line with the up-to-date philosophy in the world

The Group identifies, assesses and monitors group-level significant risks
on a regular basis. In addition, based on the data of risk assessment,
to assist the management in formulating risk coping strategies
and increasing the risk management standards. Daily supervision is
conducted over the implementation of risk coping plan with a view to
reduce the remaining risk to an acceptable level.

Point 2: Continue with the authority management of the IT
system to enhance corporate governance of the Group

The Group designs and sets up IT authorization management policies
according to the control requirements of different businesses. The
approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures operational safety,
the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and the efficiency and
compliance of business operations, thus meeting corporate governance
and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Continue with the digital-based transformation to realize
the objective of ex-ante warning with information system

As the business model becomes increasingly complicated, the ex-
post manual inspection adopted in the past has become outdated.
Meanwhile, the increasing labor cost also makes the traditional
operation mode unsustainable. As such, the Group has carried out the
project to construct an IT inspection system tool, with a view to enhance
the control effectiveness of the three lines of defense.
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The Company’s internal audit department is an independent unit
directly under the Board. It is specifically responsible for performing the
Group's internal audit and anti-fraud investigation functions, as well as
reporting them to the Audit Committee and the Chairman on a regular
basis or when necessary, within the authorization given by the Board.
The internal audit functions conduct independent, objective and risk-
oriented internal audits of the Group's significant risks in relation to
its operation and execution of its significant strategies as well as its
related monitoring systems. The scope of audit mainly covers major
risk management systems such as information, food safety, supply
chain, finance, operation, and compliance with laws and regulations,
mainly focusing on the five substantial elements of internal control,
such as control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and monitoring, so as to assess their
effectiveness. The anti-fraud investigation functions, through making
investigation into whistleblowing and anti-fraud audit, facilitate the
management to enhance anti-fraud system and the incorruptible culture
and system, so as to improve the overall governance environment
of the Company and enforcement of corporate culture. Results and
recommendations on risk management and internal control inadequacy
from each audit and whistleblowing investigation projects will be put
into detailed discussion with the management, and the management
will formulate improvement plans while internal audit department will
track the executions to improve the risk management and internal
control inadequacy within reasonable time, in order to continuously
enhance the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control, thereby helping the Company accomplish business
goals, reducing operation risks, as well as protecting the interests of
Shareholders.

In addition, the internal audit department also, through providing
consultation services on risk control, assists the management of the
Company in accomplishing its goal to safeguard business operation.
Such services may include internal consultation and in-house training
in respect of potential problems facing the Company, internally or
externally, in management of risks, internal control and compliance.
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The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The Company strives
to promote and maintain a liberal and probity operation environment
and corporate culture, and to formulate integrity policy, whistleblowing
and protection policies. The Company has set up a reporting mailbox
and hotline, the internal audit department receives whistle-blown
information and conducts investigation and has announced the above
reporting channels in multiple places including the Company’s website,
so that employees and business partners can report in confidence.

2023 will be a high-quality development stage for the Group
in promoting self-assessment of internal control to continuous
enhancement. Over the past five years, the Group has established
a normalized and stable self-assessment system on internal control.
In the future, the Group will further foster the risk owners’ sense of
ownership in respect of risk management and internal control, thus
providing reasonable assurance for the Group’s accomplishing of its
operation goals. All these are established based on tools such as time
series analysis, trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis,
regression analysis and compliance analysis. Through the automated
analysis and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the
goal of positioning and management from the source of risk. Through
the steady implementation of the above steps, we can effectively ensure
the Company’s corporate reputation and brand image maintenance,
value creation and risk management mechanism are in line with the
expectations of stakeholders.

In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

e The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

e  The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website; and
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e  The Group has established the inside information management
rules throughout the Group and provides to its employee trainings
in respect of inside information management. Senior management
and general staff who can access inside information due to
their rankings or duties are required by the Group to assume
confidential obligations in respect of inside information. In respect
of result announcement or material transaction, strictly controlling
and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing information, the
material sensitive information is concealed by confidential code
(including electronic, written and verbal), and giving a written
notice about the lock-up period and other matters required for
special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB7.952 million and RMB0.866 million
respectively and no significant non-audit services were involved during
the period.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Kuowei LIU, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 31 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company convened and
held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) and one
extraordinary general meeting (”Extraordinary General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out

RE]) - BEERBRRAGZHFELREHT

wm below:
HE BT HE /BT
=6 P8 =6 P8
Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings
Attended/Held  Attended/Held
BRRAFAE BRRERIAE
Annual General Extraordinary
B= Directors Meeting General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
Nl Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11 01
HHAE—R s Mr. Junichiro Ida 0/1 0/1
MARREE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 0/1 01
RRERE Mr. Koji Shinohara 01 01
SRBEELE Mr. Yuko Takahashi 0/1 0/1
Ex+t Ms. Tseng Chien 0/1 0/1
HUIEHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIEREE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11 171
FREEE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 171 171
REARTE Mr. Hiromu Fukada 0/1 0/1

Ff— RIS A ERIER B KB AHEAR
RARRAGHREROREEEAQFE
BRI DR 10% LR B R AR A A
EETSEREEB K EREFEERA
NRABERE ST KBRBRRERIRE -
NEEREEAFRKPIANEE - 2E5FE
ARV BALEREFEREREARRNT
At =Rt - MRBEZFERKA21RA
ETgUARBERHE  REBERBAR
AABERESTRBEREFRAE -

BREFIAGNERBLBAINEERER
FTXTELEMHARNWERE  TELE
WHEEAXRFRN AR ER G HF

yl[c

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

B EER
2022 Annual Report ¥

133



ARBRABITT —REVHKRE - FFEKR
SRAHERANKRERDAE - RRME
NEEARBERRFETERL -

RARBORNRERFEEZ - WRAER
RREMBOHEETERERYRAKRE
EBER UEREEHAEEEBREAR
EBRBNERGAEES - gilt - AQF
B Il E AR R A BCR (AR R ]) -
SRS EER R R EMREFDENER SR
RiE - RREERARANMGERE BFR
RARBMEMAIEEFANERRERNEN
BEABE  UWREMBBERERE &
MR EMARREEE ZRTIFENERT
BAERS AT A8t R AR A Ak ¢ RIARER 1R
HARBA  BERE2ERRA2S
NERARBNRALEBESUAAFE - 2
HAEFAEMNEERRE - REWNHH
AARAENEMBE(BEYREAA
HEMEMEERE)  BERRER  ATKH
B ERREBBFEARANTNBELEN
(R EFTBEE 18K P IRESCE
5607 E) » EFHXEETFEHHFZE ir@tingyi.
com e NAR)EHEERFBABER - N
BREBRIE - RBIE2022F12 A31
BRPBFE © AA BB R IR A AN
RUEREEBRERERFEETANS
BEERERZANEL  URAQAFEA
BRI B EREMNF N EHE R MERA
B RANSE  THRRBARENE
MR R RME

134 E@EERERIE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

l Bl S XEA%E | Corporate Governance Report

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

The Company is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ interests
and believes that effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the business performance and strategies of the
Group. To achieve this, the Company has established the shareholders
communication policy (the “Shareholders Communication Policy”)
setting out various formal channels of communication with shareholders
and other stakeholders, which include publication of the Company'’s
financial reports, circulars and notices of annual general meetings and
other extraordinary general meetings that may be convened, and other
information in accordance with the regulatory requirements published
by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website
of the Company under the relevant laws, regulations and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, providing corporate communication to shareholders,
encouraging shareholders to participate in general meetings, for
ensuring fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting
of the Company’s performance and activities. Shareholders who
have any questions (including any questions about the shareholders’
communication policy), comments and suggestions relating to the
Company may send their questions, comments and suggestions by post
to the Company's operating locations in Hong Kong (Suite 5607, 56th
Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) or email to
ir@tingyi.com. The Company reviews the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has reviewed the
Shareholders’ Communications Policy and confirmed that it has included
channels for shareholders to express their views on various matters
affecting the Issuer and that the Company has taken appropriate and
sufficient steps to seek and understand the views of shareholders and
stakeholders and is satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders’ Communications Policy.



EEQREBABHN 2EF BE HH
HEMERN T A MRRIZHE IR IPIA
BRFDNES - o HBAEERESE
PR REEE[ 1R E A E R A AR R AR
- EFSHBECERRE N FXEPIRME
MEER  THEHM2nMREReE &
ExnmMEEEeREEENER -

f& R b Al A E # @8 2 78 wwww.
masterkong.com.cn % & A W 58 12 HH (T ]
FE e

BIEE2022F12A31BFE - ARMMA
WERITEELE -

ARAB BB HENBREBER - &5
EERRMEERAEANEEME ZERE
Ty - ARBMBREBKE EERREMN
REINHE - AEEARREE R
WEFESHBERERZA - EEREMN
IRNBEER  ARAREERZERE : &
RASENERMIESHVBEE  A&H
MRBESKERRRERTE - EEL
AR e RN - AEBENEFER - ATae
BAKBEEB P BEEMRABZED
NESIIMERE - REFTSRREENE
S e

ay—
PaE

EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report [N N

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

There were no changes to the Company's articles of association for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group's liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.
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The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2022, the Group
conducted more than 300 meetings with approximately 1,800 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng Index. The Group is
currently covered by more than 20 investment banks and securities
firms, which shows our investment and development potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 45, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019. He is the elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr.
Wei holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's
College London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the U.S..
He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at Makena Capital in the
U.S., which was invested by Paul Allen, the co-founder of Microsoft. Mr.
Wei joined the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006,
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr.
Wei had led many projects such as the development blueprint of the
MIS Group management system promoted by a number of international
consulting companies, and made long-term effective planning for the
digital transformation and supply chain layout of the future group
system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 60, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji Bank,
Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June
1998. Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America
as well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods
business between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd
in Africa) and Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Gunma.
He is also the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship
Foundation, the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and
Sports Foundation, the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry
Association, the Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan and
the visiting professor of Rikkyo University. He was awarded the “Medal
with Blue Ribbon” by Japanese government in 2021.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 40, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is the younger brother of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming. Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial
College London, Master’s degree from Waseda University, and MBA
from Harvard Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group's
New York office and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed
as a Director of KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr. Wei
has accumulated many years of experience working in the Group, and
during which has contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships
with international corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from the Department of Economics, Keio University, Japan
in 1990, he worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales
and business management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand
marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior
Director of ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-
Cola Atlanta headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice
President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than
20 years working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 60, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 63, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group's Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. From 2002
to 2012, he served as the chief financial officer of Yingye Da Co., Ltd.,
a listed company in Taiwan, and from 2011 to 2017, he served as the
chairman of the board of directors of Yitong Solar Energy Technology
Co. He has also served as a director and supervisor of several Taiwanese
companies (including listed companies) since 2000. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 82, has served the Group as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 27 September 2004, a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee since 2004, a member
of the Audit Committee since 2004, and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee since 2005. Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience in
commercial banking, investment banking and risk management, in
particular the management of investment risks and internal system risks.
Mr. Lee began his banking career in 1961 with Malayan Banking Berhad
and had worked in its Kuala Lumpur Head Office and Singapore Branch
before he was transferred to Hong Kong to oversee the bank's loan
portfolio in 1964. From 1977 to 1987, Mr. Lee was the senior manager
of the marketing department of Development Bank of Singapore, Hong
Kong Branch and concurrently the general manager of two deposit-
taking subsidiaries of the bank. During his tenure, he specialised in
the development of banking products and assessment of their relative
risks. During 1989 to 1997, Mr. Lee was engaged in corporate advisory
businesses, and since then in private financial consultancy business in
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 30th July 1995, the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
since 11th February 1998, and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Director since 1st August 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 93, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had served as
Minister of the Japanese Embassy in the U.S., Ambassador of OECD,
Singapore and Australia, and director of Economic Affairs. Mr. Fukada
had been the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006
t0 2016, and he is currently the Advisor of the same company. He is also
the auditor of Kajima Institute of International Peace.

IP Pui-Sum, aged 63, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in 1996.
Mr. Ip has 25 years of experience in public accounting and company
secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant (practicing)
in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

Richard CHEN Yinjang, aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group. Before his appointment on 1 January 2021, Mr. Chen had
served as the Chief R&D Officer in the Group since February 2013. Mr.
Chen made excellent achievements in developing local talents, building
win-win relationship with external partners and qualifying technology
platforms. Mr. Chen, after graduation from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in National Taiwan University, had worked for Procter &
Gamble for 25 years in global R&D management, prior to his joining of
Master Kong. Mr. Chen, trilingual in Chinese, English and Japanese, was
leading in consumer product innovation and R&D capability building
across the U.S., Japan and China.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College London and an M.B.A. from
Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in
Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix
Chang'’s Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.

Walt WU, aged 62, Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. He
graduated from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National
San Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Vice President of human
resources of the Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO
office in September 2014 and since November 2014, he has served as
Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in Twinhead International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human
Resources, Tsrc Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice
President of Human Resources. Mr. Wu has 31 years of experience
in human resources management, with expertise in strategic human
resource management, human development. He endeavors to build the
sustainable development talent team, to promote organizational change
and make full advantage of human resources benefits, realizing the
organizational transformation.

Frank WANG, aged 51, is the Executive Vice President of CEO
Office. He joined the group in 2008, has been the Head of Strategic
Management dept. of Instant Noodles business, Head of Strategic
Management dept. of Master Kong Beverage business and Pepsi
Beverage business, Head of Chairman’s Office, Board Secretary and
Head of Corporate Development dept. Mr. Wang is responsible for
corporate strategy, organization restructure, information technology,
legal, public relations, public affairs in the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wang served as Associate Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior
Consultant in Computer Associates’ JV, where he was in charge of Asia
Pacific business. He has years of experience in digital transformation
and value chain integration, value chain integration, sustainable.
Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental Systems
Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree in
Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communications Management and Technology from New York
University.
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Max HUANG, aged 58, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
30 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.

TSAIl, TZU-YUAN, aged 62, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was appointed as the President of the Group's Beverage
Business in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Fukeyule Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly
familiar in sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the
China market operations. He has rich management experience and
strong execution capabilities.

Vincent LIU, aged 62, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of Chong
Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou Tingjin.
Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading Company
TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar with management in sales and
marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

IR R PEA ST (E5E)
Profit (Loss)

Y = attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

AR¥FIT ARETFT AREFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

paRid il Instant noodles 29,633,696 28,447,646 1,374,530 2,004,335
R om Beverages 48,335,730 44,801,936 1,378,164 1,837,467
Hth Others 747,994 832,710 (120,382) (39,320)
&t Total 78,717,420 74,082,292 2,632,312 3,802,482
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2022 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 20, the section headed “Prospects” on pages 21 to 22 and
of the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 119 to 131 of this annual

in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control”
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 20 of
this annual report.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 170.

The directors approved and paid a special interim dividend of RMB44.38
cents per ordinary share, recommend the payment of a final dividend
of RMB23.36 cents per ordinary share, and a special final dividend of
RMB23.36 cents per ordinary share, totalling RMB5,132 million.

The special interim dividend has been paid on 14 December 2022. The
final dividend and special final dividend will be paid on or before 12 July
2023. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 13 June 2023 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 174 to 175.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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REHBE
RHBEH Number of share
Date of grant options granted
2008 43 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008
2009 F4 A22 H 26,688,000
22 April 2009
2010 %F4 A1 H 15,044,000
1 April 2010
2011 %4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011
2012 F4 A26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012
2013 %5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013
2014 F4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014
2015 %6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015
2016 7 A4 H 10,148,000
4 July 2016
2017 4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
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At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of
ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term
of ten years from the date of adoption.

(@) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the
terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table A
TEE

Exercise price
1T1EH (&)
Exercisable period (HK$)
2013 %£3 A21 HZE2018 3 A20 H(1) $9.28
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 %4 A23 BE2019 %4 A22 HQ) $9.38
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2015 %4 A1 HZE2020 43 A31 H() $18.57
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2016 F4 A12 HZ=2021 F4 A11 B4) $19.96
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2017 %4 B26 BE2022 F4 A25 H(5) $20.54
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
2018 45 A27 BZE2023 %5 A26 H(6) $20.16
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
2019 %4 B17 BE2024 F4 A16 H(7) $22.38
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
2020 %6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(9) $16.22
5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
2021 %7 B4 HE2026 F7 A3 H(9) $7.54
4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
2022 %4 A21 BE2027 %4 A20 H(10) $10.20
21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)
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TR EEHEE2022F12A31H 1&
+ — B AR #2008 F B i 5 I P

The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2022 pursuant

2 BRI BT to the Share Option Scheme:
E%B Table B
EREHE
Number of share option
SERTEA
i
RFREZ Ro02E  THUmE
RpbHE Ra022% £ ERBHE 12B31A Weighted
Closing price 1818 FREd BT Va3 2t average
Tf#E  of the shares i Granted Exercised  Cancelled/  Balanceas  closing price
#e RTEH Exercise  onthedate  Balance asat during during  lapsed during at 31 December  immediately  FE
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2022 the period the period the period 2022 before exercise  Note
BT BT BT
HKS HKS HKS
HES
Executive Director
L 2012547268 20,54 19.88 112,000 - - 112,000 - - EAD)
Tseng Chien 26 April 2012 Table A (5)
201355A278 20.16 20.05 140,000 - - - 140,000 — EA®)
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
2014545178 2238 22.35 164,000 - - - 164,000 — BAQ)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556450 16.22 15.92 232,000 — - - 232,000 — EA®)
5 June 2015 Table A(8)
BLt 01754A218 10.20 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — EA10)
Wei Hong-Ming 21 April 2017 Table A(10)
RER 017547218 1020 1020 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — EA(10)
WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017 Table A(10)
AR
Chief Executive Officer
RESR 014548178 238 235 262,000 - - - 262,000 — EBAD)
Chen Yinjang 17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556858 16.22 15.92 380,000 - - - 380,000 — BA®)
5 June 2015 Table A(8)
201657 A4A 7.54 7.54 500,000 - - - 500,000 — EBA9)
4July 2016 Table A (9)
2017%4A218 10.20 1020 500,000 - — - 500,000 — EA10)
21 April 2017 Table A(10)
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B#B Table B
BREYR
Number of share option
SRARE
g
el A 0205 THKHE
RipumE R2022% £R EREH 12B31A Weighted
Closing price 1A1R ERR BTk Ves: 2t average
frf¥E  of the shares &g Granted Exercised  Cancelled/  Balanceas  closing price
%% gk Exercise ~ onthedate  Balance asat during during  lapsed during at 31 December  immediately Bz
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2022 the period the period the period 2022 before exercise  Note
B BT B
HK$ HK$ HK$
TERR
Substantial Shareholder
AN 201254 F26H 20.54 19.88 1,368,000 - - 1,368,000 - — BAjD)
Weilng-Chou* 26 April 2012 Table A (5)
2013%5K27H 20.16 20.05 1,390,000 - - - 1,390,000 — EA®)
27 May 2013 Table A(6)
2014%4F178 2238 22.35 1,486,000 — — - 1,486,000 — BAQD)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556 A58 16.22 15.92 1,726,000 — - - 1,726,000 — EAQ)
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
EftER 201247268 2054 19.88 4,816,000 - - 4,816,000 - — BA®)
Other employees 26 April 2012 Table A(5)
inaggregate 2013558278 20.16 20.05 6,236,000 — - 912,000 5,324,000 - Ab)
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
2014545178 238 22.35 7,049,000 - - 1,118,000 5,931,000 — BAD)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556850 16.22 15.92 11,196,000 - 458,000 1,528,000 9,210,000 1711 EA®)
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
201657 R48 754 7.54 1,706,000 - 564,000 - 1,142,000 14.43 A(9)
4 July 2016 Table A(9)
2017E4A218 10.20 10.20 6,950,000 - 2,170,000 - 4,780,000 1417 EA(10)
21 April 2017 Table A(10)
st
Total 48,213,000 - 3,192,000 9,854,000 35,167,000
EEER 147
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(b)

HZE2022F12A83181E+=1@A
M AEEEBEIRHRETE
3,192,000 /4% - fIHEFH1T(EE
£10.59/87T - 1TE B Z BT AT
BT ER14.648 7T - FHEREH
RS B T R MIRE30 ©

# BEMNAARBINAMERTSEEREM
AITES - tEMEETENHNT
@A Z W EEFE D B A Profit
Surplus Holdings Limited A Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 25%
# % ° Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited M EFBEFH(F S5 )E
A& B PR A F182.165% B %5 + 1
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
MEFERFIFEE)ERER
AF17.835% Kt o JAFT (=
BIERBRAREEFAELARR
1,882,927,866 x5 °

2018F B ST &I (b)
2018 F AR B IERIT & LR
AIE17EEX - BRAARARF20184
BT 2 H RN T D
Bl&C

RHERE
R B Number of share
Date of grant options granted
201844 H27 H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
2018 4 H 27 H 5,626,000
27 April 2018
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For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2022,
3,192,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$10.59
and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$14.64. For details, please refer to note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 82.165% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table C
1TEH 1TEE
Exercisable period Exercise price
(#BT)
(HK$)
2021 4 A30H%E2028F 4 A 26 H (1a) $16.18
30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)
2021 F4 A30BE2024F 4 A26 H(1b) $16.18

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)
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ATHEHRTEE2022F12H31H The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
IE+ A BRIE2018F BT 2 Pt options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2022
R BRES B pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme:
B %D Table D
EREZA
Number of share option
SETRAN
Sk 000 R0nE  ETHRHE
ZRBRHE 1818 EREHE/ 12R31R Weighted
Closing it % 28 average
price of Balance EREH EREAE Cancelled/ Balance closing price
g the shares asat Granted Exercised apsed asat immediately
#e R7EH Exercise onthe 1January during during during 31 December before i
Name Date of grant price  date of grant 2022 the period the period the period 2022 exercise  Note
AR B B
HK$ HK$ HKS$
ez
Executive Director
AR 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Ming 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
01847278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1b)
Y 018548278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018 Table C (1)
018547278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
Thes
Chief Executive Officer
[+ 018547278 16.18 15.02 144,000 - - - 144,000 - B(()
Chen Yinjang 27 April 2018 Table C (10)
IZRR
Substantial Shareholder
REN 018547278 16.18 15.02 470,000 - - - 470,000 - B
Wei Ing-Chou* 27 April 2018 Table C(1b)
AbESES 018547278 16.18 15.02 1,708,000 - - - 1,708,000 - B
Other employees 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
in aggregate 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 2,975,000 - - - 2,975,000 - B
27 hpril 2018 Table C (1h)
@it 6,263,000 - - - 6,263,000 -

Total
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HZE2022%12A8318 1+ 1@ A &7 During the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, no share

R BE2018F R &R R T options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option

BB AR HE 1T (66 - Scheme.

# BRENAARANAMESESERFE # Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
MATAITES - thEWMEEFEN former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
Xa A ZMEEEIAIFE holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited & Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited Limited is indirectly interested in 82.165% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
25% #Ez= ° Profit Surplus Holdings Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
Limited @B B IEF (A= 5 ) % interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
& B IR A F82.165% Kz + M Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

MERaEH(HESS)ERER
NE17.835% W o XS
EIERARAREEFAARAR
1,882,927,866 R °

REB 7 RITERFIBHRGRE T BR Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
*HIFE32 - consolidated financial statements.

REEARBERARERKBHIEZAZRA  The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year

RIEERITHAEHS - and up to the date of this report are as follows:
HITEE Executive Directors

BEREEE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
HHEG—BEE Mr. Junichiro Ida

BRERKE Mr. Koji Shinohara

BRRIEE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen

SiEBEESLE Mr. Yuko Takahashi

Ex+t Ms. Tseng Chien

BUINTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RERFERE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun

FRELE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock

RS A Mr. Hiromu Fukada

TTIEAEEL Chief Executive Officer

PRAERSCE Mr. Chen Yinjang

BEFURERRRFI N EAARARIZAE None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
HEFAIR—FARIEZRBEEH - not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.
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AVAL

BEENERERABZEAAERSENAE
WE137EEZFE 1428 -

2022912 A31 8 EFERITRAER
AAmIRERABEZIBE(EEREFLFRAE
B[ 5 RERE R ) 3B+ 1 EB) 2 ik
7 HERDRESR 2R IARE ()
BEEFRBAERIETABELREN
DEMEARRARBEBRERIABRA
(B3P ) (B AR R 1R 5% %ﬂwﬁuwﬁaﬁz
WRARB 2 E=IAR) (D) BIEF
%&ﬁﬁ;wﬁu%352(&%%@5@%&521%?)%
iz R (O RIBE EM AR ESR#HST
BER G 2 BESFRIZBMNE AR T REE
Fran T :

(-1 ARG REEROHER

HE Name

55 Directors
WA Wei Hong-Ming
AR K Wei Hong-Chen
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The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 137 to 142.

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHEE IR 2
Number of Shares BatE
BARER EERER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
5,000,000 — 0.09%
BT

2022 Annual Report ¥



Il Bl ==23R% | Directors’ Report

(@)-2 RELFBRERNRRE (E2) (a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)
R RS
BaLE
SR RERME RBEE Percentage
Capacity and Number of of the issued
®H Name nature of interest shares share capital
5= Directors
BEH Wei Hong-Ming E=MAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
BRI Wei Hong-Chen EmAEAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
B15 Tseng Chien ExnlEEA 536,000 0.01%

Beneficial owner

THHER Chief Executive Officer

RiEE Chen Yinjang BB A 1,786,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

M5E Note:

1. 3% %1,882,927,866 M ATEF(H = 1. These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name

EVERBRARTEN DB RUES of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin"). Ting Hsin is

EER  BHAEMNEAR(HNE]D ERHE beneficially owned as to approximately 51.925% by Ho Te Investments

BH#51.925% * LR BRAR(E Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.240% by Rich Cheer Holdings

43 1)¥5HE430.240% - Rich Gold Capital Limited (“Rich Cheer”), and as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold

Inc. (TRich Gold )#§%5 17.835% ° FI{& % Capital Inc. (“Rich Gold”). Ho Te and Rich Cheer are owned as to 100%

4= TR Profit Surplus Holdings Limited by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the

(TProfit Surplus]) 100% # & - Profit trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary trusts in

SurpIUSE*ﬂE EFEMEFEA - At equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary objects of the four trusts

BAEFREAOENEETIRES LI are as follows:

A o PmERBEFEAKZARNIER

mALT ¢

- BRESZALMER—ERBEF —  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
BRI A - EZE’]’F%%{L‘K%?E@?% with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary objects;

MM BEIBEZEA

-  MERALMER—EARERETEN —  Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with Lin
LA - IS EFE AR 2 3R Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;
ERXARBEXEA

- BHASBALMER—ERBEF —  Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
HIRIZA - BB FELAZRRT 548 with Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary objects;
RBEFTABEZEA R and
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RichGoldlHTE R E A =R B R A A
(Tingho Capital Holding Co., Limited) 2#&
HE - MIERERER AR A & 8 Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited ([ Profit Surplus
3DFTFEE o Profit Surplus 3R—EEAE
FEREEEA (L fEFEFR B ERE
SRR E F‘ %‘ﬁ o ATt E BB EFE
B AR 20 A B 51 8 AR 1557
BELEZE -

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited £ il fTz
BERIEEFEZEEA °

2. ZRFEJNE AR 13,942,000 BRAE 5 R A
2% - W45 H 5,072,000 10 BEALHE (D BIEE
HIGNEE 147 B BIRB R 149 B BKD) »
BRGEEATEMNE BINE AR EE
NI A 2 IR 1D RABRE IR (D R i e o

PRAEFTHEEE SN - BE2022F 12 A31
AIEHRNEREESEREANESIES
EB BB FRRRD T N\me FrEE
AEBARRAZROIESMESHE
L HER o 1% P BRA IR AT 50 (AR L S A
F o RARSHEAFMME AT BEBEE]

TR - BEEE A M EMEA
E RS ER S -

Br R B P4 B8 25 O) - 7R 20224 12 A 31

H BIEEERITHRBHENANARSHEAE
wilmﬁﬁ E5 REIE GRS T RE0)
2SR 2B () BEEELS
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REHRR ZERIKE)  H(b) BIEFS
NMEAE&BISE 352 (&R E L8R E s I i
Z&EmM () BIELTARESET
BHR 5 2 IZETRBME ARG REER
FfT o
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—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with
Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which
is owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus 3"). Profit
Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of each of the discretionary
trusts mentioned above.

2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and
holds 5,072,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on
page 147 and 149 respectively) under the share option schemes of the
Company. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also
deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held by
Wei Ing-Chou.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2022 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

B EER
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MARAIESHATHAI A - 712022
F12A318 BREBEBHFRBEGHNE
336 RETHEFNELRMATREE (AR R
BME) TERREREMATEEARR
AR RABBER GO MERSOR BT ¢

]

Name of shareholder

FERERER

Interest of Substantial Shareholders
TRzt 1)

Ting Hsin (see Note T4

MERB(ZHE 1)

Ho Te Investments Limited (see Note 7)*
LERRERRB(ZHT )4

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited ( 2 ##:# 7)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see Note 7)4
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (2477 1)4
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
ERERERERAB(ZHZ1)4

Tingho Capital Holding Co., Limited (see Notes 14
Rich Gold Capital Inc. (247 1)4

Rich Gold Capital Inc. (see Note 7)4

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (2 /{7 1)4
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (see Note 1)4
ZHFRmRA gt

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A IR R2ERAFRE1S2HEEE 1538
EEE(OE=3-)

B EatESN - 7202212 A318 R
(BHRBEKRDN)EIBKATHEFHE
AR EE - BIEE M A T HEA AR AR
(B Y=
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So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

EEET
RN
ZAEDE %
% of the
ELn) BERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREBA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Beneficial owner
RENFER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
VNGl 3 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BRUERXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BREFEXTA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Trustee of a unit trusts
VNGl 3 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
R NaEs 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BEELIXEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Trustee of discretionary trusts
ERBEAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42

Beneficial owner
A Note 1 and 2 are set out on pages 152 to 153

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2022.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB10.143
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.

B EER
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RIE =

M2019F 11218 & 2 7 H
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HEGEHBDEMRRERER  FHA
20201 A1 BE 2022412 A3181k=
BHBFE - BEFHARAZEFTEERR
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ERREXERBEE=ES - TEIFHE
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23H - 2020F 1 A16BEE K ZAERE

HEZ202F12A318B LFE B I8
FTREMBAFAZEABSERARE
2,069,013 F 7L o LA E A AR BB # R %
MIzE38 IR oS - ARFAE EMAAE
BEERHITER o

TR e L B 1 8

201912 16 B » KARIEKEAIE
BN FAEERAR([TEE )T HER®
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EERLAREENRENERVBEE=HE
B U ERGMFBAILERATN 2019
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Tingzheng Supply Agreement

On 21 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Tingzheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Tingzheng”), pursuant to which, Tingzheng and its
subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging materials and
plastic products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Tingzheng is beneficially owned
by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei
Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. The Tingzheng
Supply Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 16 January 2020. Details of this agreement may be found in the
Company’s announcements and circular dated 21 November 2019, 16
December 2019, 23 December 2019 and 16 January 2020, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Tingzheng
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,069.013 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Fung Supply Agreement

On 16 December 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung Starch
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting Fung
agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavour products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Ting Fung
is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company. Details of this agreement may be found in the Company'’s
announcement dated 16 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Ting Fung
amounted to RMB241.367 million. Such purchases have been disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements of the Company and were
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules.
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Ting Chuan Agreement

On 22 October 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its
subsidiaries to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term
of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023.
Ting Chuan operates the “Family Mart” convenient stores in the PRC
and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and held approximately 33.48% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the Ting Chuan
Agreement. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 22 October 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB115.833 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Weizhen Supply Agreement

On 27 November 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
(“Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Weizhen Investment
is owned as to 75% by Great System Holdings (Private) Limited (" Great
System”), a company which is beneficially owned by family members
and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an
Executive Director of the Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 27
November 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB387.608 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Marine Vision Supply Agreement

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment
Inc. (“Marine Vision”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of carton
box products from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Marine
Vision is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director
of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of
the Company. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 18 October 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,447.480 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Nature Investment Supply Agreement

On 25 September 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group's purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Nature Investment is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong- Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 September 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB229.275 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Success Forever Supply Agreement

On 31 December 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Success Forever Investments Supply Agreement”) with Success
Forever Investments Group Ltd. (“Success Forever”) in relation to the
Group’s purchase of plastic products from Success Forever and its
subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. Success Forever is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Success
Forever and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,009.013 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Tong Logistics Services

On 22 June 2020, the Company entered into a logistics services
agreement (the “Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement”) with Ting
Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong”) in relation to the
Group's purchase of logistics services from Ting Tong and its subsidiaries
for a term from the day of the Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement
to 31 December 2022. On 30 September 2021, based on the rational
expectation that the transactions would exceed the original annual
caps, the Company entered into a supplement agreement with Ting
Tong to revise the annual caps for fiscal year 2021 and 2022 under
the Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement. Ting Tong is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transaction above may be found in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 June 2020 and 30 September 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Ting Tong
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,876.252 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the respective annual cap as set by the Company.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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RARZ AT BEEIRMA ESBE L There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
HBRERT  HAFRSEE AL ERS Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
RAZ SRR ZRH - rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

MAEBLOBENEMERENAFRSE 10 Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 20
BEZE20H[EREMNmMANINE21E under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on pages 21 to 22

E22HIREIHD - under “Prospects” of this Annual Report.
ARARIREEAFAE LBIREEEFER A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the

R(ER)LTMELKMAR AR ARNAT Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.
B 2 RFAEE

AREES By order of the Board
HEE Wei Hong-Ming
BEEgTE Chairman

B 2023437278 Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEREBFERBE18HPIRES 4218
Tel |35 : (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 170 to 337, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,259 million at 31 December 2022. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2022 was RMB10,969 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the
impairment review and test of machinery and equipment including the
consideration of the indicators of impairment and the determination of
the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) and equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB254 million and
RMB159 million respectively at 31 December 2022.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the
valuations performed by the investment manager or trust administrator
of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not
supported by observable market data and are based on assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the
valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their
significance to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement
and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI included:

a)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

b)  Obtaining and understanding of the Group's valuation process;

)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

d)  Discussing with the investment managers or fund administrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

e)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2022 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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ERBEEBETEETENNBREF - As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
BMBEREXHE RRIFEEEMAE  judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
[ - HFITRE We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: PO5132
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it ARETFT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W= Revenue 6 78,717,420 74,082,292
SHE AR Cost of sales (55,818,003) (51,571,867)
EF Gross profit 22,899,417 22,510,425
E bz Other revenue 7 650,412 783,501
EmFUA Other net income 8 874,820 1,024,195
PaR iz ] DN Distribution costs (16,809,780) (15,708,282)
THEA Administrative expenses (2,396,714) (2,469,530)
B g A Other operating expenses (750,648) (229,996)
M%ER Finance costs 9 (446,021) (223,494)
BB ENEENAEE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 127,318 121,824
BRBE AT R Profit before taxation 9 4,148,804 5,808,643
g Taxation 11 (1,072,970) (1,424,976)
REERF Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
ViN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 2,632,312 3,802,482
DER R A Non-controlling interests 443,522 581,185
REERF Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
FREFR Earnings per share 13
HAR Basic AR#46.730 AR¥67.57%
BE Diluted AR#E46.7150 AR#67.515
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
BaF ARMTFT ARBFoT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
AEERF Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
Hip2mE s (FR) : Other comprehensive income (loss) :
T2 ELIEEBmARRIEL  Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
AERBMNEMECEME Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 33 798 (5,652)
B A AEESBRREEAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
2HERGEIREERNEZ TE  designated as at fair value through
DABEEZE other comprehensive income 7,874 —
8,672 (5,652)
ARG RIEZ A ESIEE Items that are or may be reclassified
Ao kP RIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
PE X ZE%E Exchange differences on consolidation (1,640,813) 292,959
We R+ Cash flow hedges (1,011) —
(1,641,824) 292,959
AEEHMEE(ER)WE  Other comprehensive (loss) income
for the year (1,633,152) 287,307
AEE2HKRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 1,442,682 4,670,974
B2k SEEE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 323 Owners of the Company 1,124,397 4,070,213
DERIR R MR Non-controlling interests 318,285 600,761
1,442,682 4,670,974
BRAREIER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
7202212 A31H At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
"B FE Investment properties 14 1,832,200 1,807,100
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,259,417 21,510,028
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,625,714 3,691,741
B EE Intangible assets 17 162,480 155,970
EES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
iR N Interest in an associate 20 93,316 94,847
EX-VNSIL Interest in joint ventures 21 614,316 625,163
BARBEYIERE Financial assets at fair value through
BEREENSREE profit or loss 22 254,543 626,901
TR AAEBEYERE  Equity instruments designated as at
HL b 2 TR LA 2 R B B Y fair value through other
EHTHE comprehensive income 22 158,518 137,317
BELETIREE Deferred tax assets 34 481,923 518,605
KEERTR Long-term time deposits 26 5,841,900 5,376,900
34,422,237 34,642,482
REBEE Current assets
ENy Inventories 23 5,254,592 4,671,477
FEM R FR Trade receivables 24 1,808,281 2,043,744
A g B F7 T8 Tax recoverable 20,354 14,729
TER B REMBEUWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,897,389 2,352,553
RHEITEATR 52 BIERER(H  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 1,710,000 725,000
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 12,531 20,746
IRTTEHRNMRS Bank balances and cash 26 12,323,922 15,838,492
24,027,069 25,666,741
wmERE Total assets 58,449,306 60,309,223
BREREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R 4 Capital and reserves
BT Issued capital 27 235,741 235,633
& 10 5 (B Share premium 28 825,364 786,965
(] Reserves 29 12,310,421 17,637,378
AATRRREMRER Total capital and reserves attributable
B to owners of the Company 13,371,526 18,659,976
DB RES Non-controlling interests 19 3,443,949 3,748,524
RERERBE Total equity 16,815,475 22,408,500
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M2022% 12 A31H At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it ARET T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RABEREE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 8,415,871 6,350,369
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 145,448 195,519
BITREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 69,026 79,920
REHREGE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,298,948 1,449,910
9,929,293 8,075,718
RBEE Current liabilities
BRRAREBETIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
BRERENSRAE profit or loss 39 — 9,959
FERTER R Trade payables 35 9,489,908 9,046,518
HEMEMZEREUIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 9,783,497 9,593,331
£ EBE ZAVAE G, Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 9,203,139 7,311,444
HEmnshaE Other current liabilities 39 — 40,000
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 155,665 159,520
TEeMT A Derivative financial instruments 31 92,729 —
BPIENFIE Advance payments from customers 40 2,571,730 3,342,990
I8 Taxation 407,870 321,243
31,704,538 29,825,005
B g Total liabilities 41,633,831 37,900,723
BRREZRREEHETHE Total equity and liabilities 58,449,306 60,309,223
ERBEE Net current liabilities (7,677,469) (4,158,264)
BWEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 26,744,768 30,484,218

FI170E337E AV ERREAES
E@N2023F3A27TAMERERESE
THUATALTRREE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 170 to 337 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2023 and signed on its behalf by

H M4 —BB Junichiro Ida
ZFZ Director

BE 4 WEI Hong-Ming
EZ Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

RAREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERER
g8 JURRER Rz
BiRA RIVEE Tota Non- [Eass
lssued Share BE  cplaland controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Teserves interests equity

ARETR  ARRIR ARRIR ARRTR ARRTR ARRER
RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB'000 RMB000 RMB000

R202UELRLR At 1January 2021 235422 730,075 20147227 N12,724 3,626,659 24739383
KEEEH Profit for the year - - 3,802,482 3,802,482 581,185 4,383,667
Hp2EE(5R) Other comprehensive income (l0ss)
RERMEEZERE Remeastrement of defined benefit obligations - - 4.260) (4.260) (139) (5652)
EXZE Exchange differences on consolidation - - 17,991 7,991 20,968 292,959
HE2ELEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 267,731 267,731 19576 287307
REERANEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4070213 407013 600,761 4670974
RANARRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contributions and distrbution
EREERATN A Equity settled share-based transactions - - 5,075 5,075 - 5,075
RERRETEETIRY Shares issued under share option scheme M 56,890 (13,693) 13,408 - 13408
BHEREE2000K8R 2020 final and specialfinal dividend approved and paid
BRXERE - — (06226 (4062263) (63903 (4,526,166)
BHEREE 2021 571 ERE 2021 special nterim dividend approved and paid - = 250000 (2,500,000 = (2500000
N1 56,890 (6,570,881) (6,513,780) (463,903) (6,977,683)
HEERY Changes in ownershyp intrests
EEHYBIHEOHELT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
FRERY without change in control - - [9,181) (9,181) (14,993) (24,174
HANARRZRG4E Total transactions with owners of the Company M 56,890 (6580062 (6,522,981) (478896)  (7,001,857)
R2021E12831R At 31 December 2021 235,633 786,965 17637378 18,659,976 3,748 524 22,408,500
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HZ=2022F12 A31 BILFE Year ended 31 December 2022

KDIRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARGE
88 HURREE k%
BRE RiaE Total Non- ERAE
Issued Share %  capialand  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity
ARETE  ARETR  AREFT ARETR AREFT AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
R02F1R1A At 1January 2022 235,633 786,965 17,637,318 18,659,976 3,748,524 22,408,500
REREH Profit for the year - - 26m3 2632312 M350 307583
B2 ENE(FE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
Renekn Cash flow hedges - - (747) (747) (264) (1,01)
RERFIETZEREW#33)  Remeasurement of defined henefit obligations ot 33/ - - 836 836 (38) 7%
BERLABEFERELL Fairvalue changes in equity insruments designated
2ENAERENERTA as at fair value through other comprehensive income
MEEEY - - 1874 1874 - 7874
EiZE Exchange differences on consolidation - (1515878) (1515,878) (124,935) (1,640813)
Efp2EEEAE Total other comprehensive loss - — (1507915 (1507.915) (1581 (1633.150)
REE2ENEER Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,124,397 1,104,397 318,285 1,442,682
HANARRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
RESHT Contrbutions and dlstrbution
EREERNTN IR Equity settled share-based transactions - - 522 522 - 522
REEREEE TR Shares issued under share option scheme ote 27)
(H527) 108 %39 (035 2154 - 2154
BYERIRE 2021 REIR 2021 final and specialfinal dividend approved and
RIRERE (W 12) paid (note 12) - - (394253 (3252 (620860)  (4565,383)
BHERIEE 200255 5RE 2022 special interim dividend approved and
(w12) paid rote 1) - — (50000 (2500000) — (250000)
BALIRRZR A48 Total transactions with owners of the Company 108 B399 (645134 (6412847) (62860) (7,085,707
R202%128318 At 31 December 2022 235,741 825,364 12310421 13,371,526 3,443,949 16,815,475
AT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZ2022F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEKRAEBRS Cash generated from operations 37 6,022,166 7,386,100
EHFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,106,248) (1,751,040)
[k TN Interest paid (440,605) (216,981)
RETBFESRSFR Net cash from operating activities 4,475,313 5,418,079
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2 AE Interest received 488,936 783,501
I REATFEBTIOFE Increase in long-term time deposits, net 26 (1,450,000) (3,666,900)
BE &R RIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 121,957 91,681
B U — B o 7] B A Dividend received from an associate 20 17,739 20,015
BUIE A EEYIER KRR  Dividend received from financial assets
HERRENSHMEEK at fair value through profit or loss and
BEEAABEIIER equity instruments designed as at
FEEMEEUEEREIEA  fair value through other comprehensive
T T AR F) income 8 1,413 2,522
HEZQAAEBEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
T8 ARER 12 assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 441,953 963,895
BARAABEIERR Purchase of financial assets at
FEBEREIEMNSRMEE  fair value through profit or loss 22 (6,992) (103,187)
BABLEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 — (17,086)
BBAME - MR E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,123,833) (2,966,094)
BAFHEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (115,111) (14,482)
HEYE  WBENREN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
FERAEEEZE and equipment and right-of-use assets 216,920 195,778
Himnsha &z Decrease in other current liabilities 39 (40,000) —
Uk B8 — FEI BT B A 7] Net cash inflow on
FrigiR&m A FEE acquisition of a subsidiary — 8,829
LEMB ARG Net cash inflow on disposal
BEeRMAFHR of subsidiaries 41 116,890 250,989
RBWERZ FE2ETEE Net movement of loan receivables 25(@a) (50,000) 407,000
REZHFIARSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (3,380,128) (4,043,539)
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#HZE 2022512 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Mat ARMTFIT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BMEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BERNARRREZRE Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (6,452,482) (6,562,263)
BV EEEREERE 2ME  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 37(a) (623,618) (463,040)
RIR R IR Issue of shares under share
BT 2D option scheme 27 29,154 43,408
TNHEAE Payments of lease liabilities 37(a) (213,967) (190,095)
IR ITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(@a) 13,434,412 3,160,010
EERTRAMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(a) (14,127,767) (4,150,754)
HaQHEE ZE8)F%  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 37(a) 3,336,763 1,251,107
XA EE D R R Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests — (24,174)
RMETBHAREEE Net cash used in financing activities (4,617,505) (6,935,801)
REeEREASEEYUN Net decrease in cash and
RS cash equivalents (3,522,320) (5,561,261)
FzRERBEELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 15,859,238 21,431,153
B o HE Effect on exchange rate changes (465) (10,654)
FRZBESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 26 12,336,453 15,859,238
BRAREIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 B31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

BREFENGEMBEREMTES - BF
NAE BRI TR RAEIE ] 2 BB
AR - NG BIRERERA
SR E 2021 FEMF B RE
R—EM - AEBEAKAZEES
AHEBEHN A REWE
3 o

TRBEGEMHERER REE
H ERAEERDEERRBE
ERHARE7,677,469,000 7T -
hEEEHFENMAEBRENRR
Rz EBESRMERNK -

EZARAKERBABHAZIRT
FEEMNBRT  REAEEEANR
HRE TN EIRTE L IRE A
ot RMEMBHRRAFER
L EANRE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2021 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB7,677,469,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a) MHBUEE (@) Basis of measurement
RER A BERRFAREE The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
AEHSEE  RIZAAEEY] consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for

R REUEHE - BARE
BIRLREEGEREEN S
BE WHERALBEIER
FHME2HBEREENER
TR -manEEIKIEER
FRESRABERITESR
B FIBEN T Z &K

o

A H Bk

investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

B EER
2022 Annual Report ¥

179



HREBHIRARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

REMBBREBARALSE
MY BRI IRk o R
BARMBEHRANSHF LR
AREER - Gt BRITER
7%& °

AEBEAFZ QA ZEETR
SR BEER X5 W
X RB@EYEHIRE - HEA
AIH) SR AR B AN 5 [ BUAS 12 il 4
ZHHEEH - XEES G
BAREEEHIEEILEAN -

DR RER B AR T
BRRELEEDFAEINNEGS
Wak FAaTERARAR
RERAMBARR KR Z R E R
N BREBELIHEARS
BESKAABEZLING
CEREEFEIOBRRE
@ R RASEEIDH
P BRAE 2 P A1 15 0 P e AR
LI RER R B By 2 ] 4
R RER - ;T EEERER
R M HEE - [RIER A
ISR S R Z KA S — @R
ERE - BRIEMEREIHE
BERKVDARABERE

% o
DEE EHR AR

AERRERE2E WA SR
BEBARBBRERLEDBBE
BEOME ZHREEBRER
ARRAR R KD B RE
m@ IEEeER P PR
BB EER -

180 mEMEERAERDIR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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©)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date, amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

O

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When an existing property becomes an investment property,
any difference at the date of change in use between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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()

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group’s interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI"”); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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0

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

7)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

4)  Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds and listed equity securities as further detailed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings, other
current liabilities and derivative financial instruments. All
financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL,
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(ii)

(iii)

incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged (see note 3(k) to consolidated
financial statements).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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SMIE(E) ()  Financial instruments (Continued)

S HEERAEMBEL.ZHE Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
(%)

BANTES Definition of default

NEBREBULNTERANLEZE The Group considers the following as constituting an event
REBEEBERNNENSEH of default for internal credit risk management purposes
BRELEHRBER  MRFEMU as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
TEAZEENTRIA K& receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
ek EE 2RO KREEN financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

BRETHE -

() BB SN IR AR R IE (i) information developed internally or obtained from
BHEEEREBHS AT external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
BRI MHEERA 8 pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
HBAER(TEZEEAE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
FAENEAERR) ;5 or

(il REFERMBEL - (i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

TE LM ON » NEEBRA Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

B4R EEMEHBIH 0K - default has occurred when a financial asset is more than

REBENDEE  RIEREE 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and

BAREAAYENERERS supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

BRENIZET BEE - default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

() it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
related parties and certain other receivables are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(¢ the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Group enters into and designates certain foreign
currency forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign currency-denominated
borrowings. The Group’s hedging objective is to hedge
the foreign currency exposure to the cash flows variability
arising from the principal repayment of the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings whilst the Group’s overall impact
on exchange difference could be maintained at a reasonably
low level. The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts
to manage the foreign currency risks until the repayment
date of the foreign currency-denominated borrowings.
The Group hedges to the extent that the foreign currency
exposure arising from the Renminbi ("RMB”) denominated
borrowings made by certain group entities of which the
functional currency is United States Dollar (“US$"”). Under
the Group's cash flow hedge arrangement, the terms of the
hedging instrument basically match with the terms of the
hedged items, the Group expects the value of the hedging
instruments to move in the opposite direction as compared
to the value of the hedged items, and thereby ensures
hedge effectiveness. Therefore, the Group applies a hedging
ratio of 1:1. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in
these hedging relationships principally arises from any late
designation of the hedging instrument.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedge the
intended relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other net
income/(expenses).

When foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
foreign currency borrowings, the Group designates only the
change in the fair value of the forward contracts related to
the spot component as the hedging instruments. Forward
element and foreign currency basis spread are separated
and excluded from the designated hedging instruments
and the Group treats these excluded elements as costs of
hedging. The fair value changes of these excluded elements
that relates to the hedged item is recognised in the cash
flow hedge reserve within equity. These excluded elements
at the date of designation (to the extent that it relates to
the hedged item) are amortised on a systematic and rational
basis to profit or loss over the period.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the
years when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The
movement in spot rate is recycled from equity to profit or
loss to offset the foreign exchange gain or loss arising from
translation of the hedged foreign currency borrowings. Such
reclassification from equity will offset the effect on profit or
loss of the corresponding hedged item to achieve the overall
hedging result.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
remains in equity at that time remains recognised in equity
and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and
deferred costs for hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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(m)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs,
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

() the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.
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(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group's performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until such
time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payments from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is US$ and majority of its subsidiaries have RMB as their
functional currency. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.
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(n)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(¢ All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(n)

(0)

(9)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).
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()

(a)

("

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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("

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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HEE) (s) Leases (Continued)

1EREFAN () As lessee (Continued)

TEEEBIUBD 2 AEEE Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a

NHREBEBREAEIEEEGHANE separate component are considered to be part of the total

SEBIE S 2 BB —EB consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

7 e components of the contract.

AREERHAEFIGHHERE The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

AEEENEERE - liability at the commencement date of the lease.

CTREEEYSIEKAGTE The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

[Nk comprises

(a) HMEBBEZYIRFER (a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
g liability;

(b)y MEBAEKZAEL 2 (b) any lease payments made at or before the
A E AT FOR AT 2 U commencement date, less any lease incentives
HEEE: received;

(0 AEBDELEZEFVS (¢ any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
BERER &

(d) AEERFHILZERIEH (d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
BiE - EEFTEH 2 s in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
HEEEREEHEEGRR restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
A BT AR T 2 AR T #% the underlying asset to the condition required by the
EEZHERAGIER terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
BARK R T R Bl & m E are incurred to produce inventories.

E) e
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()

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years
Over the leasehold
period

1 year to 5 years

Land use right in respect of
leasehold land
Machinery and other equipment

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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As lessee (Continued)

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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()

(t)

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (”vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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v)

Taxation

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to item recognised in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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v)

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

BEEKE -
(vii) ZEBRE HEFMB (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
SEZEMKER it is a part, provides key management personnel
—EAKED - 12 services to the Group or to the parent of the
HEAREEABR Group.
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members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(©)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

x) SBHRE (x) Segment reporting
BB ZRETANBATEL Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
BRREEREANAIRE 2 with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
E‘t éﬁ( K E\,\;}HE & decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who

EEC WML ;Jﬁﬁ % £
MEBZEEREKE

are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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(y) ERMBEREENRRZEH (y) Future changes in HKFRSs
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At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

R Z#E REERT BB
WEER M kg -

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

BRSIENER  SHARZAE Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of
BT Accounting Policies!
BEeHEE| Bt EE Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
F85 2B Accounting Estimates !
BEeHEE| HE—TZEL Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
FENRET EETE EHES Assets and Liabilities arising
EHGE from a Single Transaction!”
BEMBRESES REA A HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts "
E17%
BEMBRE Yy i Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17
BRIBTRZB HEEHETHE and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
BEAIBHEER Information
E95-HEER
B BEEEARES Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
BRIE 152 B5] Fng” Current or Non-current?!
R WEZHH#iE) Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
BRIE 152 B5] BEY with Covenants 2
BREERE ERBER 554 Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
RRIE 62 HEERY and Leaseback !
BENBRESES REZHABERN TS Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
Z10HREES: AERGZEIZEE and HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor
BRIEWT2E  HELTEY and its Associate or Joint

Venture

m R2023F 118 2% H r

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

9 2 2 R AR 2023

@ R2024FE1A1B 2% @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
W FEHM AR 2024

Bl RN HEEE Bl The effective date to be determined

ZA/NETE: = S CE N TR RS
RIS BB B ]S
HATEHAKE 2P BEER
EEENEARE -

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for proceeds
received by any entity from selling items produced while testing
an item of property, plant or equipment before it is used for its
intended purpose. An entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss and
measures the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its requirement
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The
exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for Derecognition of
Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing
the "10 per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities —
in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently drafted,
Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease
incentive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

(i

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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(ii)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 3 assets or liabilities have
been agreed with the management of the Company. The
management determined whether valuation techniques and
assumptions applied are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group. The estimation of fair value of level 3 assets
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could affect
the reported fair value of the assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company's
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group's sales and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit (loss) for the year and profit (loss) before taxation,
share of results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated
income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DEREELE Segment results:
2022
P30 8
HEE Inter-
Instant R Hit segment st
noodles  Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETFTZT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

W Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts

with customers 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
W52 R Timing of

revenue recognition:
TEE—EER5 Recognised at a pointin time | 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
REMTFEE ZMA Revenue from other sources:
REHEUREHME ZHEUA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 72,881 — 72,881
LR EPal e Inter-segment revenue 55,443 8,014 700,353 (763,810) —
72 EE Segment revenue 29,633,696 48335730 1,511,804 (763,810) 78,717,420

PHMELE(CHRYHER)  Segment results after

finance costs 1,839,554 2,275,213 (121,539) 20,762 4,013,990
[EIEBE DRI A ARIESE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures (339) 128,810 (1,153) — 127,318
ROBZFWA Unallocated income, net — — 7,496 — 7,496
BB ATERF (B8) Profit before taxation 1,839,215 2,404,023 (115,196) 20762 4,148,804
wE Taxation (464,685)  (582,337) (25,948) —  (1,072,970)
REEZRA(EE) Profit (loss) for the year 1,374,530 1,821,686 (141,144) 20,762 3,075,834
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DEEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)

2022
R
FEE Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others  elimination Total
AREBTFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFR
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
BE Assets
NEEE Segment assets 20,015,049 34,145275 4,710,542  (1,462,128) 57,408,738
BeNRER Interest in an associate — 93,316 — — 93,316
BENRER Interest in joint ventures 464 610,216 3,636 — 614,316
APREE Unallocated assets 332,936
BEE Total assets 58,449,306
8% Liabilities
AHEE Segment liabilities 10,844,982 20,545,661 11,430,662  (1,256,500) 41,564,805
xHE&EE Unallocated liabilities 69,026
oY= Total liabilities 41,633,831
Hirg g Other information
TEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 871,679 2,335,508 179,792 (121,402) 3,265,577
B Capital expenditures 530,314 2,548,530 22,493 — 3,101,337
FEKA Interest income 285,211 409,987 13,385 (58,171) 650,412
FEH Interest expenses 31,984 210,063 270,236 (66,262) 446,021
HEMBL = Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36,304 69,688 — — 105,992
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DI . (F) Segment results: (Continued)
2021
Rk
HEM Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARETFL ARKTT ARETT ARETT AREFIL
RMB00O ~ RMB0OO ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

[ Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts

with customers 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
WERT 2K Timing of

revenue recognition:
B2 Recognised at a point in time 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
REMRREEZBA Revenue from other sources:
REHREEEHEZHEUA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 84,134 — 84,134
DEE 2 WE Inter-segment revenue 15,606 1,954 932,003 (949,563) —
SEE Segment revenue 28,447,646 44,801,936 1,782,273 (949,563) 74,082,292

PHEE(CHBRMBER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,626,994 3,052,225 35,276 (5,847) 5,708,648
eI DB A RAIEE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 428 132,974 (11,578) — 121,824
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (21,829) — (21,829
BRBEATRA Profit before taxation 2,627,422 3,185,199 1,869 (5847) 5,808,643
I8 Taxation (623,087) (766,547) (35,342) —  (1,424,976)
REE 2T (EE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,004,335 2,418,652 (33,473) (5,847) 4,383,667
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DEEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)

2021
PRI 84
HiEHE Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFr AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB00O0  RMB'O00  RMB'000
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 19,917,991  35239,108 5,020,610  (1,278,657) 58,899,052
BeEnAER Interest in an associate — 94,847 — — 94,847
BENAER Interest in joint ventures 803 619,571 4,789 — 625,163
RABEE Unallocated assets 690,161
HEE Total assets 60,309,223
a8 Liabilities
SEEE Segment liabilities 9,018,715 20,305,649 9,531,235  (1,034,796) 37,820,803
xHEEE Unallocated liabilities 79,920
BEE Total liabilities 37,900,723
HinEs Other information
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 831,358 2,230,326 193,056 (113,064) 3,141,676
BRAR Capital expenditures 521,388 2,448,225 28,049 — 2,997,662
FIBMA Interest income 393,426 426,996 16,820 (53,741) 783,501
e Interest expenses 20,106 89,962 177,187 (63,761) 223,494
HEMB A Alka Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 160,104 48,646 — — 208,750
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 650,412 783,501
2022 2021
et ARETFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
S BE 2 s Gain on sales of scrapped materials 208,992 207,189
EARBEYEEEEZE Changein fair value of
BEEMNEMEEZ financial assets at FVPL, net
NABEEEFER 10,099 (21,239)
mAREEYR&EIBZRE Dividend income from
RIEN S BEERIET financial assets at FVPL and
BAREBEYEREEM  equity instruments designated
H K ERRIER as at FVOC|
#EE TR Z BRAA 1,413 2,522
o B A B M E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 105,992 208,750
BT 8 B Government grants 418,514 356,718
HEME - WS REMEN  Loss on disposal of property,
ERAREEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (60,288) (29,527)
[ 5 (B518 ) W as 558 Exchange (loss) gain, net (30,164) 36,031
Hith Others 220,262 263,751
874,820 1,024,195
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MR (GEA) TPIIEB R -

This is stated after charging (crediting):

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B%E R Finance costs
AR S FNABHEE ZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
MEME R FIE T H wholly repayable within five years 429,900 204,049
BINSFIAFBBIEREY Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable over five years
X — 2,867
HEBBEEEZHKER Finance costs on lease liabilities 16,121 16,578
446,021 223,494
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hig g Other items
ETMA(BIFEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e Ko Salaries and wages 7,684,056 7,306,001
R EE RS Equity-settled share-based
T2 FIA payment expenses 522 5,075
RIRE A - Pension costs:
AEHRETE Defined contribution plans 806,408 683,997
RERMETE Defined benefit plans 5,599 (501)
ZEA & - Auditor's remuneration:
EZEH Audit fee 7,952 8,172
FBRREM Non-audit fee 866 776
EEFERA Cost of inventories* 55,818,003 51,571,867
FEMIE(GT AEM Written off of inventories
KEER) (included in other operating expenses) 364,243 34,021
e - Depreciation:
WE - R REE Property, plant and equipment 2,936,451 2,827,355
EREEE Right-of-use assets 322,447 306,808
A E Amortisation of intangible assets
(EBERDHEKA) (included in distribution costs) 6,679 7,513
# EEFENAPBIEHEE T - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,802,349,000 (2021:

ME - BELRRE - FRAEEE
ZHERBEVNEERHEARYE
4,802,349,0007T (20214 : AR
#4,724,716,00070) - &S EEEIN
ST ALA LB 5 2 [ERIA 5T -

244 EEEERERDE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

RMB4,724,716,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation on
intangible assets which amounts are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.
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ARABAEERITHRAZED MR The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
Bt 2 BN /agEn T Company'’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2022
Bfre
TRREZH
e
DY) aFEHRER
i Xffz  Retirement
RftEe B payments and
EShe Salaries i Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  topension Rit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB00O  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUO0  RMBUOO

HITEE: Executive directors:
iy Wei Hong-Ming 677 5417 2578 143 - 8,815
HEE- Junichiro Ida 541 217 - - - 758
REXK Wei Hong-Chen 677 5,227 2,484 143 - 8,531
EE Koji Shinohara 338 a7 - - - 555
BEEE Yuko Takahashi 338 27 — — — 555
g Tseng Chien 338 866 140 - - 1344
BUHHTEE Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
Gy Hsu Shin-Chun 406 108 - - - 514
TRR Lee Tiong-Hock 406 108 - - - 514
RAZ Hiromu Fukada 406 108 — — — 514
RS Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,000 2,250 59 - 6,309

4121 16,485 7452 345 - 28,409
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2021

XA RELH

e

SABR{R SRR

B2 R 82 Retirement

s FE  paymentsand

EZhg Salaries el Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based to pension aif
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

AERTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HIEE: Executive directors:
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 644 5,303 2,080 731 - 8,758
HEE- Junichiro lda 515 103 - - - 618
REK Wei Hong-Chen 30 5,113 2,004 731 - 8,170
BRER Koji Shinohara 30 103 - - - 425
BT Yuko Takahashi 3 103 - - - 425
g Tseng Chien 32 598 124 - - 1,004
BUFHTEE Indievendent non-executive directors:
GaH: Hsu Shin-Chun 355 103 - - - 458
ERE Lee Tiong-Hock 355 103 - - - 458
REE Hiromu Fukada 355 103 - - - 458
TR : Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,000 1317 449 - 5,766
3512 15,632 5,525 1,911 - 26,580

HE2022F %2021 12 A31 81k
FEVESERSURSHFALTRE
B o

AEBRERDFEENSUREH
AEMAREEMAMEREES
MAREBEN EMERBESTK
ERALEHERE -
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No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NEFBSHUESHATBEE2MES The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
RITHARFHRQ021F 2(UEE) - Group for the year, two directors and the chief executive officer
EBaoEFZaE N EX E&20 (2021: two directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the
(2021 5F : 3fU) AT ZEN S B W analysis presented above. Details of the emoluments of the
T remaining two individuals (2021: three) are as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FekEMNe Salaries and other emoluments 11,000 14,011
VAR 19 32 54 2 58 Share-based payments — 208
BRI NREES Retirement payments and contribution
IRIRSET B to pension scheme — 7,470
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 6,371 7,605
17,371 29,294
S 262(2021 F - 3R HBEmF AL The emoluments were paid to the two (2021: three) highest paid
ZBESERIMT individuals as follows:
EBEAE
Number of
individuals
< 48 Bl Emoluments band 2022

AR 8,624,601 TZE AKE¥ 9,055,830 7T RMB8,624,601 to RMB9,055,830
(10,000,001 8 7T% 10,500,000/ 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2

BB AH
Number of
individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2021

ANR¥8,288,333 LE ARKE 8,702,749 7T RMBS,288,333 to RMBS8,702,749

(10,000,001 87T % 10,500,000 /& 7T.) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1
AR®9,117,166 TE= AR¥ 9,531,5827C  RMB9,117,166 to RMB9,531,582
(11,000,001 /&7TE 11,500,000 & 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
AER# 11,603,666 T= AR 12,018,0817T RMB11,603,666 to RMB12,018,081
(14,000,001 8 7CE 14,500,00087T) (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000) 1
3
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2022 2021
AR¥FT AEEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEFEEHRIE Current tax
PE R EMEH PRC Enterprise income tax
AFE Current year 966,194 1,294,663
VARTEEE (%) DR (Over) Under provision in prior years (37,532) 10,518
928,662 1,305,181
BEERNEHR Hong Kong profits tax
rEE Current year 5,109 2,293
BB IE (A7 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EEREDZERERFE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net (35,891) (116,825)
BAEENHEZHEB AR Effect of withholding tax on the net
A] %%HE?’FIJ;EJ%@%EIZ distributable earnings of
AR the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 175,090 234,327
139,199 117,502
REFEBIARE Total tax charge for the year 1,072,970 1,424,976

RERETTHARARANEKEEZ
WA BUAE IR IR -

H E20229F %2021 128318 1k
FE  BENEHSIRBRAFESH
FIEFTETE R o TERARFS IR K §
ET BB EEMNE20085TH
15 128.25% (2021 4F : 8.25%) Y
FRREF - 200 8B LA ERF)HE
15 3% 16.5% (20214 : 16.5%) H) Fi
KR o

REBENHEAR  HPEMSZER
BRMIET B X B25% (20214 -
25%) o IRIBFBI B - R BEH
RERNEZHEEMHCENLTEE
A RFABCEMSHRBERNAE)
(BFEREP A 2020 8 2358 ) » U
FaaEbih @ AN IR E 2 - HE B
HEENZEBRAGEERRALN
60% A (20214 : 60%) * 52021
F1A1HE20304F12H318 7
PEBERIE 15% BB BB R 2
Frisfi o Bt - AEEETRE
(@ 2 MY B A AR R A 15% (2021
fF 1 15%) °
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The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%
(2021: 8.25%), and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2021: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice
(Announcement of the Ministry of Finance [2020] No. 23)
on the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration
and National Development and Reform Commission, foreign
investment enterprises located in the Western Region of the PRC
(the “Western Region”) with over 60% (2021: 60%) of principal
revenue generated from the encouraged business activities are
continuously entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030. Accordingly, certain
subsidiaries located in the Western Region are entitled to an
income tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%,).
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NEE 7 BRSO E A E R IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERMAT - for the year as follows:
BHEET2HE Reconciliation of tax expense
2022 2021
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A5 A A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643
BRRBUEERE25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20214F - 25%) in the PRC (2021: 25%) 1,037,201 1,452,161
JEMREE R AEARIELE  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (31,830) (30,456)
AAHERAX Non-deductible expenses 78,834 14,492
mERBUA Tax exempt revenue (33,379) (58,905)
REERTIAE B Unrecognised tax losses 71,304 73,407
REREREER Unrecognised temporary differences (6,222) (5,835)
HBRBE W ARFERILIARE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (35,043) (81,983)
RAREE PR B Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
NAEAHSEFE 2 profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TARBL (A et 34) (Note 34) 175,090 234,327
WEBAE 2 HkER" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (143,015) (180,198)
LARTEE (%) VIR EHE (Over) under provision in prior years (37,532) 10,518
Hith Others (2,438) (2,552)
REEHIAR X Tax expense for the year 1,072,970 1,424,976
A B AR 2 RINEEBIER SR A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on PRC
% /) A B B B A R 2 B USUR & T subsidiaries in the Western Region, additional deduction for certain
BONETHIRR - HMBWEES - expenses and other tax relief.
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@) AARKRERKEEEE K (a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
B the year:
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB'000

EE BRI KRS Final dividend proposed after the end
FRELE/ARBE23.36%  of the reporting period of RMB23.36 cents

(*2021 4 : (*2021: RMB33.76 cents) per ordinary share
AR#33.767) 1,316,156 1,901,241
EEREREIR IR Special final dividend proposed after
KEGRERRARE the end of the reporting period of
23.36 (%2021 4 - RMB23.36 cents (*2021: RMB33.76 cents)
AR#33.767) per ordinary share 1,316,156 1,901,241
2,632,312 3,802,482

2023438278 M € %
EFEREAREFIRARE
BREBRARKE23.369 &
REBREBEERERBRARE
23369 ° R E AR R
BRI ERGRE T BN
RPTRBENKRE - position.

RER - HRIFPHREFRE
B A R 44389 (%2021 ¢
AR®EA4.435 ) B #E & MK

3 £ AR 2,500,000,000 7T RMB2,500,000,000).

(2021 : A R % 2,500,000,000

JL) °

* LB iR A REE IR * Comparative figures are re-presented in RMB
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At meeting held on 27 March 2023, the directors
recommended the payment of a special final dividend and
a final dividend of RMB23.36 cents and RMB23.36 cents
per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial

During the year, special interim dividend of RMB44.38
cents (*2021: RMB44.43 cents) per ordinary share was
approved and paid, totaling RMB2,500,000,000 (2021:
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(b)  AAFE NI Mk 2 55 B A R (b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
HHRFEE FARRNGIREZ ES to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
&2 year:
2022 2021
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RZF R L ROk 25 B Final dividend in respect of the previous
PRI ERBME  financial year, approved and paid

BRE @K during the year, of RMB33.76 cents

AR¥33.76 9 (*2021: RMB36.11 cents)

(%2021 4 - per ordinary share

AR 36.115) 1,901,241 2,031,132

RAFARHENIKESE  Special final dividend in respect of the

NI ES RS previous financial year, approved and

NEAIR B BT R paid during the year, of RMB33.76 cents

AR¥33.76 9 (*2021: RMB36.11 cents)

(*2021 4 : per ordinary share

ARE36.115) 1,901,241 2,031,131

3,802,482 4,062,263
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AT A& E A G F =8 E s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mz&E - follows:
(a) BREXGF (@) Basic earnings per share

2022 2021

RNATIERARAREELM  Profit attributable to ordinary

A (ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 2,632,312 3,802,482
BEITEBR 2 N Weighted average number of
TR (T Ax) ordinary shares ('000) 5,632,791 5,627,083
BRREAGEF (ARESD)  Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 46.73 67.57
(b) BREFHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2022 2021

AN A E B EFEISE T Profit attributable to ordinary
(ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB'000) 2,632,312 3,802,482

B IEFE (%)  Weighted average number of

(F42) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
E#EITE BRI Weighted average number of
F1 % & ordinary shares 5,632,791 5,627,083
RNAGERAERTE 22 Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 2,694 5,251

BRETESREEEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

TR N T8 shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,635,485 5,632,334
FREEZM(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 46.71 67.51
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2022 2021

AR¥TFTT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

DNREE At fair value

REH] At beginning of the year 1,807,100 1,771,700

AABEZES Change in fair value 25,100 35,400

REEHR At the end of the reporting period 1,832,200 1,807,100
(a) AEEzREMEHE  BIF (@) The Group's investment properties, which consist of

HMRAYMERFEESUREES
THE R AR E ST
BI7TIE R #% 1678 5% & 1686
55 DA K2 AP B K03 T A BT B
B EH AN R AR
A -

AEENEERERHEEMR
EENETREESME  F
HEBRI1EIF BN
THHAJE 18 VAT IR 2 48
B

KEZEMEZHSWAFB
IR B BT MAR M EE 3(m)

HEARNEERHNARHER
mRZEEZS  BRAKE
—REeFTUHEERE  Fit
TR SYRENE
EEmEREE - HRKEEZ
RN EEZ A REE
H o

commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 1-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(a)

(b)

(%

AT RBKREREREEEE
HEZARFRBENKZEH
BT °

@

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2022 2021

AR¥ T AREFT

M12A31H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
1FER Within one year 43,652 47,981
F2HF In the second year 28,177 38,653
FE34F In the third year 3,761 20,942
75,590 107,576

DRBEFEMFTER

TEREMEEMENAREBE
B AEBENEER DRSS
EELEABOGEMETH
B - BEEABYEXEER
WEEMZEDNEE  BYEE
B (B BT LA R A (B AR A /) 2
B8 A o AERKREE AL
R EEE AT H (20214 -
W EAR(LIE) ©

R EAROEGES - BX
MEMARIELBEUNMISHE
E2EAEHEMENNE
T RITBUM RO EMBHE
RIBRFEFTE - BT
BREEXRDE2EHERMH
ZiE UM EBREMEN
Wi - BRI G ([E A0 AT AR
AR X AN SER =
AEREMA - REZRYHLIAML
BF  HRTIHENEEZ
EHB™S LA S Z A LB H
EXSEL - BEEEVERIR
EBEE DENSEEERER
BREBRAR -
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(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach and direct comparison
approach (2021: income capitalisation approach).

In income capitalisation approach, the market rentals of all
lettable units of the commercial properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well
as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the
yield rates observed by the valuer for similar properties in
the locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge
of the factors specific to the respective properties. In direct
comparison approach, comparable’s average unit selling
prices are referenced to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties
is their current use.
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(b)y DRAEBEFEMIEREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

AEBzREEEHENATL
BEAENHEEAABENSE
3R RAFEEARNREEHE
BEEHA3RARHIBEL -

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

BERE R EEES R

The following table gives information on significant

HEHAEEAT : unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
2022 2022
IR Y: PN
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EARAEB®H A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EERRE  WaERNMOER
BB RN HEHIE
BEG Income capitalisation
Commercial approach and direct

properties and
car parks in
Shanghai and

comparison approach

TEHA

The key inputs are:

e B4 A B 5% EEHBLUAAAL  BANE FANRBENDRELE
REESREMNGENEER Lt @<REUBHED
OB BRAVEREESHNE AREETHK RZTA-
SRAEXELED R RALTS% K
4.75% @ ERZR DRI /5.00% %=
6.00% £23.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  An increase in the reversionary

account the capitalisation of the
rental derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary rental potential of the
commercial properties and car parks
of 4.75% and 4.75% respectively in
Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and
3.00% in Tianjin respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) RAAEEFENFEREE)

REMEBE RERMREZ@A
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

BEATABRBA
Significant unobservable input(s)

RAE@A
HBAAEENBE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent
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BEYE
ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZHENENREZ - 015
mEkFE - FERXEEAVES
AmSHe T AR HEEETE
FRHRDBREARETIOTEA
R#1MN30TRARK3.0TEA
R¥4.937T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.30
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.93 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  wHELERYEEY
ERFzRAMERNEE - hmk
KN EBERREEFELNE
AmsHED R ARK2750T
MAR®E15.237C

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.50 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB15.23 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
ogcREUEHENDR
REBELFT RZFA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) ADABENEMIMGRRE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
FABAEA
HAAEENBR
REMEE HEETREZEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EAFRUER&@ A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
HRTHELER BAEYE

ZERIMEY FPRERUREANE HRTHELEEEER L
EYERGHENEMES . b8 A @REUEHEND
RREMRBDEURTHENE ABELF RZTA-
BIRBIARDIBAARK
43,150 TE AR 57,300 T R AR
#16,530 TE AR 18,2457T ©

Comparable’s average Commercial properties

unit selling price Comparable’s average unit selling  An increase in comparable’s
price, taking into account the average unit selling price
location, size and other characters  would result in an increase in
between the comparable and the the fair value of the investment
commercial properties, ranging  properties, and vice versa.
from RMB43,150 to RMB57,300
per square meter in Shanghai and
from RMB16,530 to RMB18,245 per
square meter in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIME KN REREBYE
BYERGZHENEMER - L8
ERE2BEFESNERTHEN
EEBH R AARE 156,800 KA
F#100,0007T °

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling
price, taking into account the
location, size and other characters
between the comparable and
the commercial properties of
RMB156,800 per unit for car park
spaces in Shanghai and RMB100,000
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.
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(b)y DAEBEEMIEREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
2021 2021
TABAME A
HBARBEENBE
BREMEME HEETREZHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques EXRFAEAR®E A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value

NREFRRZE WAL
B A A Income capitalisation

a5 approach
Commercial _—
properties and FTEHA

i The key inputs are:
car parks in

RG] EIEE ZRIESUWABAL BRAME MANEBZRNEHREXER
LRIFESRAEMNAGENEER LH gcREUEHEN
OB BRAVEREESNE QAREETHK RZTA-
SREXRE LED A R5.00% K
4.50% » ERZR D HI/5.00% %
6.00% }.3.00% °

Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  Anincrease in the reversionary

Shanghai and
Tianjin

account the capitalisation of the yield used would result in a
rental derived from the existing decrease in the fair value of
tenancies with due allowance for the investment properties, and
reversionary rental potential of the vice versa.

commercial properties and car parks

of 5.00% and 4.50% respectively in

Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and

3.00% in Tianjin respectively.
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(b) ADABENEMIMGRRE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
FABAEA
HAAEENBR
REMEE HEETREZEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EAFRUER&@ A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
BmniEe BAYE

ZERINMHE MBEREREANE FANBETHREEEE L
EMEAFIAMNENREZ 15 A 2SREUFHENR
MEkFE - FEARXEEAVES ABELA RZFA-
AmSES ARALERETE
FARDBREARET20TEA
R#1M40TRARK306TTEA
R¥4.907T -

Daily market rent Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into  Anincrease in the daily market
account the time, location, and rent used would result in an
individual factors such as frontage increase in the fair value of the
and size, between the comparable investment properties, and vice
and the commercial properties, versa.

ranging from RMB7.20 to RMB11.40

per square meter per day on lettable

area basis in Shanghai and from

RMB3.06 to RMB4.90 per square

meter per day on lettable areas basis

in Tianjin.

FES

ZEIINMHE B RERMERY
ERFzRMERNEE  mhmk
KN EBERRZEEFELNE
AmSET oA RARK27.297T
RARE1617TT

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.29 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.17 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.
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B
XA WERRE  Electrical
St Machinery — appliances ~ HERE  ARIR
Freehold g and and Miscellaneous Construction st
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(Hiia) (Hib)
(Note a) (Note b)
FEEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2021F12831H year ended 31 December 2021
LFE
RE At beginning of the year 119203 755256 12457192 9600 1311598 464dle 21934571
AE Additions 39,145 215,207 6,648 1,023,563 1,681,531 2,966,094
RE-WE-F Additions - acquisition of a subsidiary
HEAT 57,148 2,775 3 37 113 81,830
ERAER Transfer upon completion 84143 1128171 3,483 236340 (1,652,137) -
g Disposals (54,837) (94,175) (1473) (56,034) - (206,519)
HE-HENBRE  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (160,948) (248543) (197) (18365) (1153) (439,585)
ik Depreciation (498373)  (1,793,141) (9,99) (525,845) - (2,827.355)
EiEE Exchange differences 358 47 (14) 1) (19 992
REER At end of the reporting period 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 482312 21,510,028
REEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2022%12831A year ended 31 December 2022
LFE
RE At beginning of the year 7219198 11,685,439 28,074 1,975,027 482312 21,510,028
AE Additions 42,728 275,660 9674 1,096,640 1,561,524 2,986,226
ERRER Transfer upon completion 367,008 858,382 7719 405297 (1,638,406) -
e Disposals (8637 (117,39 (L576)  (85508) —(2628%6)
HE-HBENBLE  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(H41) ote 41) (#3981) (3210) (18) (321) - e
ik Depreciaton (5038%)  (1728920) (0776  (693919) — (2936450)
EiZE Exchange differences 6,592 (1,435) 4 5 6,519 10,164
REER At end of the reporting period 7029072 10,968,781 33977 2,697,221 412,009 21,259,417
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e
XA BBREE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances RERE HRIE
Freehold BF and and Miscellaneous Construction fazt
land Buildings ~ equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
AT  AREFR  ARETR  AREFT  AREFL  ARETR  ARETR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(Hia) (Hib)
(Note a) (Note b)
R2022F1A1R  Atllanuary 2022
RE Cost 119918 12340115 32,649,807 162,350 5,762,384 482372 51,516,946
ZEMERMGEEE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5120017)  (20,964,368) (134,276)  (3,787,357) —  (30,006,918)
BEFHE Net carrying amount 119,018 7219198 11,685,439 28,074 1,975,021 482312 21,510,028
R2022%12A31H  At31 December 2022
RE Cost 118357 12535499 32,704,998 162,522 6,500,888 412,009 52,434,273
ZHTERMFESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5506427) (21,736,217) (128)545)  (3,803,667) —  (31,174,856)
BEFE Net carrying amount 118,357 7029072 10,968,781 3917 2,697,221 412,009 21,259,417
FaE - Notes:
(@ ETHRRLUNEBAIIKAERE (@) The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.
tih o
by NREEH XEEETHRENEER (b) At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
HEEFRANEERBEERTZ certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
THBAESRREMEAES  BEEEE carrying amount of RMB34,509,000 (2021: RMB38,893,000) have
4 EE B AN R # 34,509,000 7t.(2021 not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
F: AR¥38,893,0000T) c = land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
RE NEBASKXEBEURERE Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.
LLRREEY) -
() FER - REBEELHFHERKRD () During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation

EBERAEELLFE - AEES
BEERCAEEBRLEIEERNK
BESORE R EERA - NEEY
REEEEMRAAE - £ESRE
B RIEN Y - BEE N REETT
RERAT

plan for both instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset
activation through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to
improve operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. The
Group carried out the impairment review on the property, plant
and equipment which have been idled for a prolonged period of
time and technical obsolescence with comparably low production
efficiency.
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FCHEEE Right-of-use assets
BEALRSE
HE+HZ
T fE AR
Land use BER
right in Hik
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other HEg
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ANREFT ARBMTT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEHE- Reconciliation of carrying
HE2021F amount - year ended
12831 BIEE 31 December 2021
REA At beginning of the year 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
NE Additions 14,482 273,242 9,231 296,955
MEEFT Lease modification — (19,766) (316) (20,082)
& Disposals (18,786) — — (18,786)
HE—HEMBAR Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (53,976) (9,896) (122) (63,994)
nE Depreciation (99,436) (201,104) (6,268) (306,808)
REEH At the end of the reporting period 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
AREE R - Reconciliation of carrying
BZ2022% amount - year ended
12A31HILEE 31 December 2022
REA] At beginning of the year 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
wE Additions 115,111 179,261 10,204 304,576
HEEET Lease modification — (23,404) 5,085 (18,319)
HE Disposals (14,351) — — (14,351)
HeE—HEWMBARAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(BisF41) (Note 41) (15,486) — — (15,486)
nE Depreciation (98,877) (215,218) (8,352) (322,447)
REEH At the end of
the reporting period 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
M2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022
(DN Cost 4,260,555 678,903 22,562 4,962,020
ZETiNE Accumulated depreciation (957,320) (302,230) (10,729)  (1,270,279)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
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ERESESE) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BREURAT
HELHZ
T EAE
Land use R
right in Hiti%
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other wEE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20225 12H31H At 31 December 2022
DR Cost 4,342,883 664,470 29,283 5,036,636
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (1,053,251) (347,158) (10,513)  (1,410,922)
REFEE Net carrying amount 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714

AEBAHEEEMHEESRTY
¥ OBEEREMRE - BENT1E
AZE304 -

PRI R E

BN KEHMEE -
FFELBALE BRIEREEE
ERHAKEER  MAKENT
HEREGHRBEE -

REHEMS AKEEAKEH
MERBETHRN  YREERE
WSS A R R IAR KM R -

TEESER

TERE AR EZSHRE TR
AR REEEERRED
SEHRERENH -

ERRKILEER

AEENBEET REARES
R R IR B - BEBHAE
EARRBMAETRIE X
FEUB E O -

The Group leases various properties, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 30 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.
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HEAE Lease liabilities
2022 2021
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEAE Lease liabilities

ENER Current portion 155,665 159,520
IEREE D Non-current portion 145,448 195,519
301,113 355,039

REEREECHERIATHA

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2022 2021
AR¥ETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
RHMEE Short-term leases 153,225 147,452
REEEE Low-value assets 3,985 1,356
P8R 2 F 2 Expenses recognised in profit or loss 157,210 148,808
WIEAR TS FIR 2 A] &  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAEAAN) not depend on an index or
MEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 46,695 58,497
RIERRERER BT Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 203,905 207,305
BREEEA IR Mm% Total cash outflow for leases 433,993 413,978

HEAE

720229128318 AE£EEB &
BEMARBZBEBKSERINE
¥CHESH - mAZMABMEKR
MREEEERCHEEREN KA
AR #3,387,00070(2021F : AR
#22,029,0007T) °

MN2022F 128310 AEEF D &
¥ A R 41,900,000 (2021 £F -
AFR#33,922,0007T) 7 MEIFE o
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Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB3,387,000 (2021: RMB22,029,000).

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to
RMB41,900,000 for short-term leases (2021: RMB33,922,000).
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KE R AT #
BTk R Water
Concession resource @t
right licenses Total
AR¥TFT AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BRAEHER Recondiliation of carrying
—EHZE2021%12831H amount - Year ended
HFE 31 December 2021
REA At beginning of the year 147,430 18,238 165,668
NE Additions — 17,086 17,086
B Amortisation (4,853) (2,660) (7,513)
HE-HENBEAT Disposals — disposal of subsidiaries — (17,159) (17,159)
b 53R Exchange realignment (2,112) — (2,112)
NEER At end of the reporting period 140,465 15,505 155,970
IREEY R Reconciliation of carrying
—-EZ2022%12H31H amount - Year ended
IHFE 31 December 2022
REY] At beginning of the year 140,465 15,505 155,970
B Amortisation (5,098) (1,581) (6,679)
BEE 5 TR Exchange realignment 13,189 — 13,189
REER At end of the reporting period 148,556 13,924 162,480
M2022%1A41A At 1 January 2022
DN Cost 187,296 17,086 204,382
BT E Accumulated amortisation (46,831) (1,581) (48,412)
140,465 15,505 155,970
M2022%F12H831H At 31 December 2022
[B#N Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
ZEtHH Accumulated amortisation (56,540) (3,162) (59,702)
148,556 13,924 162,480
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SRR A RN 201263 AXK
BHEMES ZHHEERE - et
REERTAEENRE K-
B DHMHER FWMEKMK
ERERBER  URERPEX
PE B0 45 E B AR 1 YR AR AR - L P AR
REEHMIRZH9FH BER
VAT IR

KERTAIEREEPERRANE
EE AL @AV SRR - %R
FE10E15F (20215 : 108204 )
WA B ARE#ESY o

BREERBRAEAFELE L
B EDREETRERR

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 15 years (2021: 10 to
20 years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.

2022 2021
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7R & BRE{E Cost and carrying amount
R2021F12A31B K At 31 December 2021 and
2022F 12 A31H 31 December 2022 97,910 97,910

BEEANRER REEBMNHH
REERLERTEERAER K
i ERMEEEEEOES S
BRI - EEMETERE
BoRER RAEMTTEAH
MENEENERFRE BB
BB A EMAEHR o
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Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group’s
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2022 2021
ARET T AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

K in Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEBEFEENEE((RARS
BEAEMDIER 2017 FWERMNE
Ea LR ERAR(HIMNE =R
28 1)25% MR B E o RR20224F
12A318  REELEMMEET
LONESREERN  FTERRARS
EXBEMHIKRESE- - fFERR
BEFEMENTFRMBEEYN
RemEEA - BBSFHREAE
BAELA2% (20214 : 2%) &) K H1E
REHEEHR - EAEREIRER
HEAMITELRTER - W EBA
BITEMNFHRAERE -

KmReELEMREEMREE
WA e REeEREE
LA E R BORIE -

ARFEEREENEIE2RRMNE
AIT -

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS"”) in 2017.
At 31 December 2022, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow
projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the board of directors
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
have been extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 2%) long-term growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2022 2021
ER = Gross profit margin 34% 36%
TR RE Average growth rate 7% 9%
REPERX Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
PFrm=x Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBAERRLREY MG H
ROBHETREENE - FAES
MATIR R BT AT - R BR E AR 3R
TELEVARNSTRR -

BriEEsRmBReEE BT
EEB2BERIN RABEREEL
TREBEAEMAIETET LT

BRI ZEH -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
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MR2022F 12 A3MBEZEE AT
2B A T HREM 47 -

BEEAMBRRRAFERALE
BRFKAEES -

EERERDHRRER ZHELRMN
MBER

TRINRASEE-RBEERDH
BREREEOME A F - BRAE R R
ERAR QAR ER R ) RE
MEARMNER - HMBERME
REANBE R RIFEEHEA 228

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 are shown in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”)

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”) and its subsidiares,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

N 2022 F M2021 4

12A31H 12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

DEESIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
LHEEME ZIEERLH]  Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%

A 2022 F M2021 4

128318 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AR¥Frr AR For

RMB’000 RMB'000

mBEE Current assets 15,311,416 16,462,352
IERBEE Non-current assets 19,537,391 19,491,174
meEna s Current liabilities (17,736,722) (17,848,960)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (2,826,824) (2,480,529)
FHEE Net assets 14,285,261 15,624,037
LER R R AR TEE Carrying amount of NC| 3,366,287 3,695,634
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Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BRER(E) material NCI (Continued)
BE 20225 HE20214F
128318 12 A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ARETT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ek Revenue 48,335,730 44,801,936
IRk A Profit for the year 1,821,686 2,418,652
HEi2m(BE) ke Other comprehensive (loss) income (566,298) 87,992
EHER BT Total comprehensive income 1,255,388 2,506,644
D ER R AE S R (G i A Profit attributable to NCI 443,522 581,185
DB R R E(G Total comprehensive income
EHE WL attributable to NCI 318,410 600,626
B DERERERRE Dividends paid to NCI (616,818) (466,244)
S (FR)IReREFEE Net cash flows from (used in):
K TED) Operating activities 2,205,630 3,440,271
REEE Investing activities (3,151,987) (2,764,733)
REED Financing activities (1,411,914) (160,982)
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2022 2021
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LMD - FEANE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
FEIRUNBIE 245 Share of post-acquisition results 126,840 110,632
B U B W F Dividend received since acquisition (104,202) (86,463)
93,316 94,847
REEH BB E AR 2 RAFWT Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEES
Lt B rEEREZ
Principal place ERERERESILH
of operation / A Proportion of effective
BENTEE place of Registered ~ ownership interestheld ~ FE##
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
ERBEUEAHERAF i US$16,000,000  38.96% 3896%  BEREEHM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
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LA FEE N B IR R RS BRTELR The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
SRR D o the consolidated financial statements.
BRIEEABLE AT 2HBRER Financial information of individually immaterial associate
TRV RANEBIRHEEZ EZRY 2@ The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
RIBEE R E NBIMATREEN share of results of an associate that is not individually material and
REBE(RZELE - accounted for using the equity method.
R2022%F 20214
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR F T ABRBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHREE Carrying amount of interest 93,316 94,847
BE2022F  HE2021F
12H31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REEFEL Group's share of:
NE R A Profit for the year 16,208 20,060
Hh 2 Other comprehensive income — —
FHEHR B Total comprehensive income 16,208 20,060
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2022 2021

AR¥TFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEETREG - BAAE Unlisted shares, at cost 363,679 363,679
JEIEW B A Share of post-acquisition results 1,109,102 997,992
B W B & K 2 WAk F Dividend received since acquisition (858,465) (736,508)
614,316 625,163

REEREGE QR CAMFNT Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
IEEE/
St S rEEREZ
Principal place BREREERLA
of operation/ HMBRA  Proportion of effective
BENTER Place of Registered ~ ownership interest held ¥ E##
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
RERYAMERAF i US$11,000,000  31.82% = 31.82% MIRKHEERZER
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
LEREALRHERAR i US$28,120,000 = 38.96% | 3896%  RERHESM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ERAEUERHBRAR(EREE]) # RMB150,000,000 = 62.33% = 6233% EEREERR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS”) PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FREFEEBERAA HE RMB400,000 = 25% 5%  Rat BERRBES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

A EMAGERATIRERETIRR
EEAMBEHRET

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
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EANABRRBR

AEEEE-HEERKAEERSE
0% B AEZ I EHRAMBE R
AIMBEERBEE62.33% 2 ERE
BietEsm - A REZGF2ER
EMBARREMKREEZMNA
A HRENHRAEATEN
RS ARGHEME B = Z£RE
BRAREZSHIBB0% MR
TR RBAKWEN > AEEEHE
MEEMNSREENHAERIRE
FOEASREEEEFEIREER
765 181 B 1O B 755 SR R & BRI R
BEZFEERBEMBRARMEM
BREEDRGB —ZURE  AUAKHE
ARENEEO =L ERAEGE
B A LRI -

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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BRIFERESE AT ZHBER Financial information of individually immaterial joint

ventures
TRIRAS B IZERE 2 @R IE

ERBERAMAFREERASE
LIS

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
material and accounted for using the equity method.

2022 F R20214F
12831 H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEmREE Carrying amount of interests 614,316 625,163
BZE2022% HZE 20214
12831 H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ARETFTT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFEM Group's share of:
AN 25 A Profit for the year 111,110 101,764
HAth 2 H U Es Other comprehensive income — —
FHE AR Total comprehensive income 111,110 101,764
EERE AEBLEMENEXRD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
BENT material to the Group.
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2022 2021
it ARETT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BFVPLEEWSBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—RERES — Investment funds (a)(d) 254,349 626,707
— E R ARES — Equity securities, listed (b) 194 194
254,543 626,901

EEFVOCI Designated FVOCI

—JE ET R ARE S — Equity securities, unlisted (o)(d) 158,518 137,317
413,061 764,218

Hrat -

BEESARETREZIRE T
I REBHE B AN ERE T
ABOEURBRHOERETAT -
NEREBRsEENESS TR
BERMEAEM - REER 1B
BEGMARBELHEABEST
RS IR A ST -

EHRAFSFH QA EBERBEAERE
EBHRZ SN TISRETE -

FETRABRENAABEETERH
ZEMKRECBEREHRGE
AREEZE AREE7,874,0007T

Q021 %F : BB AREEHERM
HE(RarEm) o

SR AR EENEETERE
RBABERN G B BREN
44 o

Note:

The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which
were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair value of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly
valued by the respective investment managers at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB7,874,000 (2021: Nil)
were credited to investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling).

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of these investments are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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TREETATIEETIE

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021
ARETT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

ETT us$ 361,183 715,939
AR RMB 51,684 48,085
Efb Others 194 194
413,061 764,218

2022 2021

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Rk Raw materials 1,884,416 1,493,137
EE S Work in progress 97,772 97,433
2K Finished goods 3,272,404 3,080,907
5,254,592 4,671,477
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUTBR 5K Trade receivables
—%=h — From third parties 1,700,924 1,881,100
—AREZ EBREIEH - From companies controlled by
4L VNS a substantial shareholder
of the Company 23,584 35,890
—RNFREEN — From companies controlled by
KEK B KRBT the family members and relatives
FOEATLNE] of the Company’s directors 2,798 1,396
—BERT — From an associate 2,770 32,471
/NG — From joint ventures 78,205 92,887
1,808,281 2,043,744

REBZHEHERNTNDAETLRE
HRTHHEZEERNEEZR30E90
X o

BRRURR(NBREREE) NS
HRRBEZAHMRRE KRR

The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

TR follows:
2022 2021
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90Xk 0 - 90 days 1,686,700 1,920,716
90 KA+ Over 90 days 121,581 123,028
1,808,281 2,043,744

FRASERUEEREERRNE
HENER A M RAMIE43

R PRAREEZAARKIIE -

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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2022 2021
Mtat AR#FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

TERER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 150,186 120,345
TR AR Prepayments for purchase of equipment 21,135 9,335
BT IGER Prepaid value-added taxes 199,631 308,982
TEN R ERX Prepaid operating expenses 1,354,605 1,225,570
e E TR Loan receivables 25(a) 140,000 90,000
W R 2, Interest receivables 25(b) 522,962 361,488
i Deposits 127,423 127,018
Hth Others 381,447 109,815
2,897,389 2,352,553

25(a) EWE R

25(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAEEZHEBA
AERTESTEMBEER
HEELERRZRE - T
EWEFAEERE AR+ =
MARNEERNFEEAS65%
F3.70% (20214 : 3.85%) °

ARREEEHUZETHR
BMEBRT _EARZHEK
B WEEREZEAZRR

EBEEEAHEREERT -

25(b) EWFIE

FE Y 7 B 2K B R B E B E R
RITHEER ©
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Loan receivables represent the advances made by subsidiaries
of the Company to certain raw materials suppliers of the
Group for financing their operations. The loan receivables
are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from the end of
the reporting period and bear interest ranging from 3.65%
10 3.70% (2021: 3.85%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2022 2021
AREFT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAE HAfF 3% Long-term time deposits 7,551,900 6,101,900
R{T#EEBR NI S Bank balances and cash 12,323,922 15,838,492
IEIRIRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 12,531 20,746
RITERERESAF Total cash at bank and on hand 19,888,353 21,961,138
REEHFHIRA1E3F - WK The long-term time deposits are made for periods of one to three
BRERNEHFANEEERA S - F years and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
B X B285%Z%4.18% 2 [@(2021 rate ranging from 2.85% to 4.18% (2021: 3.45% to 4.18%) per
F :345% F4.18% Z ) ° annum.
WHIETFERE FHEIE - EARHE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
AREB—RBIRESBRE (BRI trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
TIRITEALIEZ)NRTRE 2B bills, granted to the Group by banks.
2o
A EEeRERBENMS » /1T A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
FrLBEcHRSEEY 2 EEN equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
N flows is as follow:
2022 2021
ARYTFT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITEREBR S Cash at bank and on hand 19,888,353 21,961,138
B REIEHITE R Less: long-term time deposits (7,551,900) (6,101,900)
RekBEeFEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,336,453 15,859,238
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RITEREREEFTATINEET

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

(1= currencies:
2022 2021
ARETT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 19,455,618 21,256,767
ETT US$ 375,058 640,164
BT EUR 129 126
e NTD 27,610 38,461
Efb Others 29,938 25,620
19,888,353 21,961,138

BEASEEZIIERB REERR
BRERE ISR M sE 43 FFl -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2022 2021
BER BER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

UEE FET  AEETR LG FEr  AEEFr
No. of shares Uss 000 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 RMB000

AT Authorised:

BR0.005FTZEBBR  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000

BEIRSR Issued and fully paid:

REA] At the beginning of the year 5,630,972,360 28,155 235,633 5,624,386,360 28,123 235422
REBRHEZB(720 Shares issued under share option scheme 3,192,000 16 108 6,586,000 E)) 21
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,634,164,360 28,171 235,741 | 5,630,972,360 28,155 235,633

R AR E R 0 3,192,000 B I% 4 %
7718 AR BB AN 2 513,192,000 i &
AR - BRER AR 29,154,000
7T HEh AR 108,000 oEF AR 2
TR A - T 45 8k A R 529,046,000
TR ARMDEER - 340 ARM
9,353, OOOEHaﬁ%MEF%ﬁL%é%%
MEER ZERENSHEHER
ﬁﬂx@?ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ °
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During the year, 3,192,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 3,192,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB29,154,000, of which RMB108,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB29,046,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB9,353,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.
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2022 2021

AR¥FT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R E ] At beginning of the year 786,965 730,075
RIBRE AR 21517 2 B% 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 38,399 56,890
REER At the end of the reporting period 825,364 786,965

REBEFAEHSREED - QRN
HMEHETEROE  TwEABESHK
Hib A #ET > ERTROEME
MR EIEBERMEER -

B aERZERRREMSES
NERZHTE °

ENEGRARERREZBRT &
RAZBEER DK TRE
HEARRBRDIREBIDAENEER
ERBEBPEREAN 2 ER

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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RER
R56E RAEfR
Transactions (ERR
with (TwEm) nx
hhEEGE EREEE non- SMEREEE  hwestment  EfEER BREGRE
Captal ~ Remeasur-  controling  Exchange revaluation Poperty  HEE  —REE  Shaebaed  REEF
redemption ement interests ~~ translation reserve  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained %
reserve feserve fesene resene  (Non-ecycling) resenve reserve reserve reserve profis Total

ARETE  ARETT ARETL ARETT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT ARETL ARETT  ARETR
RMBOO0  AVBUOOD  RMBOCO  RMBUOD  AMBOOO  RMBUOD  AMBYOOO  RMBURD  AMBUOD  RMBUD  AUBUOD

R02UELRLA At 1January 2021 400 (106,052)  (1,790,909) 98,994 27451 9,869 — 4938776 331354 16,637,344 20,147,227
TEEEA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 3802480 3802482
A2EREER) Other comprehensive
income (oss)
RERAEEZERE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - (4,260) — — — — — — — — (4,260)
ERZE Exchange difference
on consolidation - — — 271,991 — — — — — — 271,991

Rt2ENE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - (4,260) — 271,991 — — — — — - 267,731

REE2ERE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income

(loss) for the year - (4,260) - 271,991 - - - - — 380248 4070213
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEFT Contributions and dlstribution
BREERATNZIE  Equity settled share-
based transactions - - — — — — — — 5,075 — 5,075
IRIEERIE BIBTZRA  Shares issued under share
option scheme - — — — — — — — (13,693) — (13,693)
BRERH Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (61,853) 61853 -
BRERTEE 2020 FRER 2020 final and special final dividend
BRIRERE approved and paid - - - - - - - - — (4062263 (4,062,263)
BRERIEE 2021 £ 2021 special interim dlvidend
FAmEks approved and paid - - - - - - - - —  (2500,000)  (2,500,000)
EREREE Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 368,700 - (363700) -

- - - - - - - 368,700 (10471)  (6:869,110)  (6,570,881)

BEEZRY Changes in ownershyp interests
EEYATEY Change in ownership interests
HBAREERZY in a subsidiary without change
in control - — (9,181) — — — — — — — (9,181)

RANARRZRHBE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - (9,181) - - - - 368,700 (70471)  (6,869,110)  (6,580,062)

R202LE12831R At 31 December 2021 400 (110312)  (1,800,090) 370985 27,451 9,869 = 5307476 20883 13570716 17,637,378
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=00
LEY 51 REER
R5RE ERf
Transactions (FT8E)
with Investment FIES
RAREREE EHERE non- NEBEEE  revaluation  EfiERE BRERE
Capital ~ Remeasur-  controlling  Exchange reserve  Property  HAEE  -BEE  Shaebased  REEA
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained 4%
reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

AREFE  ARBTT AREFL ARETT  ARBTZ AREFL  ARETT  ARBTZ  ARRTE  ARETT  ARETZ
RMBOOO  RMBOGO  RMBUOD  RMBUCO  RMBUO)  RMBUOO  RMBUDD  RMBUOD  RMBUWO  RMBUOD  RMBUONO

R02%F1A1R At 1 January 2022 400 (110312)  (1,800,090) 370,985 21451 9,869 — 5307476 260883 13570716 17,637,378

REFRA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 283312 2632312

Efp2EuE (58 Other comprehensive

income (loss)
BREMEHANA3)  Cash flow hedges (Note 37) - - - - - - (747) - - - (747)
ARBEHELL Remeasurement of defined
EftEHE3) benefits obligations (Note 33) - 83 - - - - - - - - 836
KERAAEEIIERE  Fairvalue changes in equity
A2 ERGERRY instruments designated as at
BEIALABEZZE  ROC - - - - 7874 - - - - - 1874
EXZE Exchange difference on
consolidation — - —  (151587) - — — — — — (1515878
REt2EUSE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss - 8% — (1515879) 7874 - ) - - — (L507915)
REE2EHE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 836 —  (1515878) 7874 - (747) - — 263312 1124397
HRARRRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and distribution
EREERNHXITZ Equity settled share-based
B(E0) transactions (Aote 30) - - - - - — — — 522 - 522
RIEBRIETEETZ  Shares issued under share option
Wdtzr) scheme (Note 27) - - - - - - - - (9.353) - (9,353
BREXR Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (61,359) 61,359 -
EREREE201RER 2021 final and specil
HRERE(WiE2)  final diidend
approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - - - - - (39425%) (3942523
BRUERIRE 202257 2022 special interim dividend
hERE (i 12) approved and paid (Vote 12) - - - - - - - - —  (2500,000)  (2500,000)
ERER%ER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 219,791 - (ne91) -
FADARRZRZAE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - - - - - — oL (0190  (BGS0E)  (645L354)
R02E12831R At 31 December 2022 400 (109476)  (1,800,090)  (1,144,893) 35,325 9,869 (747) 5587267 190,693 9542073 12310421
HuarmWhzm(ER)REKER T No income tax effect arose from each component of other
2021 F M2022F 98 B8 & comprehensive income (loss) in 2021 and 2022.
% o
B 43 B & 4 Capital redemption reserve
R ELFENEEREHE A Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
AEBMEELREEARRRKRGNZ the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
TRERM RS © repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.
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Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties
when the existing properties become investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note
3(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of a derivative financial
instrument which is designated as a hedge of the foreign currency
risk associated with cash flows of foreign currency-denominated
borrowings in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for cash flow hedges in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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(@)
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(@)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2021: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2021: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company'’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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2008 FEERAERTEI () (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
20085t &I A EXR T AR Details of share options granted by the Company to the
ANMHENBRARIZEERES employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
ZHEREFBEER2022F & pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
2021 F12AMHEFEERNZ X options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
ITEBAENT as follows:
BF
BREHR
Number of  RITENBERESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price  Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
200843 A20H 11,760,000 — — 928 201343 HA21HZE
20 March 2008 201843 A20H

21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

200944 A22H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4A23H=
22 April 2009 2019 4 A22H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
20104 A1 H 15,044,000 — — 1857 2015F4A18=
1 April 2010 202093 A31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

2011 F4H12H 17,702,000 — — 1996 2016F4AH12B=2
12 April 2011 20214118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
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(a) 2008 FFEREE(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
B®F
BREHE
Number of  RITEMNERESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
201254 H26H 9,700,000 — 6,296,000 2054 20174 H26H=%E
26 April 2012 202244 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
201345 H27 A 11,492,000 6,854,000 7,766,000 20.16 2018%5H27RAZE
27 May 2013 20235 H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
201454 417 H 12,718,500 7,843,000 8,961,000 2238 2019F4/17RZE
17 April 2014 20244 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
20156 H5H 17,054,000 ' 11,548,000 13,534,000 16.22 20206 H5HZ%E
5 June 2015 20256 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
20167 H4H 10,148,000 = 1,642,000 2,206,000 754 20217 H4BE
4 July 2016 202657 H3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
2017F 4 H21 H 11,420,000 7,280,000 9,450,000 1020 2022F4A21H=
21 April 2017 202754 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
&5 143,726,500 35,167,000 48,213,000
Total

288 EEEZERAERDA
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



A BB HMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I N
BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2008 FEERIETEl (Z) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

752008 3 8179 14 KT 68 2 B R
BRE BT A EE 2

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share

o Option Schemes are as follows:
2022 2021
In#EFH S
THEE 1718
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average EMREHE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B FR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 16.99 48,213 16.51 64,579
REARTTE Exercised during the year 10.59 (3,192) 7.99 (6,586)
AEREUY, 438 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 20.04 (9,854) 19.96 (9,780)
REEAR At the end of
the reporting period 16.71 35,167 16.99 48,213

RITEHR - FRITENERE
B INREF I IRE R 14.64 78 7T
(20214 - 14.88%T) ° £ #
SHN BEREFEBKRENE
% 4 B% 2 22 4,300,000 (2021
F 1 12,502,000) °

M2022F12A31H #H K
ITEERENNETARTE
#HRA2.229 (20214 : 2.90
F)e NEEH - AlITERER
T H9 I% 20 2 35,167,000 (2021
F 1 43,913,000) - B # B
B - AT1T{E A9 BE B i A9 hn A
BT (E B16.717%8 712021
F :17.65%7T) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$14.64
(2021: HK$14.88). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 4,300,000 (2021:
12,502,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.22 years
(2021: 2.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 35,167,000 (2021:
43,913,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$16.71 (2021: HK$17.65).
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(b)

2018 FREIRBESTE

AR AR B KR2018F4 H
26 ARITHRRFRIAE Ll
BT AR A ET E1([2018 5T
gl)) - FHHRMBEBRE 10
F o Z2018:TEI N ABEAE
BREEWSERESHAEE
TEL BB R (G T ) MaRaL ©

EFEUREZEERTUTA
TR

(i)  ARF R SHEEN B
NCIPAERCIES B 31
B -fTRABRBHRA
B(BREATES  FH
TEERBIIFNTE
g R

(i) AARR KNS
A EALES - &
FoRNE RERE
R -

PR N B RR AL & - 220185
Bl RAFAR A A T 2 Ho A B i
FTEIFTE T 2 BEBRES R 2R
MEE NSBIBAR R B RN
it ElE B(R120184F 4 A 26
H)ZBETRMAI10% - R
“ER ERTHEERES
B 48 B8 I 4 58,104,000 % -
BARNTREMLARERT
20185TEI 2 H 2 TR B
0.14% o

BR2EELEZ 20185 8IHE
fEREF S TAZANRS
BEYBRB(BEDITEIRITE
2B - BEERRTEIRZ
1REARATFBAERTHH
REETBRMDH1% > 2R 1%
RBRHR T AR FRROHM
JE ©
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(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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2018 FERIETEI (Z) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
TFEEREEENESTRT - The exercise price is determined by the Company's Board
MmATIEE A DR () R £ B of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
M #E 1% F B B R P E A W T the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
B (i) IR EBRER T BA grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
516 & 55 B R B 22 BT A9 S 15 UL business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
TE: RiiNVEOOEES Z (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
B=EE -
ERENTTESHaEEST e R The period during which an option may be exercised will be
T OMmBEREZTFEEHTZR determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
BT822 105 - B H R F no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
THIGREE -FHERES been granted. The options will be vested after three years
WETF G —HEIREZRE from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
BABEIT &5 HEBRER is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
FTRBRESR LRAQR KR granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
ZEARAIRER o for one ordinary share of the Company.
E20185T 8RB R TARN R K Details of share options granted by the Company to the
EfMBARIZIEERES B employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
fi% #E 5E 1B R 52 2022 F 122021 pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
FNANHEHEERZKRITHE options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
EVBBRRREN T - as follows:
BF
BREHKE
Number of  RITEMNERESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT

2018 4 A 27 H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 20214 A30HZE
27 April 2018 2028F 4 A26H

30 April 2021 to

26 April 2028
2018F 4 A27H 5,626,000 | 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 2021F4A30H=
27 April 2018 2024F 4 A 26 H

30 April 2021 to

26 April 2024
&% 8,104,000 @ 6,263,000 6,263,000
Total
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(b) 2018 EEEMFERTEI(E) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BB 20185 &M ARTTEZ AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEEYTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
wmr Option Scheme are as follows:
2022 2021
n#EFH S
TEE 1718
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average EMREEE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERTITE Exercised during the year — — — —
RE AR Forfeited during the year — — — —
PREREUY, 43 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year — — — —
REEH At the end of
the reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
TEEHRRN EFABEK No share options are vested during the reporting period
R R SR (2021 F - (2021: 6,263,000). None of the options are exercised during
6,263,000) - R N2 H BB IR the year.

RERATIE ©

MR2022F12A31H W K The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a
TEERENINEEESS®RTE weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.90 years
#HR B 2.90F (20214 : 3.90 (2021: 3.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
F)o RNEEH - AIITHEEIR the number of exercisable options was 6,263,000 (2021:
7 1) B% 22 6,263,000(2021 6,263,000) with weighted average exercise price of
F 1 6,263,000) - INHEFH1T HK$16.18 (2021: 16.18).

£ 18 R16.188 JT(2021 4 -

16.1887T) °
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
INESRERGH) - Foreign currency forward contracts —
B A A2 b Cash flow hedges (92,729) —

FA- AEEFTZBDINEERS
WIEEREHRTIA  UEHHEA
B4 &F 0 LA S B B B B 3R 2 S IE R
e TETAERNEELHAE
B TARKREIERE - LR
BHRNZEARGENITET A
TRRHEEIRDEE AEE
MRS REL A BRANGE
s R MsE 3(k) - BRARNAETET
ETEARBEZHBEXMTHER
HNER B MMM 44 -

HAESHHUBERARRRNTE

SINES A A S T A 3 K 5% B B AR

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign currency
forward contracts and designated as hedging instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risks associated with the cash flows of
certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings. Derivatives are
only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative
investments. They are presented as current assets or liabilities to
the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. The Group’s accounting policy
for its cash flow hedges is set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the information about the valuation
technique used in determining the fair value of the derivatives are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effects of hedge accounting on the financial position and
performance

The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments

MEKRBOZEBET on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:
2022 2021
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREE Carrying amount 92,729 NA
[EIRED Notional amount 1,109,650 NA
EIH3 A HA Maturity dates within 1 year NA
FRIERERE HRENRIE  The change in fair value of the hedging
HEZEHTEAAEE  instrument used as the basis for recognising
ZE) hedge ineffectiveness for the year 159,882 NA
RIBRMETE 2 R EBME  Hedge ineffectiveness recognised
in profit or loss — NA
ARG E R T AETHRE  Weighted average contracted forward
B & N S 21— rate for outstanding hedging
AR 15T instruments — RMB:USD 1 6.45 NA
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Eapiilcd] Hedging reserves
AEEME P FHHENTEHPTA The Group's hedging reserves relate to the following hedging
izl instruments:
EREBEN
PR E ZEERS P REELE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
ARMFT ARTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202261 H1H As at 1 January 2022 — — —
e REMZEWREEFS Add: Change in fair value of
R ERT A hedging instrument
NABEEE recognised in other
comprehensive income — 159,882 159,882
n: REMEEmREFS Add: Costs of hedging deferred
RIE N ER 2 and recognised in other
AR comprehensive income (26,912) — (26,912)
B EMEEUWEE  Less: Reclassified from other
BN BEEER comprehensive income
IR RETAEA to profit or loss and
F U EE included in other
net income 27,923 (159,882) (131,959)
1,011 — 1,011
o BRI R
i Less: Attributable of NCI (264) — (264)
AARBRREMZ Carrying amount to owners
BREE of the Company
2022412 A31H  Asat 31 December 2022 747 — 747
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2022 2021
ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

EIIRIRITE X Unsecured Bank loans 14,148,702 10,499,244
IR SR Unsecured notes 3,470,308 3,162,569
17,619,010 13,661,813

BREERHA RBREBEERBHEMN
RIS B B A SRR D AT (X 2
B (E (T iR B R AN EE R R E

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on

(N demand clause) are as follows:
2022 2021
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within one year 9,203,139 7,311,444
F2HF In the second year 3,770,260 2,135,826

FEIFEFESTF In the third to fifth years inclusive

(BIEERE2F) 4,645,611 4,214,543
17,619,010 13,661,813
WHBAERSEELD Portion classified as current liabilities (9,203,139) (7,311,444)
JERENE D Non-current portion 8,415,871 6,350,369

EEEEH AR®S5,551,532,000
TL(20214F - A K #1,372,584,000
T)BE—RIEERRGE TEEAE
MEREeEEmBEMK LR+ @A
BAHONBERT  ERKBERE-
BEEEUVTEHAEEASTFEL
EANEXEE HEABENEEE
BRBAE -

EERBEZNEFHFNE A
2.57% (20214 : 1.47%) °

BEBERBHERATER -

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB5,551,532,000 (20217
RMB1,372,584,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.57% (2021: 1.47%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
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BREMT) - ZTEEH 202069 A
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BREF3A24BKRIA24BEH
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202549 A 24 HEIH -

ENEBERTIEESTIMBR
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#$449,065,0003% JT(HE & X 4 A
R #3,135,147,000 7T ) (2021 :
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The bank loans are unsecured and certain of the unsecured
bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee arrangements
amongst the Group's entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$497,072,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,470,308,000) (2021: US$496,043,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,162,569,000)) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years,
inclusive. The US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020
at the rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear
on 24 March and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24
March 2021 and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes
as at 31 December 2022, based on the quoted market
price, was US$449,065,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,135,147,000) (2021: US$492,190,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,138,007,000)). The US$ Notes are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2027: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2022 2021
ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

[&] 7E F1) 2 At fixed rates 13,223,309 4,535,153
R | At floating rates 4,395,701 9,126,660
17,619,010 13,661,813

BRIEENTIEESIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
2022 2021
ARETT AEBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 12,136,440 480,000
ETT Us$ 5,482,570 13,181,813
17,619,010 13,661,813

5 0 9 B 51 LR R R
SR NBAREREMNEA3
B -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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077 BB T AR A e S R & - 1B
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SER XA Lt AR A
BEEXNTE FELAERET
R R E R 2 B/H o

RERAEE

REBTAMEREREERHEAT
BRETE - NEBEBRBEME
EEEWHAEMABEERNNZE
A o A FTE 2 UAE B R FH
k&6 EANTFHIHERER - K
EEHATEMFENEARHE
UEEMEREERNAES QA
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Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2022 using the projected unit
credit method.
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REBAE (£) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
AREBHERTEEBAMFEFTEEZ The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
EEXWALZEMBRAER Z A position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
REREBEZEIHHOT : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2022 2021
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 79,920 122,166
KEFE RIS A Current service cost 3,656 (3,735)
LB R Interest expense 1,943 3,234
5,599 (501)
B4 Remeasurements:
B REFAEREE S Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
BE () EE changes in financial assumptions (1,126) 3,187
KERTRAREE ZHERIE  Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 328 2,465
(798) 5,652
=ANEEE] Benefit payment (15,695) (47,397)
REEHR At end of the reporting period 69,026 79,920
BEEENTERES The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2022 2021
% %
R E Discount rate 2.70 2.70
8 ER T B -1 Expected rate of salary increases 0.00 - 3.00 3.00
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REBNE (E)
REER SEIEREREKNE

BrgEaERemiE Tz 8=
EOWAT

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
RERF FEBM
BEENEL BIENE L
Change in Change in
GE kX[ defined  REHE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
P = Discount rate +/- 0.5% -2.91%/ +/- 0.5% -2.93%/
+3.08% +3.10%
EHF BT IR Expected rate of +/- 0.5% +2.01%/ +-0.5% +2.04%/
salary increases -1.92% -1.93%

iR ELSMERESEABER
HHMEREIREEEHRY  MEMAR
BRRFAE c HMI5ERR ML
1R b b FRER T B - S LB
AR EDITETA » TBEF B4
A ZAREERERAEETHIER
18 5 48 B 40 3 H R 765 AR A A 3B 5 R
ﬂ‘%}ﬂZZlR(ZZD ) A8 FEME
RERBAE ARG EARNFE KR
EEE’{J@&(@@En’fﬁ o

ATEANETCHMEFHEHRZ
6.10F (20214 : 6.104F) »

BELEAE - aEESREHER
EEERED6ORIIHHZAER
=Tl
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The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 6.10 years (2021: 6.10 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60 or 63
depends on the employee’s role and function.
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REBAE (£) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
HTEEAETEEERFTEE The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
E AEETEERNESTHERT contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
FEHFELNER - L ARTIEAR the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
KREFTEFEE A>T - expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥TFTT ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 18,874 15,924
BRI FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 5,285 9,660
HBiB2 FERSFA More than 2 years but within 5 years 8,959 10,582
HiA 5 F Over 5 years 36,969 77,266
70,087 113,432
AREBFELEHRBAGEHEES The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
NN liabilities are as follows:
2022 2021
iifza AREFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 931,305 1,148,083
g — EBREG Additions - business combination — (746)
HEWB QA Disposal of subsidiaries — 4
WMEA RN ES B2 Withholding tax paid on distributions
BB of earnings by subsidiaries (253,479) (333,538)
STAERE TR A Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 139,199 117,502
REEHR At end of the reporting period 817,025 931,305
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REER CHIAZETEREEE
SE=NEV NN

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the following:

2022 2021
BE aE BE af&E
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

MRS E Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (512,383) — (574,183)
MRS E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
RNABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—FREEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - R KEE property, plant
and equipment — (33,468) — (42,859)
B EE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
—REUEHE — Investment properties — (36,355) — (30,117)
—¢@MIA — Financial instruments 152 — 152 —
REEE Impairment losses 60,714 — 80,262 —
AEGHERZERER  Un-invoiced accrual 230,332 — 241,424 —
HEME  EER Unrealised profit on property,
REBZARERIE plant and equipment 137,683 — 151,083 —
WA RIR DB Withholding tax on undistributed
FE 2 T earnings of subsidiaries — (645,251) — (723,640)
HGER Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hity Others 23,208 (31,814) 15,850 (39,434)
EEREEE(AME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 481,923  (1,298,948) 518,605  (1,449,910)

BEBERRECEMRETE  IEIRE
ERMRPBIMIINEIRE D XTE
BRI B EZRIB10% N RGUKTE
BB o ZRTER2008F1A1H#E
A BAMR2007F12A8318%
& R 5P o B FE o i A B BRI
B 2Z SN 4% & & T B B 3R k3 [ IR
REEEETNHE  TEARK
T .
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Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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AEEMAHHE QB HEARE
5% (20214F : 5%) - AEEIRE
EEBERAREHAEN R ERPHF
Ay M EmE A AR
HAE -

HEFHBTFME(RTFAHD A
TERRM B L A AR 183,811,000
TL(20214 © A K #183,811,000
o) BESEREAMMNTIIE - E
ERBBEAALEZESR T FHNEA
BUESEERARI v EEES U E
ARERTED B - A i I 1
BRAMEEF B o

REEHRN AEEEHBARE
111,128,000 T(20214F : A B #
111,128,000t ) Fi 7% E 1B HE R A Ik
EHIBEE - BB BEERN
HZEBERELRAARAFHZ
Riskes - REZER - ABEREL

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2021: 5%)). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the remaining
undistributed earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is
approximately RMB183,811,000 (2021: RMB183,811,000) which
would become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion
of the directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time,
are required for financing the continuing operations of these
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2021: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEE BB EEIBRFHAT as follows:
2022 2021
RBEEIPR AR FT ABWEFT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2022 — 95,894
2023 53,354 66,382
2024 166,114 174,699
2025 222,947 286,318
2026 286,620 318,775
2027 307,610 —
1,036,645 942,068
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2022 2021
ARMTFT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR ERTX Trade payables
F=H To third parties 7,964,787 7,420,951
BREAEEA T To related parties
—ARRAIZESEH — A group of companies controlled by
KEKE LB the family members and relatives of
) — A A the Company'’s directors 1,524,110 1,617,147
B & N Al To an associate 22 —
ERVAE] To joint ventures 989 8,420
9,489,908 9,046,518
BT E=T - B A RN The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
ARAEERNRZENERAEIR and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit

B RMA30E 90 KERHE -

period of 30 to 90 days.

FENERRGEEAREEARRE 2 The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BR B 7FJHZDT the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
ARMTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 8,591,071 8,364,033
90 HIA k= Over 90 days 898,837 682,485
9,489,908 9,046,518
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The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021

AR#¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 9,331,911 8,825,620

T uss$ — 1,458

BT HK$ 157,997 219,440

9,489,908 9,046,518

2022 2021

AR¥FT ARMFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR RS Deposits received in advance 2,731,272 2,070,566

B SERES Accruals for transportation,

B2 TEIR promoting and advertising expenses 4,583,245 4,912,027
THEANKAEMEE Accruals for administrative expenses and

BR 2 TEIR other operating expenses 611,677 650,254

B TE REF & Salaries and welfare payables 874,839 947,298

FERTERME R Payables for purchase of equipment 115,337 241,143

FEA H A R IR Other tax payables 220,067 236,213

JEAT 7 & Interest payable 35,366 29,950

JE -t 8RR SR AR F Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 144 902

Hith Others 611,550 504,978

9,783,497 9,593,331
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B4 A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643
FEERA Interest expenses 446,021 223,494
FLEBA Interest income (650,412) (783,501)
e Depreciation 3,258,898 3,134,163
WRAREBEYIEKREEZE Dividend income from financial assets
EENERMEERIET at FVPL and a designated FVOCI
BRAREEYRREEAM
2 EWEIREIEM S
THE 2 BRAA (1,413) (2,522)
B EECBHE Amortisation of intangible assets 6,679 7,513
HEWE - W RRE Loss on disposal of property, plant
LERAEEE BB and equipment and right-of-use assets 60,288 29,527
REEFEHENNEE Change in fair value of investment properties
> @8 (25,100) (35,400)
BARBEYRENAERZRE Change in fair value of financial assets
BRENTHEEAD at FVPL
BEZE (10,099) 21,239
U g B W Gain on bargain purchase — (7,967)
HEMB AR Z WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (105,992) (208,750)
FEREEE R R Share of results of an associate
AR NBEE and joint ventures (127,318) (121,824)
[EREH) 2 Effect on exchange rate changes (314,870) 19,287
RINAE R EE RS Recognition of equity-settled
SN2 HIR share-based payment 522 5,075
FEZHEm Increase in inventories (583,115) (1,341,002)
FEURBR S 2 Rk A (32 00) Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables 235,449 (440,287)
TR FRIE R H f FE UL Increase in prepayments and other receivables
TRIBZIEAN (290,857) (609,702)
FETBR T2 3500 Increase in trade payables 443,467 962,435
Hi B HRIBERE Increase (Decrease) in other payables
e 212 moR ) and deposits received 312,570 (208,459)
EEEMZEZCED )  (Decrease) Increase in advance
payments from customers (771,260) 982,036
FEERETRMNEE Decrease in present value of
REZ R unfunded employee benefit obligations (10,096) (47,898)
REEBRBES Cash generated from operations 6,022,166 7,386,100
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37(a) METEHELENEBYER 37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TRAMAEFRK G EEH The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
HNEEZE  BERESNIER arising from financing activities, including both cash and
@8 METHELANARE non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
BREREFAKESREE are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
BEREBGARESRERT will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
DEAREETHELANIEESR cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2

ERD8

RRRA

(st 36)

Dividend

HEARE SEFZER payable

(Hit16) (HeF32) RITER to non-
Lease  Unsecured (##£32)  controlling

liabilities notes  Banks loans interests st
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

R2022%1818  AtlJanuary 2022 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754
FREM Net cash flows

(K32 (), (i), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (i) (230,088) — 2,643,408 (623,618) 1,789,702
B#5 Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 16,121 6,967 — — 23,088
EEE New leases 169,206 — — — 169,206
HEBIzFE Effect on lease modification (9,165) — — — (9,165)
Ryl Dividend declared - — — 622,860 622,860
EHER Exchange realignment — 300,772 1,006,050 — 1,306,822
R2022% 128318 At 31 December 2022 301,113 3,470,308 14,148,702 144 17,920,267
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37(a) MEEHELNEBEHIR(Z)

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

BT D&
AR B A
(Fi3E36)
Dividend
HEARE EEARE payable
Pz 16) (P3E32) RITER to non-
lease  Unsecured (Mf#F32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @ar
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
R2021%1R81H At 1 January 2021 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
FHEER Net cash flows
(W2 (), i), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (ii}) (206,673) — 260,363 (463,040) (409,350)
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BEFIS s Amortised interest expenses 16,578 6,513 — — 23,091
MERE New leases 256,738 — — — 256,738
G A% Effect on lease modification (18,735) — — (18,735)
HEHBAR Disposal of subsidiaires (9,669) — — — (9,669)
e Dividend declared — — — 463,903 463,903
ERESR Exchange realignment — (71,948) (229,649) — (301,597)
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754

() HEBBRFREALEF
AXNEEEEZARE &F

BEb e

I

(i)  WMITEFMAERE - RITR
Hoh & BB FROR - Kb
HEFFEE Y R BITEIE
MR 2 FG - BAEIE
ARBRRTERNFRE

==
JILEE °

3

(i) ENIOBRRORSNFESR
EREBRFAXINIHIRR
BBLE. -
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(i) The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the

payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.

(i) The net cash flows from unsecured notes and bank loans
make up the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings,
repayments of bank and other borrowings, net movement of
other short-term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance
of unsecured notes.

(i) The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests

during the year.
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M ARGEEREEMIMIEE 2 In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SRERELAIN NNy AREEES the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
AT ETZERATIBE - 1t following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
EXGTINAEB BB ERKDIE of the Group's business.
17 e
2022 2021
Wit AREFT AEEFT
Note RMB000 RMB’000
(@) FHEBALZXS (a) Related party transactions
BTHARHEER Sales of goods to:
RREZEERREH Companies controlled by a substantial
LN shareholder of the Company 0] 119,643 142,813
NG An associate 48,101 29,306
BER7 Joint ventures 886,955 859,768
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
ARREEYZ A group of companies controlled by
REKE RBEBEH the family members and relatives
Z—H#RE of the Company's directors 0) 6,386,373 6,534,137
i YN An associate 23,753 32,928
BENT] Joint ventures 17,147 50,370
BTHARZMAEHEER ! Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEERFES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
4PN shareholder of the Company (i) 33,730 32,566
BT 5 ARKEK Y E Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
CR-YNG Joint ventures 6,503 1,770
|50 R IR E M Rental income from investment
EHERNE  BHER properties and property,
FE2HE plant and equipment
ARRZEFERFIES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
4N shareholder of the Company 35,602 42,254
ERRZERYZ A company controlled by
FEK B RFBEHH the family members and relatives of
—ERAA the Company's directors 3,010 3,087
BT 5 AR X2 EHA Distribution costs paid to:
ALRREEYL A group of companies controlled by
%E:ﬁ)? ERBBE the family members and relatives of
—# R 7] the Company'’s directors 0) 1,876,252 1,819,826
FiaE() AR LETRBIE 14AE  Z25H Note (j) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BREBA L2 RGN RFHERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
5 e Rules.
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(b) HREBASZME

AEEHEREEABZME
(BRGAVBRERM T 10
BEAARBES  THAER
XN ZHERAE TR HE

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial

BXM2ZHIB)AT : statements, is as follows:
2022 2021
ARETFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=Yk Directors’ fees 4,127 3,512
e MEME Salaries and other emoluments 40,117 39,898
VARG 2+ 2 5/ 18 Share-based payments 471 2,813
14T Discretionary bonuses 19,733 17,250

BRE ST R{ETH  Retirement payments and

IRIRSETEIHERX contributions to pension scheme — 7,470
64,448 70,943

MHEAFRIBEER 2017 FRENINEE
] £ 25% P A B FE 15 S AR B R F
HEERE - HAFKARF AR

B R -

FANEREYHRELRE 155
MEFEHNBEMTERERRFF AR
MEE D ELRZEE) M

The amounts represented the contingent consideration payable
and remaining portion of the cash consideration in acquiring 25%
of HZPS's equity interest in 2017. The amounts are settled upon
the completion of registration of the equity transfer during the
year.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2022 2021

AR#¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 3,342,990 2,360,954
R AW A Recognised as revenue (3,342,990) (2,360,954)
WRIRZNEYHITERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 2,571,730 3,342,990
REEHR At end of the reporting period 2,571,730 3,342,990

MR20224 K2021F 128318 &
FRAZEBERRN —FARER AWK
AO
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At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the advance payments from
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year.
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VEHEERE ARLESETH
BRAMNZHKRE - HEFEHEER
FRERK > TN EHER HE
M@ A R AR B 105,992,000 7T
BEEt ABREERPEMFRA -
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During the year, the Group entered into several sales and

purchase agreements with three independent third parties for the

disposal of the entire equity interests in several subsidiaries. These

disposals were completed during the year. Upon the completion

of the above disposals, gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of

RMB105,992,000 was recognised in profit or loss and recorded as

other net income.

The following summarises the aggregate consideration received

EENBENERAEAR and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
#Em
Total
AR#FoT
RMB’000
FEENFEEE(AR) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - WRERRE Property, plant and equipment 47,694
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15,486
JE U AR X Trade receivables 14
TE A R IE I H h FE R IE Prepayments and other receivables 2,837
RITEBR MRS Bank balance and cash 2,618
FETER R Trade payables (77)
M RIERE YRS Other payables and deposit received (1,256)
67,316
HEWB AR (AZ8) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 105,992
173,308
2RRE Consideration received
RERE Cash consideration 119,508
FElRE Deposits received in advance 53,800
173,308
HEMBARZRERAFEE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
ReERE Cash consideration 119,508
BEREZReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (2,618)
ReRREEEYZRANEH Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 116,890
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AEENEAEEIRRHELAE
BEELENED  RRRREHEE
HRER/EMITNDEREN G -

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

AEEFERREFREGIRRE &
ReEEYAREHAEHERNESL
fEE)FENFEERER L E(E
RARBRREIEERA LX) A
REEN(BEMEEDRED) - A
SEAEFAEHEEALXFBIER
HEMERGAREE REERE
ARUFEEEE R AZE 2
BARGRE - REMREG L]

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and long-term time deposits) as a ratio of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group takes into
account of the long-term time deposits in calculating the gearing
ratio because the management believes that this calculation
reflects the capital structure of the Group more accurately. The
debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

(N follows:
2022 2021
ARMTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 17,619,010 13,661,813
B RekBEeFEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents and
M ERHTEHER long-term time deposits (19,888,353) (21,961,138)
FHIRE Net cash (2,269,343) (8,299,325)
NN E Y EREL E0 Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 13,371,526 18,659,976
FREEEALE Gearing ratio -16.97% -44.48%
AEEBRECEBNERLEHR The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital

EREHBIMERERER I
REBEEERAOECHBEE NG
EERABE
1% BITHEBALKRERAN LI
MMENHE  ZEMSEERNX
BE) o RRERNHMLERS -

B OABKRERS

2022 4F - AN £ [ A 5K BE H12021
FHRA BEBFEAGEEHESTIA

A o

312 EEEZERERAE

structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and

investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During 2022, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2021, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
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The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. During the year, the Group entered into
several foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency-
denominated borrowings. The details of the hedging activities
are set out in note 3(k) and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
4.5%, 0.8% and 1.8% respectively (2021: 0.9%, 0.7% and
2.5% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB4,341,000 (2021: RMB960,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date excluding the exposure arising from the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings that are hedged by foreign currency
forward contracts as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes in foreign
currency represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2021.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 75% (2021:
33%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 100 (20217: 75) and 0 (2021. 40) basis point
higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB40,206,000 (20217 decrease/
increase by RMB3,029,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the
year and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence
during the year. The 100 (2021: 75) and 0 (2021 40) basis point
increase or decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings denominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2021.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for

trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December

2022 and 2021 are summarised below.

A2022% 124318

As at 31 December 2022

HAREE

Gross carrying

FEEXE

amount Credit-impaired
AR¥FT

RMB’000
REIH Not past due 1,615,680 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 57,228 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 70,932 No
#B38 90 X Over 90 days 64,441 No

1,808,281
®2021%12H31R As at 31 December 2021

BREE EEEXE

Gross carrying

amount  Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB’000
REH Not past due 1,554,166 No
SEHERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 139,087 No
31-90k 31 -90 days 235,284 No
838 90 X Over 90 days 115,207 No
2,043,744
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2022 and 2021, the additional loss allowance for provision for
amounts due from these parties was insignificant.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 57.14% (2021: 66.67 %) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2021: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
debtors.
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that
the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

10 E 2FBE

1ERSE  BE2FR BESER

REREH  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5&ELE

1 year or within less than Over a5t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

A2022%5 12 A31 8 At 31 December 2022

JE(T R R Trade payables 9,489,908 — — — 0,489,908

Hi R 5Ia R Other payables and
[REveia deposits received 8,688,591 — — — 8,688,591
HERRE Lease liabilities 165,844 80,632 68,139 6,152 320,767
BEfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,531,823 4023179 4,725,607 — 18,280,609
fTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 92,729 — — — 92,729
27,968,895 4103811 4,793,746 6,152 36,872,604
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nBELER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)

1500 E KN

1FR%  BmER EESER

BRENKEHR  Morethan  More than

Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut S5EE

1 year or within less than Over Gl
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20215128318 At 31 December 2021

FEITEER Trade payables 9,046,518 — — — 9,046,518
HibENRIER Other payables and
BElAE deposits received 8,409,820 — — — 8,409,820
HEAR Lease liabilities 171,452 115,503 84,001 9,555 380,511
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,452,251 2221916 4324734 — 13,998,901
HibR#aE Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
ERHARE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
25,130,000 2,337,419 4,408,735 9,555 31,885,709
EXMEeE—RETFTERALE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
BHEI TEEAEEEkKkEDE clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
TG HEEESBER N ® loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
BHEAIRERET|ER - BEE In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB5,551,532,000
EWFEHESASTEELERE (2021: RMB1,372,584,000) as at the end of the financial period
SR REF - AR ®5,551,532,000 have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
TL(20214F : A EE#1,372,584,000 that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
T)RGEERE R AR EEE - % and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
LZEENEKBEREEREEER following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
T :
2022 2021
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERRE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 5,611,207 1,381,697
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(@)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2022 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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UAABHIERNSREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(#) (Continued)
2022 201
F8L #512 53 ait fah #5l2 §i53 aif
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETL ARBFT ARBFT AREFT ARETT AREFL AREFT ARETT
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  AMBU00  RMBUOO | AMBUOO  RMBUOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
BE Assets
RPPEEGZEEE  Fnancial assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds - - B4M9 254349 - — 66707 62607
- LTREES - Equity securities, lsted 194 - - 194 194 - - 194
EEROC Designated FVOC
-FLTRAES - Equity securites, unlited - - 18518 158518 - — BT 1313
194 - 412,867 413,061 194 - 764,024 764,218
Bf Liabilties
FRPEEAZEEE  Fnancal labiltes at FVPL
~ERYERE - Contingent consideration payable - - - - - - 9,959 9,959
REx ! - Derivative financial instruments - 92729 - 92,729 - - - -
- 927129 - 92,729 - - 9,959 9,959

HZE2022F & 2021F12 A 31
HiIEFE BB EBEERN
HLR22E%BE  INEEIE
B®%eEE LR35k mRk53E
m °

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.
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Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

(a) UDAEEIENESHEERES
(%)
HE2022F K% 20214F12 A 31

RIEFEFEREIARBET
ENBRRMAINFMAEH WM

(@)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

T are shown as follows:
2022 2021
BE afs BE a8
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BFVPLEE RFVPLER
MEmEE  HEEFVOC MeREE  EEAOC
Financial  Designated Financial Designated
asset at FVPL FVOCI asset at FVPL Fvocl
¥t A ¥Lm fEfy
REES RAxEH GERE RERES RAEs FERE
Equity ~ Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unliseted payable
ARETR ARETZ AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFI
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
RER At beginning of the year 626,707 137317 (9,959) 558,177 140,444 (9,959)
BA/RE Purchases/additions 6,992 — — 103,187 — —
& Disposals (441,953) - — (1,528) — -
1) Settlements - - 9,959 - - -
BRSBTS (BB)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
-B& ~in profit or loss 10,117 — — (20,747) — —
-Ef2ENE ~ in other comprehensive
income — 1874 — — — —
EXER Exchange difference 52,486 13327 - (12,382) (3.127) -
REER At the end of
the reporting period 254,349 158,518 - 626,707 137317 (9,959)
REEAKEZEER  Change in unrealised
BEFARENES gains or (losses) for
FERNHE(FR) the year included in
B8 profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period — — — (21,467) — —
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements IV B

BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(@)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurement

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

The fair value of these investment funds in Level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques including mainly price-to-sales (P/S) ratio
model and net asset value approach (2021: price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.
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(@)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurement (Continued)

(ir)

(i)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Derivative financial instruments: Foreign currency
forward contracts

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts in
Level 2 is determined by the banks using present value
of future cash flows based on the forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period.



LEBTTEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I B
BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a) UDAAEBEIENEREERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TEFTBRERACANELES Quantitative information of the significant
RERBE2E unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in

significant unobservable inputs

FRI3AABHEIEZTENR The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
ERGAFTANZE/LEER inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
MRREZEHMT inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEBERAEE
KEERE
hEsENYE
Ra2E Impact on fair
12R3182 value and
MERE the Group’s total
Fair value TUERBANEBE LA EENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (RREBRZREFSR) income for
22 HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation — FUBEHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AIB000
BAPLERNERAE
Financial assets at FVPL
REES 24319 THERY  BEAFERE15% ERRMERENE  ADABEER RNA: 4-5% 4165
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
MHRAT ik AuEAA FamERES - ADAERER +-58% 421,940
BOHZ065( Rz
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
04310 0.65 times
FAEEEE MAEELMEBREARE FEELAELABEES EFELABEES  hyku%Ees2e  B4-TIE
(#2&)) +- 26,863
Net asset Fair value of individual assets less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the  Ranging from Ranging from
value approach  liabilities (the "Net Assets”) higher the estimated fair value +- 14% to +- 52% +-7,981 to
+- 26,863
R Rvod
Designated FVOCI
kLIRS 158518 WEEEY  EHFERE15% EERMAREYS EDABEME RZAA- +-5% 45,04
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
T EATZ Hm % AuEA Ham RS - ARAEEER +-38% +- 44,303
BOGSE R
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companis of 0.65 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a) URAEBEIRHNEREERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
FTEFRTERRACANELLER Quantitative information of the significant
REREEE (£) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEEREEE
AEERE
hEgENYY
R0 Impact on fair
12R3182 value and
MERE the Group’s total
Fair value TUBRBANEBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (BREBRZRETS) income for
w0 fEERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes SENTHEE the year
i AFEFT  Valuaion  FUBEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description AMB0O00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB000
BRPLRENEREER
Financial assets at FVPL
RERE 626707 TEEEY REFERE% ERRMIREAS ADABEER  RHA: 4% +2,086
Investment funds PIS ratio model ~ Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
THERR TmHE YRR PmERES  EALBEES +-50% +35,357
0650826 RZ
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
0.6510 0.82 times
FEEEEL MAEDAEERAE FEEZMMAABEER EFULABEER  A+H1%EH-%% H4-3E
(#2&)) #1339
Net asset Fair value of individual assets less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the  Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liabilities (the "Net Assets") higher the estimated fair value +1% 10 +/- 9% +/-423to +-13,394
EEROC
Designated FVOCI
FIMRARS 131317 THERY  BEFERE0% ERRPIREME - ARRBEES  RMR- +-5% 4583
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
M EATZ HATHER AEA HaT RS - ARAEEER +-43% 471428
082(% R
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 0.82 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements IV B

BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(@)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2022.
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HREBHIRARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments

BRAGAETEREREMITMHIFE
ZHEYE  NEBBFTHEE

as follow:
B HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2022 2021
AR¥TFT ARBFIT
EHENEES T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEME  HER Expenditures on property,
B3 plant and equipment 541,830 990,797

REBEARDENRERE - ARAH
B R R B EZ 2B IIRIAT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2022 2021
k3 AR¥TFT ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
L E | Y Property, plant and equipment 247 285
EREEE Right-of-use assets 487 2,465
B A B R 2 Interest in subsidiaries 9,534,645 12,528,304
HFVPLEEMNESRMEE Financial assets at FVPL 174,419 552,844
JEE R FVOCIBRIERY Equity instruments designated
T A as at FVOClI 9,852 8,596
9,719,650 13,092,494
REEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEUWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 6,409 5,257
H 88 A 7] 2 FE WK IR Amount due from a subsidiary 3,282,153 2,956,640
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 283,435 385,439
3,571,997 3,347,336
WEE Total assets 13,291,647 16,439,830
BREZRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RA R #E Capital and reserves
AT AR Issued capital 235,741 235,633
1% 17 5 18 Share premium 825,364 786,965
s Reserves 46(a) 1,891,772 6,803,464
RERESLARE Total equity 2,952,877 7,826,062
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LEBTTEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I B
BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Wizt AREFT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
RBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 6,018,671 5,011,493
HEAE Lease liabilities 136 488
6,018,807 5,011,981
nBAE Current liabilities
E MR SR Other payables 34,335 29,459
BEEEEZREHIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 4,244,075 3,570,336
PESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 41,175 —
HERE Lease liabilities 378 1,992
4,319,963 3,601,787
wmes Total liabilities 10,338,770 8,613,768
REERMAEREBHEE  Total equity and liabilities 13,291,647 16,439,830
REFFEAR N KRR 2023F3 A278E The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
ESMERBEESE  WHATA for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2023 and signed
THREEZ on its behalf by
%% Wei Hong-Ming H M4 — BB Junichiro Ida
EZEDirector E&EDirector
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HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

B3R R MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) fME22E (@) Movements of the reserves
RE
RiER MERE  BRERR ERE
i i (FUEE) bapl: 1 BE REE 4%
Investment
revaluation
Capital Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption  translation (Non- Hedging payment Retained
reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve Profits Total
A\BEFT  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
R0NE1R18 At 1 January 2021 400 512,889 1,666 - 331,35 3,090,791 3,937,100
RERGT Profit for the year — - — - — 9,335,229 9,335,229
TEREMAENE Other comprehensive income for the year - 102,016 - - - - 102,016
BREERGTAZFE Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - 5,075 - 5,075
REERETERTIRA Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (13,693) - (13,693)
BEiREET Shares option lapsed - — - - (61,853) 61,853 -
BERIRE 2020 554 2020 final and special final dividend
RERIRERE approved and paid - - - - — (4062263 (4,062,263)
BARRIRE 2001 £ 2021 specialinterim dividend approved
L) and pid - - - - — 50000 (2500000
H2021F128318 At 31 December 2021 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,883 5925,610 6,803,464
R202%E181A At 1 January 2022 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,883 5,925,610 6,803,464
TEE R Profit for the year - - - - - 2,055,455 2,095,455
TEEAMAENE Other comprehensive income for the year - (516,399) vl 184 - - (515,793)
BRiEEROTA LR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 522 - 522
REEREERTIRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (9.353) - (9,353)
iRERT Shares option lapsed - - - - (61,359) 61,359 -
BHERIEE 2001 £ 2021 final and special final dividend
REFARERE approved and paid - - - - —  (3942523)  (3.9425%3)
BB RIRE 2022 F RIS, 2022 special interim dividend approved
and paid - - - - — (250000  (2500000)
W2022%128318 At 31 December 2022 400 98,507 2,087 184 190,693 1,599,901 1,891,772

M2022F12A31H

ZANIVN

AR DB EHEEEREB T
EEHhaBrzeB R AR
2,425,265,0007C(2021 4 -
AE#6,712,5750007T) °
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At 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB2,425,265,000 (2021. RMB6,712,575,000).



LEBTTEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I B
BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Ty BIERAATIEELEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZXFEWNBLAR  EERAEZEZN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
A ARFEWRZEEANTE > 48 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEEBRAEENEESLD -EF portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
RAEFENNEMIBATINER 2 giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RiELEK ° excess length.
Rl Ay
8 3L HMER/BERIRA JEfk R fl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# ik
Directly Indirectly
REEFRDERLA hE US$72,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* MEERRERAH hE US$151,500,000 - 100% SERHENEE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EGERRRERLA HE US$17,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERRGARAA hE US$17,800,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BRERRRERAT) P US$44,300,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RAREEARARAA HE US$14,200,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BRERRAARAA hE US$6,862,700 - 100% BERHEHEE
* Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
FRBERHERRERLA hE US$32,500,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
HEEERRARAT R US$3,000,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Xinjiang TingYi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RAVB(ER) AERRERLA hE US$6,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
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LA IEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Y/
£ EXH &R/ ERfTRE JEfE R gL ) IEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
TAEERMARAR TE US$29,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RARERRARAR EF US$17,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
* Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RABERNERAERAT ilei US$5,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Master Kong [Chonggjing] PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
* PHEERRARAR PE US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RYRERMARAR G US$21,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEEREFERARRA) PE RMB15,000,000 - 100%  fREEERE
Shanghai Kang Yi Corporate Management Limited *  PRC Provision of management service
OB RERAFEERAT G US$227,500,000 - 100% REZR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERRARLA PE RMB37,000,000 - 100% BEERHERSH
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of bakery
products
RAEHREVIERAR RERAEE US$55,263 90.50% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REBRRERERAT HEHS US$10,527.37 30.40% 451%  REER
KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
RHOXEEED (L) ARLF G RMB1,000,000 - 7191% REEERE
KSF Beverage Management (Shanghai) Limited* PRC Provision of management services
* REEERMARD FH US$60,840,000 - 77.91% REREERR
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMNEZRRA] el US§20,000,000 - 7791% BEREESR
Guangzhou ngJm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRRMAN G US$73,500,000 - 7791% HERHEESR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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FEBTEHREMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [V B

BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

L/
£ EXHY ifEs/ BRTRA JEfE RAELL Bl IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E% }:3
Directly Indirectly
ERERRMARD hE US$24,000,000 - T191% RERHEERW
Chongging Tingjin Food Co, td. # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEREARARL G US$15,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREZARBRL G US$13,700,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REEERARERAT i US$16,176,500 - T191% RERHEERD
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
AERRARBRA G US$10,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Hefei Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRERRRARLA i US$12,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRMARD G US$24,000,000 - T191% RERHEERW
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAEZRMARD HE US$16,000,000 - T191% HERHEERD
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LRERARERARAT i US$15,000,000 - 7191% REEERH
Shanghai Kang Yun Corporate Management PRC Provision of management services
Limited*
FHEEDRARAT i US$41,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N i US$48,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
" REBRERRARAT hE US$31,800,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRMARD i US$36,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BN mARAR i US$59,300,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* (Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RS (SEAERRARAR G US§12,000,000 - T191%  RERHEHKR
* Master Kong (Wulumuqi) Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BYRRARARL G US$28,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* LANGFANG TINGJIN FOOD 0., L. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
*ENERRMARD HE US$41,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., ltd? PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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LA IEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Y/
£ EXH ifEs/ BRTRE EiEREL A IEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E% [}:3
Directly Indirectly
* NERRRARD i US$38,100,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHERRMARAA G US$27,000,000 - T1.91% HEREERR
Jinan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LERERRAN G RMB7,300,000 - 7191% #HESm
Shanghai Kong L|ng Food Co, Ltd.* PRC Sale of beverages
FOERRREGEERAR EP US$272,486,800 - 7191%  RERR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC Investment holding
RHERLR (BE) BRA &k US$129,736,518 - T191%  RABE
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m|ted Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRAERAT i US$358,216,517 - 191% RARK
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. # PRC Investment holding
BEHE (EM) BRAF i US$197,800,000 - T191% BERHERR
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BHAFRSHARAR G US$66,650,000 - T191%  RERHEHS
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
FREFARARERAA G US$14,119,449 - S064%  RERHEHD
* Bejing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERFARSHERAA G US§20,000,000 - 7401%  RERHERR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRAFURHHARAT G RMB100,000,000 - T91%  RERHERR
Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RARFAHARA G US$6,600,000 - T91%  RERHERS
CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEEHHARLA i US$1,350,000 - 7191% BERHEERR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERAEARHHARLA i US$17,845,000 - 1354% BERHEEAM
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFU BEVERAGE PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
RBETEBHARLA i US$12,250,000 - T191% BERHEERR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RMEFARARERAR G US§10,400,000 - 5843% RERHEAR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
SV EELES LI G US§28,000,000 - T191%  RERHERR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Rl iAN
£ EXE ihER/ERfTRE L el TEEK

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

E# 3
Directly Indirectly
BABETRHFHARLA EF RMB19,764,000 - 7191% BEREERE
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEHE (8 ARLA G US$9,000,000 - 5454% BEREERD
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited® PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREETRAHBRAT i US$5,000,000 - T191% BERHEERR
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N EEHHARLA G US$21,000,000 - T191% BERHEELS
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited* ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERRFTRSHARAR G US§35,000,000 - 7191%  RERHEAR
Harbin Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHRERRLA RERLES US$147,232,000 - 100% REER
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
HEIBEARARAR EBRARES US$1 100% - REHR
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERAFERERARLA G US$135,000,000 - 100% RENFEERH
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co, Ltd.* service
* ZEMBRREMATIINEGE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
VEIRZE © companies.
# R R AR # English translation for identification purposes only.

HAG AR S B P BRI 2 f B A R SZ
N A2EI e hE

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-
owned foreign enterprises.
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P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG (Global Business)

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

PRC OFFICE

No.1688, Wuzhong Road
Minhang District
Shanghai City 201103
PRC

www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Security code: 0322

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322
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Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre
P.O. Box 448, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

EABSHELARAR
BE

EIFEfEABER 183 5%
ARRL1T7 18
1712-1716 5548

NEE

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Yuko Takahashi

Ms. Tseng Chien

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.
2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong
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Agricultural Bank of China

ANZ Bank

Bank of China

Bank of Ningbo

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank

DBS Bank

Deutsche Bank

Development Bank of Japan Inc.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Metrobank
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
MUFG Bank
Rabobank

SPD Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

United Overseas Bank

The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

Sidley Austin
PRC principal legal advisers:
Haiwen & Partners

AlIBright Law Offices

as to Cayman Islands law:

Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability
FBEHRER / Stock Code: 0322

*E{HE% 5! For identification purposes only



